
Council may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda

BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA       

         May 24, 2016 

         Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 

City Council Meeting 

Opening 7:00 P.M. 

Call to Order Next Ordinance #17-16 
Pledge of Allegiance Next Resolution #16-09 
Roll Call of Council Members Next Agenda Bill #AB16-073 

A. Citizen Participation

Time Limit of Three Minutes (Must sign up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 

B. Staff Reports

C. Main Agenda

1. Agreement: Access to County GIS Systems Pg.  8 
2. Lease Agreement Addendum:  Del’s Farm Supply Pg. 19 
3. Lease Agreement:  Mt. Rainier Futbol Club – Renewal Pg. 25 
4. Agreement - 2016-2019 Police Guild Contract Pg. 35  
5. Agreement - DSHS/Rainier RHC Campus Patrol & Security Services – Renewal  Pg.124
6. Final Acceptance: Developer Constructed - Elk Heights STEP Sewer System Pg.140 
7. North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project – Change Order #1 Pg.148 

D. Consent Agenda Pg.158 

8. A.   Approve Minutes of May 10, 2016 City Council Meeting
B. Claims

E. Committee Reports Pg.163 

9. Mayor’s Report Johnson 
10. Administration, Finance & Public Safety Boyle Barrett 
11. Transportation & Utilities Tremblay 
12. Community Services Rose 
15. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 1



The above meetings will be held in the Multi-Purpose Center located at 811 Main Street unless otherwise noted. 
Last Revised May 19, 2016 

    CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com

CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 

May 19 4:00 PM Community Services  

May 24 7:00 PM City Council 

May 31 7:00 PM Joint Community Coordinating Committee 

June 6 7:00 PM Planning Commission – Public Hearing 
- Revisions to City Design Guidelines

June 7 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 

June 7 7:00 PM City Council Study Session 

June 13 10:30 AM Buckley Hall Board 

June 14 7:00 PM City Council 

June 16 4:00 PM Community Services 

June 20 7:00 PM Planning Commission 

June 21 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 

June 21 7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 

June 28 7:00 PM City Council 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 2



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 2 

 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

3  9:30 Admin, Fin & 
PS 
 
7 City Council Study 
Session 

4 5 6 7 

8 9 
 
10:30 Buckley Hall 
Board 

10 
 
7  City Council 

11 12 13 14 

15 16 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

17 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& PS 

 
7  Transportation & 
Utilities 

18 19 
 
4  Community Ser-
vices 

20 21 

22 23 24 
 
7  City Council 

25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 
 
7  Joint Community 
Coordinating Com-
mittee 

    

May 2016 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 3



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

7 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& PS 

 
7 City Council Study 
Session 

8 9 10 11 

12 13 
 
10:30 AM Buckley 
Hall Board 

14 
 
7  City Council 

15 16 
 
4 Community Services 

17 18 

19 20 
7 Planning Com-

mission 
 
Summer Sols ce 

21 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& PS 

 
7 Transportation & 
Utilities 

22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 
 
7  City Council 

29 30   

June 2016 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 4



A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 5



B. STAFF REPORTS

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 6



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. MAIN AGENDA 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 7



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date: May 24, 2016 AB16-073 

Agreement – Renewal of Contract with 
Pierce County for Access to 
CountyView GIS services.  

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact:  $1,450 - Annually Fire Depart – Chief Predmore 
Fund Source:  Fund 001 & 308 Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd 
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson X 

Police Depart – Chief Arsanto 
Other –  Hearing Examiner 

Attachments: Proposed contract for renewal 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  

The city currently enjoys access to CountyView Geographic Information Services. The service provides 
the ability to see lot lines over aerials, easements recorded with plats, recorded parcel dimensions, 
critical areas, LIDAR elevations, soils, Buckley zoning and comprehensive plan maps, area of buildings 
on any site, and make maps showing highlighted items of interest, and extract the parcel information to 
an excel spreadsheet to calculate the total area of a particular zone, for example. 

This is a three-year contract for $1,450/year, an increase of $89 over the last five years.  

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 2016 Budget 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion to Approve Renewal of the Contract with 
Pierce County for Access to CountyView GIS services.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 8



Page 1 of 6

PIERCE COUNTY 
COMMUNITY INFORMATION/NETWORK SERVICES AGREEMENT # _________

FOR ACCESS TO COUNTY SYSTEMS 
City of Buckley, hereinafter called Requestor, and Pierce County, hereinafter called County, agree as set forth in this 
Agreement, including: 

(Agreement), pp. 1 to 5,  
Attachment 1(Definitions), p. 6, 
Exhibit A (Scope of Services), p. A1 to A2, 
Exhibit B (Pierce County GIS Data Terms of Use), p.B1 and, 
Exhibit C (Special Provisions), p. C1. 

copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as fully as if set forth herein. 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the ____ day of April, 2016, and shall, unless terminated or renewed with a 
30 day notice, continue open ended. 

This Agreement will be binding upon the Requestor, officers, agents and employees.  The person(s) executing this 
Agreement on behalf of the Requestor are fully authorized to sign this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this  day of April, 2016.

REQUESTOR: 

Name 

Signature 

Title of Signatory Authorized by Firm Bylaws 

Address: 
City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960 
Buckley, WA 98321 

Mailing Address (if different): 

Contact Name: _______________________________ 

Contact Phone: _______________________________ 

Contact Email: ________________________________ 

PIERCE COUNTY: 

Approved as to legal form only: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Date 

Recommended: 

Budget and Finance Date 

Approved: 

Department Director Date 

N/A 
Pierce County Executive ($250,000 or more)    Date 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 9



Page 2 of 6 
 

 
AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS TO COUNTY SYSTEMS 

The terms of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect from the commencement date noted above 

open ended, unless either party provides the other with a thirty (30) days written notice of termination.  

The parties, in consideration of the terms and conditions described below, agree as follows: 

The parties, in consideration of the terms and conditions described below, agree as follows: 

SCOPE OF SERVICE 

1) The County agrees to provide the services described in Exhibit A (referred to as Service) according 

to the terms of this agreement.  Requestor agrees to provide access to and use of the Service and 

all other resources necessary to use the Service under this agreement. 

FEE FOR SERVICE 

2) Requestor agrees to pay for the services in accordance with the rates or charges set forth in Exhibit 

A(s). The County will notify the Requestor 30 days in advance, in writing, of annual service rate 

changes. The County will bill the Requestor with terms of net cash, payable within thirty (30) days 

after the statement date. Requestor shall pay all applicable taxes related to use of the Service by 

Requestor.   Non-payment for Services shall result in the termination of the Services. 

CONDITIONS OF USE 

3) Requestor represents and agrees that the County information and systems will not be used for 

commercial purposes contrary to the requirements of RCW 42.56.070(9) and WAC 390-13-010.  

4) Requestor agrees not to use the Service nor any of its elements or related facilities or capabilities 

to conduct any business or activity, or solicit the performance of any activity, which is prohibited by 

or would violate any applicable law, rule, regulation or legal obligation. 

5) The parties agree that should Requestor use this Service in a manner contrary to the terms of this 

Agreement, Requestor will be ineligible to receive any similar service in the future and Requestor 

will be subject to all applicable civil and criminal penalties. Misuse or damage of service 

components or County data could result in billable charges for actual damages. 

6) The Requestor, its officers and employees, will:  

a) Maintain the confidentiality of County information. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 10



Page 3 of 6 
 

b) Maintain the proprietary nature of Pierce County software, data and systems used by the 

Requestor under the terms of this Agreement. 

These conditions shall be met except upon the prior written consent of the steward County 

department and the Pierce County Prosecuting Attorney, or an order entered by a court after having 

acquired jurisdiction over the County.  

7) Requestor will immediately give to the County notice of any judicial proceeding seeking disclosure 

of County information by contacting the Pierce County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office. 

8) Requestor agrees not to transmit, upload, post or otherwise publish on or over the Service, and 

not seek on or over the Service, any software, file, information, communication or other content: 

a) which violates or infringes upon the rights of any other; 

b) which, under the circumstances and in County’s good faith judgment, is, or is likely to be 

perceived by an intended recipient or target as, defamatory, deceptive, misleading or 

abusive; 

c) which constitutes a threat to, harassment of, or stalking of another; 

d) which adversely affects the performance or availability of the Service or County resources; 

e) which contains any virus, worm, harmful component or corrupted data;  

f) which, without the approval of the County, contains any advertising, promotion or solicitation 

of goods or services for commercial purposes; or 

g)  which allows unauthorized access to County data and systems. 

9) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the County grants to Requestor and authorized users a 

personal, non-exclusive, nonassignable and nontransferable license to use and display the 

software (referred to as Software) provided by or on behalf of County for purposes of accessing 

the Service on any machine(s) of which Requestor is the primary user or which Requestor is 

authorized for use. Unauthorized copying of the Software, including software that has been 

modified, merged or included with the Software, or the associated written materials is prohibited.   

Requestor may not sublicense, assign or transfer this license or the Software except as permitted 

by County.  

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 11



Page 4 of 6 
 

LIABILITY 

10) The information or services supplied by the County pursuant to this Agreement is provided on an  

“ as is basis” and  “with all faults” and Requestor will have no remedy at law or equity against the 

County in the event information provided to the Requestor is inaccurate, incomplete or otherwise 

defective in any way. 

11) The Requestor agrees to hold the County and its officers and employees harmless from any and 

all claims, liability and judgments, including attorney fees and costs, made by or accruing to any 

person as a result of the Requestor's conduct relating to this agreement, and the County agrees 

to hold Requestor and its officers and employees harmless from any and all claims, liability and 

judgments, including attorney fees and costs, made by or accruing to any person as a result of the 

County's conduct relating to this agreement. There are no third party rights created by this 

agreement. 

SYSTEM OPERATIONS 

12) The County retains the right to modify current systems at its discretion. The County will make no 

systems modifications on Requestors' behalf unless specifically detailed in Exhibit A.  The 

Requestor is responsible for ascertaining the impact of changes on their business. 

13) Requestor agrees that each and every person given the right to access County systems will use 

a unique user name assigned by Pierce County Information Technology staff.  Each user will sign 

the most current system and security agreement(s) (Exhibit B) and return to Pierce County 

Information Technology Department with written request for security access. 

14) Requestor understands that priority is assigned to regular County work which may require a 

reasonable delay in responding to Requestors’ requirements from time to time. The County shall 

not be held liable for service interruptions. 

15) Requestor is to provide and maintain all required service components necessary to connect to 

County services in the manner authorized by the County. 

16) Requestor is to ensure that all equipment and software used to access the Pierce County systems 

defined in Exhibit A, will be compatible with existing County configurations. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 12



Page 5 of 6

17) Requestor agrees to keep the County informed of any network connectivity between Requestor

and other organizations.

18) Requestor understands and agrees that on-line access will be available only between the hours

of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time, Monday through Friday, exclusive of legal holidays

observed by the County. Limited on-line access may be available outside of these hours.  The

County shall not be held liable if the system/network is off-line and not accessible.

CONTACTS 

19) The County will provide a list of contacts to administer the Services provided under this agreement.

20) Requestor will provide the names of at least two (2) of their employees who will be the primary

contacts with Pierce County staff. Requests for new users, user modifications or user assistance

will come from these contacts. A method of verification will be provided to these employees to use

when identifying themselves to Pierce County.

21) Requestor is to contact the County and request deletion of a staff's user name within 24 hours

following notice of termination of their employment with the Requestor.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

22) Special provisions are listed in Exhibit C.

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 13



Page 6 of 6 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
Definitions 

1. Service Service or Services is defined as this contract between the Requestor and 

the County to provide the work products described in Exhibit A, Scope of 

Work. 

2. Annual Service Rates The fees and charges for the Service(s) from the County that will be 

reviewed and adjusted yearly as described in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

3. Steward Departments One, or in some cases multiple, County departments are designated as 

the steward of each particular named computer system and its 

corresponding set of information media (data files, databases, screens, 

views, reports, menus, and query access).  As such, steward departments 
have the authority to determine data access methods, the dissemination 

mechanism and secondary data dissemination rules (primary data 

dissemination rules are specified in a separate County policy statement) 

for any request to access such systems and information media.  In order 

to execute this authority, steward departments are responsible for the 

maintenance of security, accuracy, and integrity of the computer systems 

and information media. 

4. Data “Data” is defined as information of an electronic or digital format as in 

diskettes, electronic file attachments, Zip disks, file transfer protocol (FTP), 

CD’s, R/W disks, and any electronic medium such as digital tape. 

5. Document “Document” is defined as hard copy work product information from the 

service, including, but not limited to letters, words, pictures, symbols, 

maps, or any combination thereof. “Document” does not include any 

“Data” as defined above. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 14



 

Exhibit A - On-Line Services from Pierce County

Requestor: City of Buckley Contract #: Calendar Year Rates Shown: 2016 

System Name: CountyView Suite - Pierce County's Subscription GIS system 
Description of System: The CountyView suite of applications allows users to access production GIS data in Pierce County.  The system provides users with the ability to 

display themes of data, perform search and locate, query associated tabular data, perform spatial analysis, and utilize customized County GIS 
functionality. 

Steward: Information Technology Department / GIS Division 

Services Charges 

Use of 
CVWeb 
and CVPro 

CountyView applications have been in production since 1998 at Pierce County.  The CountyView suite of 
software has been customized and optimized for local government business functions and includes data 
management for over 800 themes of data, owner-notify tools, locate function, and quick map production.  
CVWeb is a web-based application that contains efficient searching, viewing, reporting and basic mapping 
functionality.  Simple data creation tools are provided.  Clients are responsible for ensuring the functionality in 
CVWeb will meet their business needs. CVPro is based on ESRI’s ArcGIS and includes advanced functionality 
such as spatial analysis, customized mapping, attribute and feature editing, and data conversion tools. 

CVWeb = $1,365/ea/yr 

CVPro  =  $3,995/ea/yr 

Agencies with nine or more users can 
choose to pay an annual fee for any 
combination of the two applications. 
Annual cost is $22,725 for up to nine users 
+ $1,125/per user over nine.

Total based on 
options and 
number of users 

GIS 
Hardware 

To connect to Pierce County's CVWeb application, the agency will share the use of clustered application 
servers with other agencies.   CVPro users will connect to an internal ArcGIS server that is also shared between 
the online agencies and will have access to the extensions and customized tools that Pierce County has acquired 
or designed. Storage on county servers for CVPro will be limited to 20gb. For either application, the servers 
will be equipped with the necessary software licenses to serve the users’ needs.  The user’s login/password must 
be protected to keep use at acceptable levels of performance  

No extra fee Included 

CVWeb and 
CVPro 
Agency 
Support 

Analyst assistance for up to a maximum of 180 hours/yr/agency for all GIS applications. 
Support includes: 

 on-call phone support, technical advice, and troubleshooting  related to the CV application during 
regular County business  hours 

 training on advanced functionality within the CV application
 regular onsite user meetings if requested
 adding agency data to data menus 

Note:  Free training and materials are provided for each licensed user on CVWeb (4 hr class-not deducted from 
support hours).  Users must be familiar with the Windows environment. 
For CVPro access,”Introduction to ArcGIS I” certification is required.  Pierce County can provide training at a 
cost of $250 per each CVPro user for materials which is charged separately upon completion of training.  Other 
training options exist and can be discussed. 

CVWeb = 12 hrs/user/yr 
CVPro = 20 hrs/user/yr 
(up to a maximum of 180 hrs/yr/agency for 
all applications)1 

Included 

CountyView 
Maintenance 

The ongoing maintenance of the CountyView applications require certifying the software on new platform 
releases, maintaining data sets, loading data sets into the CountyView suite, making enhancements to the 
system, and adding applications and extensions.   Enhancements are in response to user requirements and each 
agency will have input in this process as well. 

No extra fee Included 

A-1

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 15



 
  

 

ArcGIS 
Online 
Services 

Field asset collection requires the use of mobile devices, mobile GIS software, and connectivity to County 
GIS databases for reading and storage of data. Pierce County offers ArcGIS Online/Collector to meet this 
need on leased, County-owned iPads with County-mandated security.  iPad access requires a full 
“Community Information/Network Services Agreement” with Pierce County.  Each user is required to have 
a County AD account and pay the applicable monthly WAN access fees listed on the “Pierce County Wide 
Area Network” Exhibit A. Device fees include a data plan, AppleCare, and device management software.  
CountyView clients will use support hours listed above.    
AGO users who do not need a field device (desktop use only) will not be billed for iPad fees.   
AGO users will be allotted a minimum number of “credits” as part of their account, but any credit usage 
exceeding the original allotment will be charged back to the agency at the rate of $0.10/credit (Esri’s charge 
per credit).   
AGO users who do not have access to CVWeb or CVPro and the support hours that are available with those 
services, will pay all device and license fees as well as the current hourly rate for any necessary support.     

$80/mo for each iPad device 
$400 setup fee for each iPad (max) 
$25/user/mo AGO license fee 
WAN user fees from “Pierce County 
Wide Area Network” Exhibit A 
“Credit” usage 

Total based on number 
of iPads and users.  

GPS Training 
GPS training is available for mapping quality Trimble or similar equipment. This class includes hands on 
training and handouts, and can be 4-8 hours long depending on size of class and requirements.  Students 
from different organizations can be grouped to obtain the minimum number of students.   

$150/person with a minimum of 6 
students.   $150/student 

The GIS 
Community 
Service 

The growing GIS community in Pierce County can leverage each other's expertise to optimize the use of 
GIS.  Pierce County GIS will facilitate this sharing of information and data by: 

 conducting technical meetings as necessary to discuss technical and quality questions.  This 
meeting is intended for hands-on technical users who have software questions. 

 prepare and share the Spatial Services newsletter which describes the GIS projects in the County 
and those of regional partners, the status of GIS data development, notes from meetings and 
training schedules. 

No extra fee Included 

Ortho Partner 
Option 

Includes access to all available digital orthophotos (current and historic), impervious surface planimetrics 
derived from orthos, lidar-based contours, and other layers derived from orthos under this license. Separate 
Digital Orthophotography contract is required.  Contact Brandy Riche (253) 798-4929 for more information. 

$1,000/user/yr up to a maximum of 
$7,500/agency/yr 
(if one user needs orthos, all users 
must have access – managed at 
agency level only ) 

Cost based on number 
of users up to 
maximum fee of $7,500 
per year per agency 

1Hours exceeding this amount will be billed at the Information Technology/GIS personnel hourly rate which changes each calendar year. (2016 rate is $124/hr). 
 
Agency support and CountyView maintenance rates are subject to yearly adjustment.  Access by the Requestor to the above system at the calendar year rates shown is approved by: 
 
 
 
 
    
Pierce County Information Technology Dept. Director Date 
 
    
Pierce County IT/AGIS Manager  Date 
 
    
Licensee Date 
 
 
 
 

A-2 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 16



 

B-1 

Pierce County GIS 2016 
EXHIBIT B 

Pierce County GIS Data Terms of Use 
 
USERS’ ACCEPTANCE OF THESE TERMS 
Pierce County makes GIS data (hereinafter, “Data”) available without charge as a public service on the express condition that users who view, download, 
transfer or otherwise access or use the Data expressly agree to these Terms of Use.  If you do not accept these terms, you may not view or otherwise use the 
Data for any purpose.  These restrictions on use of the Data apply to you and to any transferee, vendee or other end user of yours (collectively, “users”).   If 
you transfer to, or use the Data in connection with, any such end user in a format or context revealing Pierce County as the source of the Data, you agree to 
inform such user(s), by copy of these Terms of Use or otherwise, that Pierce County does not warrant the Data in any way and makes each of the disclaimers 
set forth herein. 
 
DATA WARRANTY DISCLAIMER 
All Pierce County GIS data is expressly provided “AS IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS”.  The County makes no warranty of any kind, express or implied, 
concerning this information, including but not limited to any warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. Pierce County assumes no 
responsibility or legal liability concerning the Data’s accuracy, reliability, completeness, timeliness, or usefulness.   
 
The Data is not intended to constitute advice nor is it to be used as a substitute for specific advice from a professional.  Users should not act (or refrain from 
acting) based upon information in the Data without independently verifying the information and obtaining any necessary professional advice.   Users are 
solely responsible for ensuring the accuracy, currency and other qualities of any products derived from or in connection with Pierce County’s Data.   
 
The Data is collected from various sources, and may be modified over time without notice to improve spatial and attribute accuracy.  The County disclaims 
responsibility for the spatial accuracy and attribution of GIS features, and makes no warranty concerning same.   
 
LIABILITY DISCLAIMER 
Pierce County disclaims any responsibility or legal liability to users for damages of any kind, including lost profits, lost savings or any other incidental or 
consequential damages relating to the providing of the Data or the use of it.   Pierce County expressly disclaims any responsibility to defend or indemnify 
users against claims of others based on users’ copying, distribution, or other use of any of the Data.  Users assume the risk of using this Data and shall have 
no remedy at law or equity against Pierce County in case the Data provided is inaccurate, incomplete or otherwise defective in any way.  
 
NO AUTHORITY TO ACT AS COUNTY   
Users are not authorized by Pierce County to combine this Data with other data with the intent or effect of representing a County business function such as, 
but not limited to, matters relating to land development, permitting, or flood hazard evaluation.  When using this Data, a user has no authority to represent 
its products or services as though user were a County agent or office.  Maps or applications using this Data may not include the Pierce County logo, or any 
text or other content suggesting they are a direct product of Pierce County. 
 
DATA CURRENCY  
This Data may be updated at irregular intervals.  All users should check for updates regularly and ensure the most current version of the Data is being used.   
 
TERMINATION OF DATA AVAILABILITY 
Pierce County reserves the right to modify the Data in any way or discontinue providing any or all of the Data at any time without notice, and is not liable 
for any modification, suspension, or discontinuation of access to the Data.  Additionally Pierce County may require the termination of any and all display, 
distribution, or other use of any or all of the Data for any reason including, without limitation, the violation of any provision of these Terms of Use. 
 
RELIABILITY OF THIS SITE (applicable to Open GeoSpatial Data Portal Only) 
Pierce County does not maintain and is not responsible for the performance or reliability of this third party website.  The vendor (Esri) may change the 
functionality or temporarily suspend the site for maintenance without notice.  Performance and reliability are solely the responsibility of the vendor. 
 
Signature__________________________________________________________                   Date__________________________ 
 
Address all GIS data questions to: Pierce County GIS Data Coordinator, 950 Fawcett Ave, Suite 300, Tacoma, WA  98402

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 17



 

C-1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Network Security 

In an attempt to prevent the loss of information/data and to minimize the costly effects of network/system security attacks on 
system maintenance and network downtime, the County reserves the right to terminate, immediately and without notice, 
Requestor connection(s) to County resources if it appears that Requestor’s continued connection to County systems may be 
harmful (for example, virus, worm or network security attacks) to either County or Requestor.  Connection will not be reinstated 
until County determines that such threat no longer exists.  Reasonable care will be taken to re-establish connection to the 
Requestor within a reasonable time. By accessing the County system, Requestor acknowledges the right and discretion of 
County to terminate Requestor's connection(s) in the event of a network security threat and agrees that County will not be liable 
to Requestor for interruption of business or in any other fashion in regard to any such termination or failure to terminate.  If 
County staff must provide assistance to Requestor to ensure Requestor’s systems are free from harmful threats, charges will be 
assessed as described in Exhibit A attached. 

“Conditions of Use,” Section 6  

“Secondary data dissemination” does not include the Requestor’s disclosure of documents printed from the service. The Requestor 
agrees to immediately notify the County as provided in Section 6 of the Agreement when the Requestor receives a request for the 
County’s data. If the Requestor promptly transmits such a request to the County, the County agrees to respond within the deadline 
in RCW 42.56.520. The Requestor shall not be required to defend the County concerning the County’s refusal to disclose any data. 

 If the Requestor receives a request for a document(s) printed from the service, the Requestor shall make a decision whether 
such document(s) is exempt from disclosure and process the request accordingly. The County need not be contacted in those 
instances where a request is made for a document(s) only. 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 18



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date:     May 24, 2016 AB16-074 

Lease Agreement Addendum #1:  
Del’s Farm Supply (Tractor Supply, 
Inc.) – Early Termination 

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
City Clerk – Joanne Starr X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact: N/A Building Official – Mike Deadmond 
Fund Source:  Fund 008 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore 
Timeline:  Immediate Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd 

Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson 
Police Dept – Chief Arsanto 
Municipal Court – Jessica Cash 

Attachments: Agreement Addendum 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The current lease agreement with Del’s Farm Supply (Tractor Supply, Inc.) 
expires December 31, 2016; however, due to opening the new store in Enumclaw, Tractor Supply has 
requested early termination of their agreement. Terms of the agreement release Tractor Supply from any 
further lease payments after April 30, 2016, and in exchange Tractor Supply is transferring ownership of 
the building, valued at $49K+, to the City.  

Approval and execution of these terms allows the City to move forward with receiving and selecting a 
new tenant for the building. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: AF&PS 5/17/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Addendum #1 to the Lease 
Between the City and Del’s Farm Supply (Tractor Supply, Inc.) for Early 
Termination subject to Terms of the Agreement. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 19



Buckley, Washington #4613 
Lease Termination and Release Agreement 1 

LEASE TERMINATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE TERMINATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
as of the           day of May 2016, by and between City of Buckley, a municipal corporation, Post Office Box 
1960, Buckley, Washington 98321 (the “Lessor”) and Tractor Supply Company, a Delaware corporation, 
5401 Virginia Way, Brentwood, Tennessee 37027 (the “Lessee”).   

A. WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee are parties to that certain lease, dated July 13, 2007, as (the
“Lease”), for real property commonly known as 117 North River Avenue, in the City of Buckley, State of 
Washington (the “Premises”); and 

B. WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee have agreed to terminate the Lease on the terms and
conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of ten dollars ($10.00) and the foregoing recitals, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and to establish the 
obligations and responsibilities of each of the parties to the other, which have been agreed upon, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Lessor.  Lessor represents and warrants that Lessor is the current Lessor under the Lease
and is authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of the Lessor. 

2. Termination.  Lessor and Lessee agree that the term of the Lease terminated effective at
5:00 p.m. (local time) on April 30, 2016 (the “Termination Date”).  On the Termination Date Lessee 
delivered possession of the Premises to Lessor (including any keys related thereto) in its current as-is 
condition.  The parties acknowledge that all rent, additional rent, real property taxes, insurance, utility 
charges, maintenance charges, and any other charges, expenses or amounts of any kind due from Lessee 
under the Lease has been paid in full through the Termination Date, and that Lessee owes no other 
amounts to Lessor under the Lease.   

3. Improvements.  Lessee hereby quitclaims, transfers, and releases unto Lessor all of
Lessee’s right, title, and interest in and to the Improvements (as defined in the Lease), and Lessor accepts 
the same in their “as is” condition.  Lessee shall execute and deliver to Lessor such further, or other, 
documents as are necessary or desirable to effect, fully, the transfer of the Improvements to Lessor. 

4. Mutual Release.  Lessor and Lessee agree that as of the Termination Date Lessor releases
Lessee from any claims, costs, expenses, charges, causes of action or other liability arising out of the 
Lease, whether now existing or hereafter arising; and Lessee releases Lessor from any claims, costs, 
expenses, charges, causes of action or other liability arising out of the Lease, whether now existing or 
hereafter arising. 

5. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement represents and warrants that such
individual has the right, power and authority (i) to execute this Agreement and (ii) to bind the party for 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 20



Buckley, Washington #4613 
Lease Termination and Release Agreement 2 

whom such individual is executing this Agreement to the terms of this Agreement without joinder or 
approval of any other party. 

6. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement and the covenants, benefits, and obligations
created hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their assigns, 
heirs, grantees, and successors-in-interest.  This Agreement may not be modified in any respect 
whatsoever or rescinded, in whole or in part, except with the written consent of the parties hereto.  Time is 
the essence of this Agreement.   

7. Fees.  In the event a party hereto incurs attorneys’ fees and/or expenses in connection
with the enforcement of any of the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action shall be 
entitled to receive, and shall receive from the defaulting party, a reasonable sum as attorneys’ fees and 
costs.  

8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state where the
Demised Premises is located. 

(Signatures on following pages) 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 21



Buckley, Washington #4613 
Lease Termination and Release Agreement 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Termination and Release 
Agreement in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original document, as of the day 
and year first above written. 

WITNESSES FOR LESSOR: LESSOR: 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
a municipal corporation 

By: By: 
David Schmidt, City Administrator 

Title: 

By: 

Title: 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

COUNTY OF PIERCE ) 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, duly commissioned and qualified, 
personally appeared David Schmidt, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to be on the basis 
of satisfactory evidence), and who, upon oath, acknowledged himself to be the City Administrator for the 
City of Buckley and that he executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by 
signing the name of the municipality by herself as city administrator. 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal this  day of May, 2016. 

NOTARY PUBLIC –  

My Commission Expires:  

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 22



Buckley, Washington #4613 
Lease Termination and Release Agreement 4 

WITNESSES FOR LESSEE: LESSEE: 

TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY,  
a Delaware corporation 

By: By: 
Linda Hamilton Clay Teter, Senior Vice President - 

Real Estate and Construction 

By: 
Jim Poulton 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON ) 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, duly commissioned and qualified, 
personally appeared Clay Teter, with whom I am personally acquainted, and who, upon oath, 
acknowledged himself to be the Senior Vice President, Real Estate and Construction of Tractor Supply 
Company, a Delaware corporation, and that he executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes 
therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by himself as Senior Vice President, Real Estate 
and Construction. 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal this  day of May, 2016. 

NOTARY PUBLIC – Angela Fells 
My Commission Expires:  February 18, 2019 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 23



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 24



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: Agenda Date:     May 24, 2016 AB16-075 

Lease Agreement:  Mt. Rainier 
Futbol Club - Renewal 

Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller 
City Clerk – Joanne Starr X 
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar 

Cost Impact: N/A Building Official – Mike Deadmond 
Fund Source:  Fund 001 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore 
Timeline:  Immediate Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd 

Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson 
Police Dept – Chief Arsanto 
Municipal Court – Jessica Cash 

Attachments: Agreement 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: The initial 1 year lease agreement with Mt. Rainier Futbol Club for use of 
the City’s open space area next to the National Guard Armory expired on May, 2016. The Futbol Club is 
requesting that this lease agreement for use of the area be renewed. 

As everyone is aware, navigating through this initial lease period has been challenging; however, after 
investing a significant amount of money and labor by the organization and City staff, the site has been 
converted from a grass field into a top notch soccer field. Despite the many challenges the finished 
product is a benefit to the entire community. 

Staff and the Admin/Finance & Public Safety Committee are recommending that the City Council renew 
the lease for another 20 months to December 31, 2017.   

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: AF&PS 5/17/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the Renewal of the Lease 
Agreement Between the City and Mt. Rainier Futbol Club for Use of the 
River Avenue Sports Field. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date Action Vote 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 25



  

LEASE AGREEMENT RENEWAL BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF BUCKLEY  

AND MOUNT RAINIER FUTBOL CLUB (MRFC) 
 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of ________, 2016, 
by and between the CITY OF BUCKLEY [hereinafter the “CITY”], a municipal corporation, 
and the MOUNT RAINIER FUTBOL CLUB [hereinafter the “CLUB”], a Washington non-
profit corporation. 
 
RECITALS: 
 

A. The CITY owns certain real property situated in the City of Buckley, Pierce 
County, Washington [hereinafter the “Property”], described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference; and 
 

B. The Property consists of an undeveloped “grassed” area north of the Cemetery 
Road access approximately 1.84 acres in size. The Property is east of a portion of the Foothills 
Trail and adjacent to restroom facilities (sani-cans) that serve Trail and Cemetery users; and 
 

C. The CITY wishes to lease the Property to the CLUB, and the CLUB wishes to 
lease the Property from the CITY for the term and under the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Lease Agreement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises made herein, the 
parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. DEMISE.  The CITY hereby leases to the CLUB the Property, and the CLUB 
hereby leases the Property from the CITY, on the terms and conditions and subject to the 
exceptions and reservations set forth in this Agreement. 
 

2. LEASE TERM.   
 

2.1 Term.  The term of this Lease Agreement [hereinafter the “Lease Term”] 
shall be for a period of one (1) year and eight (8) months commencing on May 1, 2016, and 
terminating on December 31, 2017, unless earlier terminated as permitted in this Agreement. 
 

2.2 Surrender.  At the expiration of the Lease Term, or upon the earlier 
termination of this Lease, the CLUB shall vacate the Property to the CITY peaceably and quietly 
and in as good order and condition as exists as of the date of this Lease, except for reasonable 
use and wear and damage not caused by any act or omission of the CLUB, its employees, agents, 
invitees, volunteers or licensees.  The CITY’s obligation to perform this covenant shall survive 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

 
3. RENT.   
 

3.1     Rent. During the term of this Lease, the CLUB shall pay to the CITY, as rent 
for the Property, the sum of Five-Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per year.  Said rent shall be due on 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 26



  

or before July 1 of each year of the Agreement.  Unless otherwise directed by the CITY, the 
CLUB shall pay all rent due under this Lease to the order of the CITY at P.O. Box 1960, 933 
Main Street, Buckley, Washington. 

 
3.2    In-kind Services. The CITY may consider accepting In-kind services from 

the CLUB in exchange for the value of the rent due under section 3.1. In-kind services would be 
for volunteer services that benefit the community as determined and approved by the City. The 
value of in-kind services would be calculated on an hour for hour basis at the rate of $14.00/hour 
or as the value of a total project cost if the service was for the completion of a volunteer project 
for the CITY.  

 
3.3     Leasehold Excise Tax.  The CLUB shall also be responsible for the 

applicable Leasehold Excise Tax (“LET”) for the lease of the Property. The CLUB shall submit 
payments equal to the LET amount due to the CITY at the address in section 22.1 below. The 
current LET rate is 12.84% of the total Lease amount, which is currently calculated to be Sixty-
Four Dollars and Twenty Cents ($64.20).  The CLUB agrees to be responsible for any 
adjustments to the LET amount required by the Washington State Department of Revenue. 

 
4. USE OF PROPERTY.   

 
4.1 Use.  The CLUB’s activities on the Property shall comply with all 

applicable zoning codes and other applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations, covenants and 
restrictions of record.  The CLUB shall use the Property to create,  maintain and operate soccer 
field facilities to conduct  soccer  practices  and  games  together  with  all  activities  incidental  
thereto.    

 
4.2 Limited Exclusive Use.   During the term of this Agreement the CLUB 

shall have the exclusive use of the Property.   
 

4.3 Legal and Safety Compliance.  The CLUB shall not: (a) make or allow 
any unlawful, improper or offensive use of the Property; (b) violate any federal, state or 
municipal licensing or permit requirements, ordinances, rules, regulations or laws of other 
governmental authorities applicable to the CLUB’s use of the Property, including but not limited 
to health laws, fire codes, building codes, zoning laws, worker safety laws and laws related to the 
storage, use and disposal of hazardous substances; (c) make or allow use of the Property in any 
manner that will obstruct streets, alleys or publicly owned parking areas, create a nuisance or 
unduly disturb occupants of neighboring properties; or (d) do anything which will create an 
unreasonable risk of injury to persons or of damage to property or, as a result of which, any 
insurance policy covering any or all of the Property or any liability of the CITY may be voided 
or suspended or subjected to a higher premium.   

 
4.4   Parking. The CLUB has contacted and received permission from the 

Washington State National Guard Armory to utilize their facility parking lot at 455 N. River 
Avenue for off-street parking for users of the Property. No parking except for minor limited 
parking will be allowed on the Property without separate written permission from the CITY.  
 

4.5 Waste.  The CLUB shall not commit or allow to be committed any waste, 
damage to or destruction of the Property or the improvements located thereon.   

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 27



  

5. ALTERATIONS AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS.   
 

5.1 Improvements. 
 

(a) The CITY shall have no duty or responsibility for the construction 
of any alterations or improvements to the Property. 
 

(b) Subject to the conditions of this section, the CLUB shall have the 
sole responsibility to construct and pay for any alterations and leasehold improvements and to 
install all fixtures and equipment necessary for the proper operation of the CLUB’s activities or 
which are required by any municipal, state or federal government, any and all of which work 
shall be done by and for the CLUB in its own right and not as the CITY’s agent.    

 
5.2 Construction.  Any alterations performed or improvements constructed by 

the CLUB on the Property shall be approved in advance by the CITY in writing, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld.  As a condition of the CITY’s approval, the CITY may 
require the CLUB or the CLUB’s contractor to provide a performance bond or payment bond in 
a form reasonably acceptable to the CITY. 
 

5.3 Manner of Work.  All work done by the CLUB in connection with the 
construction, alteration or improvement of the Property shall be in accordance with all applicable 
building codes and regulations and shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner.   
 

5.4 Protection Against Claims and Liens.  The CLUB shall not permit the 
Property to become or remain subject to any liens on account of labor performed on, or materials 
or supplies furnished to or in connection with the Property by or at the direction or forbearance 
of the CLUB, its employees or agents.  The CLUB shall obtain lien releases upon the payment of 
any claims for such labor, materials or supplies. 
 

5.5 Reversion Upon Expiration of Lease Term.  Upon the expiration of the 
Lease Term or earlier termination of this Lease, all leasehold improvements and alterations 
currently on the Property and constructed by the CLUB or the CITY during the Lease Term, 
including but not limited to all improvements located on the Property in the Buckley Log Show 
Area, shall remain a part of the Property and shall revert to the CITY. 
 

6. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR. 
 

6.1 Acceptance of Condition.  The CLUB has had an opportunity to inspect 
the Property and accepts the Property “as is.”  The CITY makes no representation or warranty 
about the physical condition of the Property or the suitability of the Property for the CLUB’s 
intended purpose. 

6.2 CLUB’s Obligations.  During the term of this Lease, the CLUB shall at all 
times, at its sole cost and expense and in a neat and workmanlike manner, keep and maintain the 
Property, including all improvements located thereon (without limitation, the playing field, 
sidewalks, pedestrian walkways, driveways, parking areas, service areas, storm drains, and 
restrooms serving the public) in good order, condition and repair, including damage from 
burglary or attempted burglary of the Property or improvements located thereon.  In addition the 
CLUB shall be responsible for full maintenance of the property including, but not limited to 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 28



  

removing and properly disposing of all trash and refuse, any repair and preparation necessary to 
bring the property up to useable condition and thereafter any mowing, trimming, seeding, 
fertilization, watering and/or repair necessary to maintain it in a useable state, and removing all 
temporary structures or enclosures erected during and after any scheduled use of the Property by 
the CITY, its agents, representatives, licensees and invitees. 

 
6.3  CLUB’s Failure to Repair.  If the CLUB fails or refuses to make timely 

repairs or to perform maintenance as required under this Agreement, then, after twenty (20) days 
written notice to the CLUB and a reasonable opportunity for the CLUB to comply, in addition to 
all other rights and remedies available to the CITY, the CITY may, but is not required to, make 
such repairs or perform such maintenance for the CLUB’s account, and the cost thereof shall be 
reimbursed to the CITY from the CLUB within five (5) days of invoicing the CLUB therefor; 
provided, that the CITY shall not be obligated to give the CLUB notice and an opportunity to 
comply if there is a danger to persons or property or if an emergency exists.  The CLUB’s 
additional failure to pay the invoiced amount within said five day period, will constitute grounds 
for termination of the Lease under Section 11 below.    
 

6.4 Examination of Property.  The CITY, or its agents or representatives, may 
at any or all reasonable times, enter into or upon the Property or any part thereof for the purpose 
of examining the condition thereof.   
 

7. UTILITIES.  The CLUB shall be responsible for the payment of any and/or all 
utilities needed to serve the site for the designated use. 

 
7.1      CLUB’s Obligation: The CLUB shall be responsible for payment of all 

electric/power and water services utilized upon and provided to the Property. In 
addition the CLUB shall be responsible for payment of all garbage services related to the 
removal and proper disposal of all trash and refuse from the Property or in the alternative the 
CLUB may elect to properly dispose of all trash and refuse from the Property without the use of 
formal garbage services. 
 
The CLUB shall promptly upon request furnish the CITY with proof of payment of all such 
Utilities.  The CITY shall not be liable for any interruption or failure in the supply of any 
Utilities to the Property.  Any such failure or termination shall not constitute grounds entitling 
the CLUB to terminate this Lease or abate the rent.    
 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 

8.1 Indemnification by CLUB.  The CLUB shall indemnify, defend and hold 
the CITY harmless and the CITY’s officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives 
harmless from and against any and all claims, actions, damages, suits, losses, costs, liens, 
judgments, penalties and liabilities, including environmental remediation costs, defense costs and 
reasonable attorney’s fees which may be brought or made against the CITY or which the CITY 
may pay or incur based upon or arising from: (a) the use, occupancy, conduct, operation or 
management of the Property or of the activities conducted on the Property by the CLUB, its 
agents, members, clients, invitees, volunteers, contractors, employees, officers or representatives 
during the Lease Term, or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by the 
CLUB in or about the Property; (b) any failure, breach or default by the CLUB in the payment of 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 29



  

any sum or performance of any obligation of the CLUB under this Lease or applicable law; (c) 
any negligent act or omission of the CLUB or any of its agents, members, clients, invitees, 
volunteers, contractors, employees, officers or representatives; (d) the presence of any hazardous 
substance on the Property at the expiration of the Lease Term and any release, leaking or 
infiltration of any oil, solvent, fuel, chemicals or any type of toxic, dangerous or hazardous 
substance on or from the Property occurring during the Lease Term, other than a hazardous 
substance that can be shown by the CLUB by a preponderance of the evidence to have been 
present on the Property prior to the CLUB’s original occupancy thereof.  
 

8.2 Indemnification by CITY.  The CITY shall indemnify, defend and hold 
the CLUB harmless from and against any and all claims, actions, damages, suits, losses, costs, 
liens, judgments, penalties and liabilities, including defense costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, 
which may be brought or made against the CLUB or which the CLUB may pay or incur, because 
of the CITY’s act(s) or omission(s), negligence or failure to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, incurred or arising or by reason of the use, operation, management, or operation 
of the Property by the CITY, its employees, agents and representatives. 
 

8.3 Concurrent Negligence.   Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections 
8.1 and 8.2 above, in the event of the concurrent negligence or intentional misconduct of the 
CLUB, its agents, members, clients, employees, representatives, invitees, volunteers, licensees or 
contractors, on the one hand, and that of the CITY, its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
employees, contractors or representatives, on the other hand, which concurrent negligence or 
intentional misconduct results in injury or damage to persons or property, the CLUB’s obligation 
to indemnify the CITY and the CITY’s obligation to indemnify the CLUB, as set forth in this 
section, shall be limited to the extent of the CLUB’s or the CITY’s respective negligence and/or 
intentional misconduct, and that of its agents, members, clients, employees, volunteers, invitees, 
licensee, contractors, representatives, officers and officials, including the CLUB’s and the 
CITY’s proportionate share of the costs, attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in connection 
with any claim, action or proceeding brought with respect to such injury or damage.  

  
  8.4 Waiver of Immunity. The indemnification obligations contained in this 
Agreement shall not be limited by any worker’s compensation, benefit or disability laws, and 
each indemnitor hereby waives any immunity that such indemnitor may have under the industrial 
Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW.  This waiver is for the exclusive benefit of the indemnified party, 
shall not accrue to the benefit of any employee of any indemnitor hereunder and is not intended 
as a waiver of the CLUB’s rights of immunity under said industrial insurance for any other 
person.  
 

8.5 Waiver of Subrogation.  If either the CITY or the CLUB is paid any 
proceeds under any policy of insurance naming such party as an insured on account of any loss 
or damage, then the party receiving the proceeds hereby releases the other party hereto to and 
only to the extent of the amount of such proceeds, from any and all liability for such loss or 
damage, notwithstanding that such loss, damage or liability may be based upon or arise out of a 
negligent or intentionally tortious act or omission of the other party, its agents, officers or 
employees.  Such release shall be effective, however, only as to a loss or damage occurring while 
the applicable policy of insurance of the releasing party provides that such release shall not 
impair the effectiveness of such policy or the insured’s ability to recover thereunder.  The CLUB 
and the CITY shall each provide the other with proof of the right to waive the subrogated 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 30



  

interests of their insurers.  
 

8.6 Survival.  The obligations of the CLUB and the CITY under this section 
arising by reason of any occurrence taking place during the Lease Term shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.   
 

9. INSURANCE.   
 

9.1 Insurance Maintained by the CLUB.  During the Lease Term and any 
period of holding over after the Lease Term, the CLUB shall keep and maintain, at its own cost 
and expense, a policy or policies of commercial general liability insurance, including liability 
related to special events and the service of liquor, and property damage insurance with respect to 
the Property, insuring against liability for personal injury, death and property damage, 
destruction or loss occurring on or about the Property or based on or arising out of the condition 
or use of the Property or the acts or omissions of the CLUB, its agents, employees, volunteers 
and/or invitees.  The policy limits shall be not less than: (a) $1,000,000.00 for personal injury to, 
or death of, any one person during any one occurrence; and (b) $1,000,000.00 for personal injury 
to, or death of, all persons in any one occurrence; and (c) $50,000.00 for property damage or 
destruction during any one occurrence.  At any time during this Lease, the described limits of 
liability may be adjusted to reflect current market insurance coverages, and said adjustments 
shall be as negotiated and agreed to by the CITY and the CLUB.  The CLUB’s insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the CITY.  Any insurance maintained by the 
CITY shall be excess of the CLUB’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.       
 

9.2 Form of Insurance Policies.  The insurance policies to be maintained by 
the CLUB under this Section 9 shall name the CITY as an additional insured and loss payee and 
shall be with companies and with loss-payable clauses reasonably satisfactory to the CITY.  
Copies of all policies or certificates evidencing such insurance shall be delivered to the CITY 
upon request.  No such policy shall be cancelable or amendable except after thirty (30) days’ 
written notice to the CITY.   
 

10. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.  Without the prior written consent of the 
CITY in each instance, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, the CLUB shall not: 
(a) assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge or otherwise encumber this Lease or any interest in the 
CLUB’s leasehold interest in the Property in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise; 
or (b) sublet to or allow or acquiesce in the use or occupancy of all or any part of the Property by 
any person or party other than the CLUB and its employees, agents, vendors, volunteers and 
invitees in connection with the CLUB’s activities.   
 

11. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 

11.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following 
events shall constitute a default and breach of this Agreement [hereinafter “Event of Default”] by 
the CLUB: The breach or failure by the CLUB to observe or perform any of the covenants, 
conditions or terms of this Agreement to be observed or performed by the CLUB where such 
breach or failure continues for a period of ten (10) days after service of a written notice from the 
CITY to the CLUB describing such breach or failure and demanding that it be cured.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 31



  

11.2 Effect of Event of Default.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, 
the CITY may, at any time thereafter, terminate the CLUB’s lease of the Property and all of the 
CLUB’s right, title and interest in and to said Property, including the improvements located 
thereon, in the manner provided by law.  Such remedy shall be in addition to any other right or 
remedy available to the City at law or in equity on account of such Event of Default. Nothing 
contained in this section shall limit or prejudice the CITY’s right to prove and obtain as 
damages, by reason of the Event of Default, damages in the maximum amount allowed by any 
statute or rule of law in effect at the time when such damages are to be proved.  

 
12. TERMINATION.  In the event the City determines, in its sole discretion, to sell 

the Property, the City shall be entitled to terminate the CLUB's lease of the Property and all of 
the CLUB's right, title and interest in and to said Property, including the improvements located 
thereon, by giving the CLUB written notice of the CITY's intent to sell the Property at least 90 
days prior to the closing of said sale.   
 

13. CONFIDENTIALITY.  All information regarding the CITY obtained by the 
CLUB in the performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential and shall not be 
disclosed by the CLUB, its employees, volunteers, representatives or agents. 
 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached 
hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of 
this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, condition, warranties, representations or 
obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between 
the parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 

15. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a 
writing signed by all parties hereto. 
 

16. WAIVER.  No delay on the part of any party in exercising any right, power or 
privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any waiver on the part of any 
party of any right, power or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise of any right, 
power or privilege hereunder, preclude any other further exercise thereof or the exercise of any 
other right, power or privilege hereunder. 
 

17. SUCCESSORS.  Subject to the provisions of Section 10 above, this Agreement  
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns.  
 

18. SEVERABILITY.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed 
to be severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement 
shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects 
as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement. 
 

19. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence in the performance of all 
obligations and requirements of this Agreement.   
 

20. RECORDING.  This Lease Agreement shall not be recorded except by agreement 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 32



  

of both parties.  A Memorandum of Lease shall be recorded, and the recording fees, costs, taxes 
and other recording fees shall be shared equally by the parties hereto.  
 

21. NOTICES.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be 
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by 
certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
 

21.1 if to the CITY, to: 
 

City of Buckley 
David Schmidt, City Administrator 
P.O. Box 1960 
Buckley, WA 98321 

 
or to such other person or place as the CITY shall furnish to the CLUB in writing; and 
 

21.2 if to the CLUB, to: 
 
Mt. Rainier Futbol Club (MRFC)  
Scott Nall, President 
22523 - 48th St E  
Buckley, WA 98321 

 
or to such other person or place as the CLUB shall furnish to the CITY in writing.  Notices and 
payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon the earlier of actual 
receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 

22. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the state of Washington. 
 

23. VENUE.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
Pierce County, Washington. 
 

24. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially prevailing party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereto, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this section shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 

25. HEADINGS.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for 
convenience of reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

26. INDEPENDENT COUNSEL.  The CLUB acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the CITY’s legal representative to whom the CLUB does not look for any legal 
counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 33



  

 
THE CLUB ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS BEEN ADVISED TO CONSULT 

WITH INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL AND HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO DO 
SO.  BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, THE CLUB ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS 
CONSULTED WITH INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL OF ITS CHOICE OR HAS 
KNOWINGLY WAIVED THE RIGHT TO DO SO.  THERE SHALL BE NO PRESUMPTION 
OF DRAFTSMANSHIP IN FAVOR OF OR IMPLIED AGAINST ANY PARTY HERETO. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Agreement on the day 
and year first written above. 
 
 
CITY OF BUCKLEY     MOUNT RAINIER FUTBOL CLUB 
 
____________________________________ __________________________________ 
Pat Johnson, Mayor     Scott Nall, President 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                       
                                             
_____________________________________                                                
Joanne Starr, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                         DATE: ______________________                                             
City Attorney                                                                                    

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 34



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

 Agenda Date: May 24, 2016               AB16-076 
SUBJECT: Agreement- 2016-2019 
Police Guild Bargaining Unit 
Contract 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   
Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   

Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
Timeline: N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto  X 
  Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Memo, Contract w/markups & Clean Version 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached memorandum. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: AF&PS 5/17/16 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the 2016-2019 Labor 
Agreement Between the City and the Police Guild Bargaining Unit. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 35



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 
To:      Mayor & City Council 
 
Date:    May 17, 2016 
 
RE:       2016-2019 Police Guild Contract  

 
Terms and/or changes to the bargaining unit agreement between the City and the 
Buckley Police Officers Guild that resulted from the recent contract negotiations is as 
follows; 
 

1. Duration of the contract shall be for 3 ½ years beginning July 1, 2016. The current 
contract was valid through December of 2016 but with the need to deal with the 
health insurance issue both parties elected to open the contract early for 
consideration. Current terms of the 2016 agreement will remain in place until 
January 1, 2017, except for the insurance portions. 
 

2. Amends Article 10 to grant Guild employees 10 hours of holiday pay versus the 
current 8 hours to match all other City employees. This takes effect January 1, 2017. 
 

3. Amends Subsection 13.1 to extend probation from 12 months to 18 months to give 
the City time to evaluate an employee’s performance after they come out of Police 
Academy.  

 
4. Adds a new Subsection 15.1.1 to add a sliding scale for sick leave payout at 

retirement which is effective January 1, 2017.   
 

 
Contract Provisions Current Change to 

Incentive Cash 
COBRA 
Account Cash HRA 

0 - 750 hours 25% 35% 25% 35% 

751 – 1760 hours 25% 35% 50% 60% 
 

5. Amends Subsection 19.3 to increase annual cleaning allowance from $75 to $125 per 
employee which takes effect January 1, 2017.  

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 36



   

  Page 2 

 
6. Amends Article 20 to switch healthcare plans from UBET to LEOFF Trust A and 

provides a new Healthcare Reimbursement Account for each employee 
administered by the Trust Broker and a 3rd party provider. The contract proposal 
provides an initial incentive for each employee of $1,500 to offset the increased out-
of-pocket expense that results from the change in plans. It also continues the 
incentive for each contract year in the following amounts: 

 
HRA Contribution City Contribution Amount/Employee 
January, 2017 $1,000 
January, 2018 $1,000 
January, 2019 $1,000 

 
The cost of these incentive payments are to be paid from the cost savings amounts 
that the City will receive under the plan change. The initial free month offered by 
the Trust for signing up will net the City a one-time savings of $17,186. Annual cost 
savings thereafter are estimated to be approximately $18,294. Total savings after 
employee incentives are one-time $5,186 and annual $10,294 for a contract period 
total of $36,068.  

 
7. Amends Subsection 25.1 to eliminate deadlines for opening contract negotiations 

and leaves at a time when both parties agree. 
 

8. Appendix A –  
 

• Wages increase 0.75% to 3.3% in 2017 based on survey results. Officer top end is 
under top survey range by 2.5% in 2016. Scale is adjusted to minimally increase 
entry salary and then increases the adjustment at the top end to compensate; and  

 
• Wages increase 2.0% in 2018; and 

 
• Wages increase 2.0% in 2019. 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 37



{WSS1166743.DOC;1/13047.900000/ }POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final Draft) 
 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
By and Between 

 
CITY OF BUCKLEY 

 
And 

 
 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JulyJanuary 1, 20164 through December 31, 20196 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 38



 

POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final Approved) 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JANUARY JULY 1, 20164 through DECEMBER 31, 20196 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PREAMBLE ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
ARTICLE UNION RECOGNITION .............................................................................................................................. 2 

Union Recognized ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Classification Not Guaranteed ................................................................................................................................. 2 
Negotiations ............................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Shop Steward ............................................................................................................................................................. 2 
Conduct of Union Business ....................................................................................................................................... 2 
Union Access .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 
Shop Stewards ............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE UNION MEMBERSHIP ............................................................................................................................... 4 
ARTICLE ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................. 5 
ARTICLE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Grievance\ ................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Arbitrator .................................................................................................................................................................. 6 
Time Limits ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 
Election of Remedy ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE CIVIL SERVICE LAW ................................................................................................................................. 8 
ARTICLE  DISCRIMINATION ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
ARTICLE DISCIPLINARY ACTION ......................................................................................................................... 10 
ARTICLE BULLETIN BOARDS ................................................................................................................................ 14 
ARTICLE HOLIDAYS ................................................................................................................................................. 16 
ARTICLE WAGES ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE .................................................................................................................. 18 
ARTICLE PROBATIONARY PERIOD ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Probationary Period ............................................................................................................................................... 20 
ARTICLE SMALL ARMS QUALIFICATION ............................................................................................................ 21 

Small Arms Qualification (Duty Weapon) ............................................................................................................ 21 
ARTICLE SICK LEAVE .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
OTHER LEAVES ......................................................................................................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE  FAMILY ILLNESS OR BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ................................................................................. 25 
ARTICLE VACATION ................................................................................................................................................ 26 
ARTICLE UNIFORMS ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

K-9 Officer's Uniform ........................................................................................................................................... 28 
ARTICLE HEALTH AND WELFARE ........................................................................................................................ 30 

Health and Welfare ................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Medical ................................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Dental ................................................................................................................................................................... 30 
Vision .................................................................................................................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE OVERTIME ................................................................................................................................................ 32 
Callback ................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 39



 

POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final Approved) 

Court Time ............................................................................................................................................................... 32 
ARTICLE EMPLOYER RIGHTS ................................................................................................................................ 34 
ARTICLE PERFORMANCE OF WORK .................................................................................................................... 36 

Drug and Alcohol Free Work Place ....................................................................................................................... 36 
ARTICLE SAVINGS CLAUSE ................................................................................................................................... 37 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 40



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 2 

Formatted: Superscript

 
AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JANUARY JULY 1, 20164 through DECEMBER 31, 20162019 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
PREAMBLE 
 
These articles constitute an agreement between the CITY OF BUCKLEY, a political subdivision 
of the State of Washington, hereafter referred to as the Employer or City and the BUCKLEY 
POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD, hereafter referred to as the Guild. 
 
ARTICLE 1 – GUILD RECOGNITION 
 
1.1 Guild Recognized  - The City recognizes the Guild as the sole and exclusive bargaining 

agent for the purpose of establishing wages, hours and conditions of employment and the 
resolution of disputes, as authorized by Washington State Law, for all full-time and 
regular part-time employees in the classifications listed herein, but excluding all 
temporary employees (those hired to work for a fixed period of time which is less than 
nine (9) months), casual, irregular part-time (those scheduled to work less than eighty 80 
hours per month), and any employee above the rank of sergeant. 

 
1.2 Classification Not Guaranteed  - The classifications or job titles used in this Agreement 

are for descriptive purposes only.  Their use is neither an indication nor a guarantee that 
these classifications or titles will continue to be utilized by the City. 

 
1.3 Negotiations  - The City, for the life of this Agreement, agrees not to negotiate with any 

other employee organization or its representative on matters pertaining to the wages, hours 
or conditions of employment for the employees represented by the Guild as stated in this 
Article. 

 
1.4 Guild Representatives - The City will recognize two (2) Guild Representatives to 

represent the employees of the bargaining unit.  The Guild agrees to notify the City of the 
duly accredited representative of the Guild immediately upon their election or 
appointment. 

 
1.5 Conduct of Guild Business  - No Guild member shall conduct any Guild business on the 

City's time unless authorized by the City. 
 
1.6 Guild Access  - Authorized agents of the bargaining unit shall have access to the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 41



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 3 

Formatted: Superscript

Employer's establishment during working hours for the purpose of adjusting disputes, 
investigating working conditions, and ascertaining that the Agreement is being adhered to; 
provided, however, that there is no interruption of the City's working schedule. 

 
1.7 Guild Representatives - The Guild Representatives shall be granted leave from duty with 

pay for negotiation sessions with management that occur during the representative’s 
regular work shift.  For meetings that take place at a time during which such a member is 
not scheduled to be on duty, the time shall be non-compensatory. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 42



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 4 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 2 - GUILD MEMBERSHIP 
 
2.1 To the extent permissible by law it shall be a condition of employment that all employees 

of the Employer covered by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) who are members of the 
Guild in good standing on the effective date of this Agreement shall remain in good 
standing, and those who are not members in good standing on the effective date of this 
agreement shall become and remain members in good standing in the Guild.  It shall also 
be a condition of employment, to the extent permissible by law that all employees covered 
by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) and hired on or after its effective date shall, on the 
thirtieth (30th) day following the beginning of such employment, become and remain 
members in good standing in the Guild. 

 
2.2 To the extent permissible by law it shall be a condition of employment for all employees 

of the Employer covered by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) to pay to the employees' 
exclusive bargaining representative an amount of money equal to that paid by other 
employees in the bargaining unit who are members of the Guild, which shall be limited to 
an amount of money equal to the Guild’s regular and usual initiation fees and its regular 
and usual dues.  For present employees, such payments shall commence thirty-one (31) 
days following the effective date of this Agreement, and for new employees the payment 
shall start thirty-one (31) days following the date of employment; provided, however, that 
in the event an employee has a bona fide religious objection to the payment of fees and 
dues necessary for Guild membership, he/she may comply with RCW 41.56.122. 
 

2.3 The City agrees that, upon written authorization of any employee covered by this 
Agreement, it shall deduct from the pay of the employee the monthly dues as certified by 
the Secretary of the Guild and transmit such amounts to the Guild. 
 

2.4 The Guild and each employee authorizing the assignment of wages for payment of Guild 
dues hereby undertake to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from all claims, 
demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise against the Employer for or on 
account of any deduction made from the wages of such employee. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 43



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 5 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 3 - ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT 
 
3.1 In the event the City and the Guild mutually agree that, due to unforeseen circumstances, 

an emergency exits as to the administration of any section of this Agreement, then those 
sections affected by such emergency situation may be reopened to further negotiations for 
the purpose of solving such emergency. Any agreements so negotiated shall become part 
of this Agreement. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 44



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 6 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 4 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
4.1 "Grievance", as used herein, shall mean any dispute or controversy that may arise over the 

interpretation or application of an express provision of the Agreement. 
 
4.1.1 Step One - Within fifteen (15) calendar days of knowledge of the occurrence or the 

situation, condition or action giving rise to an alleged employee grievance, the employee 
affected or a Guild representative shall present the grievance, in writing, to the Chief of 
Police.  The written grievance shall contain the specific contract violation, the relevant 
facts and the remedy sought.  The Chief of Police shall provide a written response to the 
employee or Guild representative within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the 
grievance.   

 
4.1.2 Step two - If a satisfactory settlement is not reached, the written grievance shall be 

presented to the Mayor or the Mayor's designated representative within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of receipt of the Chief’s decision.  The Mayor or designee, shall schedule a 
meeting within fifteen (15) calendar days for the purpose of hearing the grievance and 
shall render a written decision within fifteen (15) calendar days after hearing the 
grievance.   

 
4.1.3 Step Three - If a satisfactory settlement is not reached in Step Two,Two; either party may 

submit the matter to arbitration within twenty (20) calendar days following the completion 
of Step Two. 

 
4.2 Arbitrator  - Should the parties be unable to agree upon an arbitrator, they shall request a 

list of seven (7) Arbitrators with offices in Oregon and/or Washington from the Public 
Employment Relations Commission. The parties shall alternatively strike names until one 
(1) name remains on the list.  The remaining person shall be the arbitrator.  The order of 
striking name shall be determined by a coin toss.   

 
4.2.1 The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties; provided, 

however, the arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from or alter, change, or 
modify the terms of this Agreement, and the arbitrator's power shall be limited to 
interpretation or application of the express terms of this Agreement, and all other matters 
shall be excluded from arbitration. 

 
4.2.2 Each party shall bear the cost of its own representation and presentation of their case.  All 

other expenses incident to the arbitration shall be divided equally. 
 
4.3 Time Limits  - At any step of the procedure time limits may be extended by mutual 

written agreement of the parties. 
 
4.4 Election of Remedy  - Should the affected employee wish to appeal disciplinary action, 

the employee may file a petition with the Civil Service Commission in accordance with 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 45



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 7 

Formatted: Superscript

the rules of the Commission.  Such petition to the Civil Service Commission waives all 
rights of appeal through the grievance procedure. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 46



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 8 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 5 - CIVIL SERVICE LAW 
 
5.1 Unless the intent is clearly expressed to the contrary, the benefits under this Agreement 

and under the Civil Service Ordinances and regulations adopted by the City or the City 
Civil Service Commission shall be cumulative.  In cases where a provision is not clearly 
specified within this Agreement, the Civil Service Commission Rules shall govern. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 47



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 9 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 6 - DISCRIMINATION 
 
6.1 Any employee member of the Guild acting in any official capacity whatsoever shall not be 

unlawfully discriminated against for his or her acts as such Officer of the Guild, so long as 
such acts do not interfere with the conduct of the City's business; nor shall there be any 
unlawful discrimination against any employee because of Guild membership or activities. 

 
6.2 The Guild recognizes the city as an equal opportunity employer and agrees with the City's 

policy of non-discrimination because of race, age, sexual orientation, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status or mental, physical or sensory disability. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 48



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 10 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 7 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
7.1 The City may discharge or suspend any employee for just cause.  Just cause is defined in 

City Ord. 1055, BUCKLEY Code 2.44.130. 
 

2.44.130 Cause for Disciplinary Action.  Any of the following are declared to be cause for 
disciplinary action against a member of the classified service by the appointing authority 
or his delegate.  This list is not intended to be all-inclusive: 

 
 (1) Incompetency, inefficiency, inattention to, or dereliction of, duty; 
 
 (2) Insubordination; 
 
 (3) Dishonesty, intemperance, immoral conduct, discourteous 

treatment of the public or a fellow employee. 
 
 (4) Mental or physical unfitness for the position which the employee 

holds; 
 
 (5) Commission of a felony or of an offense involving the use of 

intoxicants and/or drugs; provided, however, proof of commission 
of any of these acts shall be by preponderance of the evidence and 
not beyond a reasonable doubt; 

 
 (6) Drunkenness or use of intoxicating liquors, narcotics, or any other 

habit-forming drug, liquid, or preparation, to such an extent that 
the use thereof interferes with the efficiency or mental or physical 
fitness of the employee, or which precludes the employee from 
properly performing the function and duties of any of his position; 

 
 (7) Acceptance for personal use of a fee, gift, or other valuable thing in 

the course of work, when given in the hope or expectation of 
receiving a favor or better treatment than that accorded the public 
generally; 

 
 (8) Such other conduct as would show the alleged offender to be 

unsuitable for the position held.  (Ord. 1055.915, 1983). 
 
7.2 Any employee may request an investigation of his discharge or suspension or any warning 

notice.  Any such protest shall be presented to the City Mayor in writing within fifteen 
(15) calendar days after the discharge, suspension or warning notice; if a written protest is 
timely received, then the procedure set forth in Article 4 shall be followed with regard to 
such protest; provided, however, in the case of suspension or discharge there shall be no 
right to continue working during the period of suspension, or after discharge while the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 49



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 11 

Formatted: Superscript

protest is being processed.  The employee may choose to appeal a suspension to the Civil 
Service Commission rather than utilize the procedure set forth herein. 

 
7.2.1 Disciplinary Actions - Disciplinary action shall include only the following: 
 

a. Verbal Reprimand 
 b. Written Reprimand 
 c. Suspension without Pay 
 d. Demotion 
 e. Discharge 

 
Disciplinary action will normally be progressive in nature, but the level of discipline 
administered may depend upon the seriousness of the offense. 

 
7.2.2 Guild and Employee Rights - The Guild shall have the right to process any disciplinary 

action as a grievance through the grievance procedure, except for a verbal reprimand or 
written reprimand, and except for employees serving an initial probationary period who 
are discharged. 
 

7.2.3 The suspect employee and the Guild shall be entitled to Guild representation and/or legal 
representation at all meetings attended by the suspect employee where discipline is being 
considered for that suspect employee. 

 
7.3 Notice and Opportunity to Respond - Upon reaching the conclusion that just cause 

exists to discipline an employee with a suspension without pay, or a demotion, or 
discharge, the Chief of Police or his designee shall provide the employee and the Guild 
with the following prior to the administration of discipline: 

 
a. A copy of all materials a part of or related to the investigation upon which the 

allegation(s) or charge(s) are based; 
b. The directives, policies, procedures, work rules, regulations or other order of the 

City that allegedly was violated and how these were violated; 
c. What disciplinary action is being considered. 

 
7.3.1 Employee’s Response - The affected employee and the Guild shall have the opportunity 

to respond to the allegation(s) or charge(s) in writing, normally within forty-eight (48) 
hours of receiving the information and materials provided by the City in Section 7.3 above 
and to do so prior to the Pre-Disciplinary meeting, provided the Guild may request a 
reasonable extension of time to respond, which request will not be unreasonably denied by 
the Chief or his designee. 

 
7.3.2 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting - An opportunity to respond to the allegation(s) or charge(s) 

shall occur at a Pre-Disciplinary meeting conducted and presided over by the Chief of 
Police or his designee, who shall have the authority to impose or to recommend the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 50



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 12 

Formatted: Superscript

proposed disciplinary action.  Reasonable advance notice of this meeting, its time and 
place shall be given the employee and the Guild.  This meeting shall be informal.  The 
employee shall be given reasonable opportunity to be heard, to respond to the allegation(s) 
or charge(s), and to have the responses considered prior to the imposition of discipline. 

 
7.3.3 City’s Decision - Within a reasonable time, but not beyond forty-five (45) calendar days 

from the date of the Pre-Disciplinary meeting, the Chief of Police or his designee shall 
issue a written decision imposing discipline, exonerating the employee or taking such 
other action deemed appropriate. 

 
7.4 Investigative Interviews/Internal Affairs Investigations - The interview of a suspect 

employee concerning action(s) or inaction(s) which, if proved, could reasonably lead to a 
suspension without pay, demotion, or discharge for that employee, shall be conducted 
under the following conditions and procedures: 

 
a. If an employee is considered a suspect, at a reasonable time in advance of the 

investigative interview, the suspect employee shall be informed in writing, with a 
copy to the Guild, of the nature of the investigation; the specific allegations related 
thereto; and the policies, procedures and/or laws that form the basis for the 
investigation; and shall be advised that an opportunity to consult with a Guild 
representative and/or legal representative will be afforded prior to the interview. 

 
b. The requirements of Section 7.4.a of this Section 7.4 shall not apply if (1) the 

suspect employee is under investigation for violations that are punishable as 
felonies or misdemeanors under law, or (2) in the discretion of the Chief or his 
designee, notices to the suspect employee would jeopardize the administrative 
investigation. 

 
 c. The suspect employee shall have the right to have a Guild representative present 

during any interview which may reasonably result in a suspension without pay, 
demotion or discharge of the suspect employee.  The opportunity to have a Guild 
representative present at the interview or the opportunity to consult with a Guild 
representative shall not unreasonably delay the interview.  However, if the 
interview begins with the consent of the suspect employee in the absence of a 
Guild representative, but during the interview the suspect employee concludes that 
assistance is required by reason of increasing seriousness of the disciplinary 
problem, the suspect employee shall be allowed a reasonable time in which to 
obtain a Guild representative. 

 
 d. To the extent reasonably possible, all interviews under this Section shall take place 

at Police Department facilities. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 51



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 13 

Formatted: Superscript

 e. The City may schedule the interview outside of the employee’s regular working 
hours; however, in that event the appropriate overtime rate and/or irregular hours 
payment shall be made to the employee. 

 
 f. The employee shall be required to answer any question concerning a non-criminal 

matter under investigation and shall be afforded all rights and privileges to which 
the employee is entitled under State or Federal laws. 

 
 g. The employee shall not be subject to coercion, nor shall interrogator(s) make 

promises of rewards or threats of harm as inducements to answer questions. 
 
 h. During an interview, the employee shall be entitled to such reasonable 

intermissions as the employee may request for personal physical necessities. 
 
 i. All interviews shall be limited in scope to activities, circumstances, events and 

conduct that pertain to the action(s) or inaction(s) of the employee that is the 
subject of the investigation.  Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the City from 
questioning the employee about information that is developed during the course of 
the interview. 

 
 j. If the Police Department tape records the interview, a copy of the complete tape 

recorded interview of the suspect employee, noting the length of all recess periods, 
shall be furnished to the employee upon the suspect employee’s written request.  If 
the interviewed suspect employee is subsequently charged with misconduct, upon 
the written request of the suspect employee or the Guild, the City shall provide a 
complimentary copy of any tapes to the Guild on behalf of the employee. 

 
 k. Interviews and Internal Affairs investigations shall be concluded without 

unreasonable delays. 
 

l. The employee and the Guild shall be advised within a reasonable period of time, in 
writing, of the results of the investigation and what future action, if any, will be 
taken regarding the matter investigated. 

 
 m. This Article is not intended to limit the Police Department’s ability to conduct a 

fair and comprehensive investigation nor impose unreasonable time limits upon the 
conduct of such investigation. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 52



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 14 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 8 - BULLETIN BOARDS 
 
8.1 The employer agrees to provide suitable space for the bargaining unit to use as a bulletin 

board.  Postings by the bargaining unit on such boards shall be confined to official 
business of the bargaining unit that is of a non-political, non- inflammatory nature.  The 
Guild shall provide a copy of all postings to the Employer at least two (2) hours prior to 
posting, unless approved for immediate posting by the Chief of Police.  The Guild will 
remove all dated material.  All costs incident to preparing and posting the Guild material 
will be borne by the Guild, and the Guild will be responsible for maintaining its portion of 
the bulletin board in an orderly and neat fashion. 

 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 53



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 15 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 9 - EXTRA AGREEMENTS 
 
9.1 The Employer agrees not to enter into any agreement or contract with the employees, 

individually or collectively, which is inconsistent with the terms of a collective bargaining 
agreement then in effect. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 54



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 16 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 10 - HOLIDAYS 
 
10.1 The Employer shall recognize the following days as holidays; 
 
 New Year's Day   Thanksgiving Day 
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day  Day after Thanksgiving Day 
 Presidents' Day   Christmas Day 
 Federal Memorial Day        Plus two floating days to be 
 Independence Day                                    specifically and mutually agreed 
 Labor Day to between each employee and 
 Federal Veteran's Day the Chief of the Department. 
 
10.1.1  Effective January 1, 2017, all regular status employees are entitled to a ten (10) hour paid 

holiday on the aforementioned days. 
 
10.2 Holidays worked will be compensated for in the year earned by compensatory time off to 

be scheduled by mutual agreement of the employee and the Chief of the Department.  
However, if scheduling does not permit, such compensation may be carried over, but not 
to exceed six (6) such days.  In addition employees will receive 1/2 hour of straight time 
for every hour worked from 0001 to 2400 hours on the day of the Holiday. 

 
 

Formatted: Not Highlight

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 55



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 17 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 11 - WAGES 
 
11.1 Wages shall be as set forth in Appendix A to this Agreement. 
 
11.2 Out-of-Class Pay – Employees required by the Chief or designee to accept the responsi-

bilities and carry out the duties of a position or rank above that which he or she normally 
holds shall be paid at the rate for that position's rank at the minimum step level within that 
rank that results in an increase from their normal salary of at least 2.5% while so acting.  
However, such person shall not be paid in the higher wage classification until the 
employee has worked three (3) consecutive work days at the higher classification.  If any 
such employee works the above amount or more at the higher classification, he/she shall 
be paid the proper pay scale beginning with the first day so assigned. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 56



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 18 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 12 - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE AND PREMIUM PAYS 
 
12.1 Educational Increment - Employees shall receive an educational increment of eighty five 

dollars ($85) per month for an AA degree with a Police Science or Criminology major, an 
educational increment of one hundred forty five dollars ($145) per month for a BA/BS 
degree with Police Science or Criminology major and an educational increment of one 
hundred eighty dollars ($180) per month for an MA/MS degree; provided that the 
employee may receive one educational increment at a time, and also provided that the 
employee submits to the Employer adequate proof of having received such degrees within 
sixty (60) days of degree completion or within sixty (60) days of date of employment. 

  
12.2 Educational Incentive - In order to encourage the covered employees to further their 

education the Employer shall reimburse the employee for certain expenses incurred in so 
doing.  If the Chief of Police determines that a college accredited course an employee 
wishes to take on the employee's off duty time (the employee will not be paid for the time 
spent on educational programs attended pursuant to the terms of this paragraph) related to 
skills needed by the department or to further the employee's advancement within the 
department, then tuition and book expense associated with the class will be paid by the 
City, provided, however, the employee must provide a copy of his/her transcript showing 
that he/she received at least a 2.5 grade point in the course, based upon a 4.0 scale. 
Provided, further if the employee is reimbursed for the books purchased to take the 
authorized class, then the books shall belong to the police department and shall be 
delivered to the Chief at the time reimbursement is made. 

 
12.3 Field Training Officer/Specialty Pay –  

 
Field Training Officer – Any member assigned by the Chief to a 12 week or longer 
period of training shall receive an additional four percent (4%) to his/her base pay for the 
duration of the assignment. An FTO assigned to remedial training of one week or longer 
shall receive the four percent (4%) FTO pay on a weekly basis for the duration of the 
assignment. 
 
Specialty Pay – Any member who is assigned to any of the following specialty 
assignments/teams by the Chief of Police shall be entitled to specialty pay: Meth Lab 
Team, SWAT, K-9, Commercial Vehicle Enforcement, Drug Recognition Expert (DRE), 
Emergency Vehicle Operations Course (EVOC) Instructor, Firearms Instructor, Defensive 
Tactics Instructor, Collision Investigation Officer (Advanced or Reconstructionist), and 
Property Room. 
 
The Chief will assign at least one member annually to each of the following specialty 
assignments as long as there is a qualified candidate: Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 
Officer, Firearms Instructor, and Advanced Collision Investigation Officer (Advanced or 
Reconstructionist). 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 57



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 19 

Formatted: Superscript

Additionally, employees may be assigned by the Chief to one or all the above mentioned 
specialty assignments, duties or teams listed above at the same time while employed by 
the City. However, an employee shall only be entitled to collect the “full monthly stipend” 
for one assignment, duty or team according to the schedule in Table 12.3A below. 
Employees involved/assigned to more than one specialty assignment, duty or team will be 
eligible to collect a partial additional stipend per month for the second 
assignment/certification according to the schedule in Table 12.3A below. Employees will 
not be eligible for any additional compensation, according to Table 12.3A below, other 
that the initial “full stipend” and the second “partial” stipend regardless of the number of 
specialty assignments, certifications, duties or teams they are involved with. A detective 
who is currently on a CRU assignment will receive an additional 1.5% in lieu of the 2.5% 
provided for in Table 12.3A, provided that if a detective is assigned to any another 
specialty assignment, the detective would be eligible for specialty pay of 2.5% as though it 
were the first such assignment.   

 
Table 12.3 A. 

 
  

Specialty Team 
Pay/Month 

 
Special Duty 
Pay/Month 

Secondary 
Assignment 
Team/Duty 
Pay/Month 

2014 2.5% of current step of 
patrol base pay 

2.5% of  current step 
of patrol base pay 

1.5% of current step 
of patrol base pay 

 
 

12.4 Longevity – Beginning January 1, 2012 longevity pay shall be added to each 
employee’s base monthly pay according to the following schedule: 

 
Table 12.4 A 

 
Years continued  

employment 
Longevity pay in addition to normal  

monthly base pay  
10 – 14 years $65.00 per month 
15 – 19 years $92.00 per month 
20 – 24 years $120.00 per month 

25 years and above $150.00 per month 
 

Longevity pay for each employment interval shall begin on the anniversary date that the 
employee enters into the specific longevity category. Example: An employee begins to 
receive longevity pay of $65.00 per month in the 10-14 year category on the first day of 
entering their 10th year of service to the City. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 58



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 20 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 13 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
13.1 Probationary Period  - The probationary period shall be one (1) year eighteen (18) 

months from date of employment hire, during which time there must be successful 
completion of the Police Academy. A probationary employee is terminable-at-will. 

 
In the event that the employee is ill, disabled, on maternity leave or otherwise unable to 
perform his/her duties for a significant period of time during the probation period, the 
probationary period of one year may be extended by the length of time which an employee 
is absent from work.  A significant absence shall be any absence in excess of 20 calendar 
days during the year.   
 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 59



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 21 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 14 - SMALL ARMS QUALIFICATION 
 
14.1 Small Arms Qualification (Duty Weapon)  - In the event that a patrolman fires a score 

of eighty (80) or less on the quarterly firearms qualification course (as prescribed by the 
Chief of Police), he shall be required to take another test within fifteen (15) days.  Should 
he fire a score of eighty (80) or less the second time, the patrolman shall be placed on 
suspension without pay until such time as he/she successfully completes the test. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 60



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 22 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE 
 
15.1 Each employee shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours sick leave for each 

calendar month the employee works, not to be taken until after six (6) months, and 
vacation time shall count as time worked.  Those employed prior to the 15th of the month 
will be credited sick leave in the month employed.  The employee may accrue a maximum 
of one thousand seven hundred and sixty (1760) hours total sick leave.  Upon termination 
from City employment for any reason other than for cause, twenty-five percent (25) of 
unused sick leave shall be paid to an employee. Employees shall be eligible for this benefit 
as a result of voluntary separation or involuntary layoff but shall not be eligible if 
terminated for cause. Compensation shall be based upon the employee’s salary at the time 
of separation. 

 
Upon retirement from the City twenty five percent (25%) of the unused sick leave shall be 
paid to the retiring employee as a lump sum payment. The retiring employee may elect to 
have the value of the sick leave compensation remain on account with the City to be used 
towards the payment of monthly medical/dental premiums that result from continued 
enrollment with the City’s insurer through COBRA,  or some other eligible plan. Under 
this option the City shall increase the amount of compensation for sick leave payment 
from twenty-five (25) percent to thirty-five (35) percent. 
 
Upon the non-duty related death or permanent disability of an eligible “covered” employee 
of the City, a sum equal to fifty percent (50%) of the unused sick leave shall be paid to the 
employee in the case of disability or to the legal beneficiaries in the case of non-duty 
related death.   
 
Upon the duty related death of an eligible “covered” employee of the City, a sum equal to 
one-hundred percent (100%) of the unused sick leave shall be paid to the legal 
beneficiaries of the employee.   
 

15.1.1  Effective January 1, 2017 the provision of 15.1 that deals with sick leave compensation at 
retirement shall be modified to read as follows: 

 
Upon retirement from the City unused sick leave shall be paid to the retiring employee as 
a lump sum payment according to the schedule in Table 15A below. 
 

Accrued Sick Leave Payout for Retirement Purposes 
Accrued Hours Lump Sum 

Payment 
COBRA or HRA 

Account 
0 – 750 hours  25% 35% 
751 – 1760 hours 50% 60% 

 
The retiring employee may elect to have the value of the sick leave compensation remain 
on account with the City to be used towards the payment of monthly medical/dental 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5"

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 61



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 23 

Formatted: Superscript

premiums that result from continued enrollment with the City’s insurer through COBRA,  
or some other eligible plan. Under this option the City shall increase the amount of 
compensation for sick leave payment according to the schedule in Table 15A above. 

 
15.2 The Employer may require a doctor's verification of illness should an employee request 

sick leave for two (2) or more continuous shifts.  
 
15.3 Use of Sick Leave - Sick leave may be used for any of the following reasons and 

purposes: 
 
 (a) Personal illness or incapacity of the employee 
 (b) Forced quarantine of the employee by a public health official 
 (c) As set forth in RCW 49.12.270, family leave 
 (d) Preventative health care of the employee 

(e)    An illness, injury or preventative health care of an immediate member of the 
employee's family which requires the employee's attendance subject to the City's 
Personnel Policy & Procedures Manual 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 62



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 24 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 16 - OTHER LEAVES 
 
16.1 Leave of absence without pay may be granted under the provisions of Rule XIV, Section 1 

of the City of Buckley Civil Service Rules and Regulations for the Police Department. 
 
16.2 The Employer may require that an employee undergo a fit for duty evaluation. The 

employee may be placed on Administrative leave with pay until the fit for duty evaluation 
is complete. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 63



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 25 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 17 - FAMILY ILLNESS OR BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
17.1 Leave shall be granted upon request to an employee up to a maximum of five (5) days per 

calendar year with pay when absence from work is required because of serious illness or 
death of a member of the immediate family. 

 
17.2 Immediate family of the employee shall be defined as his/her spouse, son, daughter, 

parents, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents or any other relative to 
the first degree of relation to the employee.  Family illness and bereavement leave cannot 
be accumulated. 

 
17.3 An employee may request two (2) additional days' leave for extended travel in conjunction 

with family illness and bereavement leave if extended travel is required.  This request 
must be approved by the Chief of Police and will be charged against accrued sick leave, 
vacation leave, holiday leave or compensatory time.  If no time off has been accrued, then 
said leave shall be without pay. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 64



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 26 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 18 - VACATION 
 
18.1 Each employee shall be entitled to vacation upon the anniversary date of their employment 

with the City, and it shall be taken as follows: 
 
  One Year     12 days 
  Two years     13 days 
  Three and four years    14 days 
  Five and six years    15 days 
  Seven and eight years    16 days 
  Nine and ten years    18 days 
  Eleven and twelve years   19 days 
  Thirteen and fourteen years   20 days 
  Fifteen years     22 days 
  Twenty years     25 days 
 
18.1.1 Annual vacation shall accrue at one-twelfth (1/12) the annual accrual for each month of 

service. 
 
18.2 Each employee's vacation shall be taken at a time mutually agreed to between the 

employer and employee. 
 
18.3 Should an employee leave for any reason, he/she shall be paid for all accrued and unused 

vacation days through the month preceding that in which the employee leaves, based on 
the hourly wage at the time of leaving.  A "month" shall be defined as one twelfth (1/12) 
of the anniversary year.  A "day" shall be defined as an eight (8) hour work day within any 
twenty-four (24) hour period. 
 

18.4 Vacations will be used in the year that such days are credited to the employee as mutually 
agreed to.  However, such vacation time may be carried over into the next year, but not to 
exceed a total of two-hundred and sixty (260) hours, unless scheduling of personnel 
doesn't allow full use of vacation time.  Written request and verification of scheduling 
conflicts shall be submitted to the City by the Chief of Police.  

 
18.5 Employees may elect to take a portion of their annual carryover balance of vacation time 

in cash as opposed to taking the time off. The Salary Schedule will be used to determine 
the hourly rate of when the time was earned and the employee will be paid that equivalent 
in cash. The employee may exercise the option to buy back vacation hours up to two times 
in each calendar year. The employee may elect to buy back up to forty (40) hours in June 
and forty (40) hours in December or the full eighty (80) hours in December. The decision 
to exercise the option must be made and submitted to the Finance Director prior to May 30 
for a June buy back or November 30 for a December buy back. The buy/back payment(s), 
if chosen, will occur in June and/or December of the year in which the request is 
submitted. The maximum hours that may be exercised for vacation buy-back is eighty (80) 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 65



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 27 

Formatted: Superscript

hours in any calendar year, on an hour for hour basis.  

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 66



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 28 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 19 - UNIFORMS 
 
19.1 The City shall implement a quartermaster system for uniforms.  All new employees to 

which this Agreement applies shall be issued a complete uniform at the time of hire.  The 
employees will turn into the Chief any part of the uniform that is worn out or otherwise 
not fit for duty use.  The Chief shall then provide for the issuance of a replacement.  The 
Chief shall determine what items will be considered as part of the uniform and each 
employee and the Guild shall receive a copy of the uniform list.  The list may be changed 
at the Chief's sole discretion.  However, if new items are added that are not part of the 
department uniform at the time this Agreement is executed, then the Employer will be 
responsible for issuing the new items.  With regards to the items of clothing the Chief, in 
his sole discretion, may change the type and styling of the uniforms but shall not decrease 
the number of pieces of clothing to be made available to the officers under the 
quartermaster system.  All uniforms shall be and remain City properties and shall be 
returned upon employment termination. 

 
19.2 Department patches will be supplied for each uniform shirt, coat, sweater and jumpsuit. 
 
19.2.1 K-9 Officer's Uniform  
  
 Same as Patrol Officers Uniform, EXCEPT: 
 
  Jumpsuits as needed 
  Shirt - 1 summer 1 winter 
  Trousers - 1 
 
19.2.2 Patrol Officer's Uniform 
 
  Hat - 1 
  Neck Tie - 1 
  Neck tie Clasp - 1 
  Collar Brass - 2 
  Shirt - 2 summer 2 winter 
  Trouser - 3; Probationers -2 
  Underbelt - 1 
  Utility Belt - 1 
  Weapon Holster - 1 
  Double Ammunition Pouch -1 
  Handcuff Case - 1* 
  Handcuffs - 1* 
   *Officer's option to have a second case and second handcuff. 
  Knife Case - 1 at officer's option 
  Knife - 1 at officer's option 
  Chemical Agent Holster - 1 as authorized 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 67



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 29 

Formatted: Superscript

  Flashlight Ring - 1 
  Key Keeper - 1 
  Belt Keepers - 4 
  Shoes - 1 pr 
  Boots - 1 pr 
  Ballistic Proof Vest - 1 
  Coat - 1 
  Uniform Badge - 2 
  Portable Radio Holder - 1 
  Portable Radio Charger - 1 
  Portable Radio - 1 
  Flashlight - 1 
  Flashlight Charger - 1 
  Duty Weapon - 1 
  Name Tag - 2 
  Gloves - 1 pr 
  Jumpsuit - 1 
  Sweater - 1 
  Chemical Agent - 1 as authorized 
  Duty Ammunition - 50 rounds 
 
19.3 Cleaning Allowance - Employees hired prior to June 1, of any contact year shall receive 

seventy-five dollars ($75.00) each year to defray the expense of cleaning the clothing 
portion of the uniform. 

 
19.3.1 Effective January 1, 2017 the cleaning allowance per employee shall increase from 

seventy-five dollars ($75.00) to one-hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) each year. 
 

19.4 The Employer will issue a service side arm to each employee that is required to carry a 
firearm as a condition of employment.  Employees shall carry an Employer issued duty 
weapon while on duty.  The employee shall maintain the weapon in good working order 
and shall return it to the Employer when requested. 

 
19.5 All departmental uniforms issued to members shall be maintained in proper order.  Should 

it be determined that equipment is damaged, lost, stolen or becomes unusable as a direct 
result of negligence on the part of the employee, that individual may be held financially 
responsible for all, or a portion of, the replacement or repair costs.  Negligence in this 
regard will be any gross or deliberate disregard for the care or custody of the equipment 
involved. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 68



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 30 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 20 - HEALTH AND WELFARE 
 
20.1 Health and Welfare  - The Employer agrees to make contributions, as set forth in 

succeeding sections, for employee healthcare coverage.  These contributions shall be made 
in behalf of every employee covered by this Agreement who was compensated eighty (80) 
or more hours in the preceding month. 

 
20.1.1 Medical - The Employer shall pay 90% of the cost of premiums required to maintain the 

medical and vision benefits under Plan A-4 active medical composite rates for the 
employee, spouse and dependents, offered by the United Employee Benefits TrustLEOFF 
Trust ("UEBT"). 

 
20.1.2 Dental  - Effective July 1, 2002, participation in the Washington Dental Service Plan E 

and Orthodontia Rider Plan IV shall commence.  Employer shall pay 90% of the cost of 
premiums to maintain participation in the Washington Dental Plan for the employee, 
spouse and dependents. 

 
20.1.3 Vision  - The Employer shall pay 90% of the cost of premiums required for vision care 

benefits under Plan Vision III offered by UEBT for the employee, spouse and dependents.  
 
20.1.420.1.3 Employee Healthcare Contribution - Beginning January 1, 2012 employees shall 

begin contributing 10% of the cost of premiums through payroll withdrawal to maintain 
current levels of healthcare coverage. All insurance premiums will be subject to applicable 
payroll taxes as required by the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
The City will not provide duplication of health care coverage to an employee who is 
married to another employee of the City. One spouse may be named as the policy holder 
and the other as a covered spouse; OR each may be a policy holder, but in that case neither 
may be listed as a covered spouse. 
 

20.1.4 Health Retirement Account (HRA) Contribution – Pursuant to the term of this Agreement 
the Employer will initiate a change in healthcare benefit provider from UBET to LEOFF 
Trust. In conjunction with this the Guild shall work with LEOFF Trust to identify and 
activate a Health Retirement Account (HRA) for the Guild employees.  It is anticipated 
that these changes will occur and become effective July 1, 2016. Within 30 days of 
notification and verification of this change the Employer will deposit $1,500 in invidual 
HRA accounts established for each Guild employee to assist with additional out-of-pocket 
expenses resulting from this benefit change. 
 
In addition the Employer agrees to make annual contributions to each employee’s HRA 
account according the schedule in the Table below. 
 

HRA Contribution City Contribution 
Amount/Employee 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 69



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 31 

Formatted: Superscript

January, 2017 $1,000 
January, 2018 $1,000 
January, 2019 $1,000 

   
  
20.2 The Employer shall pay ninety percent (90%) of the premiums set forth above through the 

term of this Agreement. 
 
20.3 Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP). Guild employees shall be eligible for the 

Employer’s ERIP pursuant to Section 6.20 of the Personnel Policies and Procedures 
Manual.  

  
This program is subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget and the City 
retains the right to designate the number of positions to fund annually and the right to deny 
an application or delay its effective date in the best interests of the City. The City may, in 
its sole discretion terminate the program at any time or, suspend it for any fiscal year, if 
insufficient funding is provided in the budget, provided however that such suspension 
shall not impact the rights or benefits of any employee who has retired under the program 
in a prior fiscal year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 70



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 32 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 21 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
21.1 Employees defined as "any employee in law enforcement activities" as set forth in 29 

CFR, 553.211 shall receive overtime compensation for all hours worked in excess of one 
hundred sixty hours (160) in any twenty-eight (28) day work period.  Overtime 
opportunities shall be offered on a seniority basis, regardless of leave status, for each 
opportunity unless priority or specialized training is required. Employees shall be offered 
overtime through a reasonable effort to contact and offer the employee the overtime 
opportunity. For purposes of this provision reasonable shall be defined as one attempt to 
contact the employee at the emergency contact number provided the City by the employee. 
Employee’s that are contacted for overtime on a seniority basis, but because of their status 
are unable to report for duty at the given time and place are considered to be ineligible for 
the overtime.   Seniority assignment does not apply to officers held over to finish work 
from their shift.  Employees are eligible for overtime coverage for jail staff shifts on a 
seniority basis per the discretion of the Chief of Police. 

 
21.1 Callback  - Employees called back after the completion of a regular work shift or 

immediately preceding a regular work shift shall be guaranteed three (3) hours at their 
applicable straight time rate of pay.   

 
21.2 Standby practice is not to be used. 
 
21.3 Work Schedule - A tentative work schedule shall be posted five (5) days prior to shift 

change and, when such change is made, the posted schedule shall remain in effect for not 
less than twenty-eight (28) nor more than ninety (90) days.   

 
21.4 Shift Exchanges - Exchanging shifts and voluntary shift changes between employees will 

be allowed, provided such changes are approved in writing prior to the shift by their 
immediate supervisor, Police Chief or his/her designee.  In addition, the Employer shall 
maintain records of all time traded by the employees and the time traded must be paid 
back to the employee taking the shift within sixty (60) days from the date of the traded 
shift.  All Exchanged shifts or voluntary shift changes shall not be considered overtime 
hours worked or be used in overtime computation unless overtime shifts are being 
exchanged. 

 
21.5 Court Time  - Employees shall be paid at the rate of one-and-one-half (1 ½) times their 

applicable hourly wage for any duty-related municipal, district or civil court appearance 
during off-duty time, with a guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours overtime.  Juvenile and 
Superior Court, and Department of Licensing Hearing appearances, when required off 
duty, will be paid at the rate of one-and- one-half (1 1/2) times their applicable hourly rate 
from one (1) hour before subpoena time to time of release each day.  The City will only 
pay overtime to an employee for a civil service hearing if the employee receives a 
subpoena from the City, or if subpoenaed by the individuals for whom the Civil Service 
Hearing is for, if it regards an event or incident that is related to department duties.  In 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 71



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 33 

Formatted: Superscript

addition, employees will reimburse the City for all moneys received as compensation for 
subpoenaed appearances and witness fees paid to the employees by the court or any other 
party, when the employees are also paid by the City pursuant to this section. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 72



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 34 

Formatted: Superscript

 
ARTICLE 22 - EMPLOYER RIGHTS 
 
22.1 The Guild recognizes that the City possesses the sole right, authority and responsibility 

to operate and direct the bargaining unit employees of the Police Department in all 
aspects, including, but not limited to, all rights and authority exercised by the  City prior 
to the execution of this agreement, or any predecessor agreements,  except as modified 
by this Agreement.  Subject to the City’s obligation to bargain pursuant to RCW 41.56 et 
seq., which rights include, but are not limited to: 

 
22.1.1 The right to determine its mission, policies and all standards of service offered to the 

public; 
 
22.1.2 To plan, direct, schedule, control and determine the operations or services to be 

conducted by the bargaining unit employees of the Police Department; 
 
22.1.3 To determine the methods, means and number of personnel needed to carry out the 

departmental operations and services. It is understood by the parties that every incidental 
duty connected with operations enumerated in job descriptions is not always specifically 
described, but nevertheless, it is intended by both parties that all such duties shall be 
performed by the Employee; 

 
22.1.4 To direct the work force; 
 
22.1.5 To hire and assign or to transfer employees within the Department or police related 

functions; 
 
22.1.6 To promote, demote, suspend, discipline or discharge employees for just cause except 

for probationary employees, who can be terminated without cause; 
 
22.1.7 To lay off or relieve employees of duty for lack of work or funds or because of the 

occurrence of conditions beyond the control of the City, or where continuation of work 
would be wasteful and unproductive in the sole opinion of City officials; 

 
22.1.8 To make, publish, and enforce rules and regulations including reasonable rules 

pertaining to secondary employment; 
 
22.1.9 To introduce and use new or improved methods, equipment or facilities; 
 
22.1.10 To contract for goods; 
 
22.1.11 To take any and all actions that may be necessary to carry out the mission of the City and 

the Police Department in situations of civil emergency or Marshall law. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 73



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 35 

Formatted: Superscript

22.2 If, in the sole discretion of the Mayor, or other authorized City representative, it is 
determined that a civil emergency or Marshall law condition exists, including, but not 
limited to, riots, civil disorders, tornado conditions, floods, accidents or other similar 
situations, the provisions of this Agreement may be suspended by  the Mayor or his 
designee.  It is agreed that the processing of any grievance occurring during this activity 
beyond Step A of the grievance procedure shall be delayed until a time when this 
condition or the results of the condition no longer hamper normal business activity. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 74



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 36 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 23 - PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 
23.1 The Guild and the City agree that the public interest requires the efficient and   

uninterrupted performance of emergency service.  To this end the Guild and the City 
pledge their best efforts to avoid or eliminate any conduct contrary to this objective. 

 
23.2 The Guild and the City agree that during the life of this Agreement the Guild will not 

cause, encourage or participate in any strike (including strike picketing), slow down, walk 
out or work stoppage.  Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit political activity of 
individual members, or the Guild as prescribed in RCW 41.06.250. During the term of this 
Agreement, the City shall not cause, permit, or engage in any lockout of its employees. 
 

23.3 In the event of a strike (including strike picketing), slow down, walk out or work  
stoppage, the Guild shall within twenty four (24) hours, issue a public statement 
disavowing such action and requesting the employees to return to work.  A copy of this 
statement will be simultaneously supplied to the City.  The Guild shall also make every 
effort to bring about the resumption of normal operations.  Within twenty four (24) hours 
after the commencement of a strike (including strike picketing, slow down, walk out or 
work stoppage), the Guild shall advise the City in writing of their effort to resume normal 
operations. 

 
23.4 Failure by the Guild to comply with the provisions of this Article shall be cause for the 

City to terminate this Agreement, in addition to other remedies that may be available; in 
such a case, the City will give written notice to the Guild President.  Failure to respond to 
the Guild’s request to return to work by an individual's work shift shall cause disciplinary 
action to be taken.  This action may include suspension or immediate dismissal.  The sole 
question which may be processed through the grievance and arbitration procedure in the 
event of discipline or discharge for violation of this Article is whether in fact the employee 
did violate this Article.   

 
23.5 No individual shall receive any portion of his/her salary or benefits as provided by the 

Employer and in accordance with the applicable law while engaging in activities in 
violation of this Article. 

 
23.6 Drug and Alcohol Free Work Place  - The parties shall endeavor to maintain a drug free 

work place.  Refer to City Resolution No. 89-6. 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 75



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 37 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
24.1 If any article or section of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by 

any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Agreement shall continue in full 
force and effect.  The Article and Section held invalid shall be modified as required by law 
or the tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or shall be renegotiated for the purpose of 
adequate replacement.  If such negotiations shall not result in mutually satisfactory 
agreement, the parties agree to be bound by the position of a tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction or a tribunal agreed to by the parties. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 76



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 38 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 25 - NOTICE TO OTHER PARTY 
 
25.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the period noted in the 

preamble of this Agreement.  At least one hundred and fifty (150) days, but not more than 
two hundred and ten (210) days prior to the termination date, either party may request that 
negotiations be opened for a successor contract and a mutually acceptable meeting date 
shall be set not more than twenty (20) days following such request. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 77



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 39 

Formatted: Superscript

ARTICLE 26 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
26.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from January July 1, 20164 through 

December 31, 20162019. 
 
 SIGNED this ________ day of ________________2014. 
 
 
     
 BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’   CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 GUILD 
 
 
 BY: _________________________   BY: _________________________ 
  Jeff Plaster, President                Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
 
        BY: _________________________ 
         Dave Schmidt 
         City Administrator 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 78



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 40 

Formatted: Superscript

 
*APPENDIX A* 

to the 
AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JANUARY JULY 1, 20164 through DECEMBER 31, 20162019 
 
A.1 The monthly rates of pay for Employees covered by this Agreement shall be as follows: 
 

Police Department Employee Salaries (4.0%) 
(January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,832  $5,041  $5,303  $5,516  $5,730  $5,882  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,025  $5,243  $5,515  $5,736  $5,959  $6,117  
Sergeant $5,363  $5,596  $5,886  $6,122  $6,360  $6,529  

Police Department Employee Salaries (0.75%-3.3%) 
(January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,868  $5,112  $5,367  $5,636  $5,917  $6,076  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,063  $5,316  $5,582  $5,861  $6,154  $6,319  
Sergeant $5,417  $5,688  $5,973  $6,271  $6,585  $6,761  

Police Department Employee Salaries (2.0%) 
(January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,966  $5,214  $5,475  $5,748  $6,036  $6,198  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,164  $5,422  $5,694  $5,978  $6,277  $6,446  
Sergeant $5,526  $5,802  $6,092  $6,397  $6,717  $6,897  

Police Department Employee Salaries (2.0%) 
(January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $5,065  $5,318  $5,584  $5,863  $6,156  $6,322  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,268  $5,531  $5,807  $6,098  $6,403  $6,574  
Sergeant $5,636  $5,918  $6,214  $6,525  $6,851  $7,035  

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 79



 

20164-20196 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (Final ExecutedCity 1st working draft )  
 

Page 41 

Formatted: Superscript

 
 
Paychecks will be issued on the last business day of the month.  Draw checks shall be issued on 
the fifteenth (15th) of the month.   
 

• Draw day on Saturday or Friday holiday – check issued the preceding City-scheduled 
workday. 

 
• Draw day on Sunday or Monday holiday – check issued the following City-scheduled 

workday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 SIGNED this _______________ day of __________________, 20142016. 
 
 
 
 
 BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’   CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 GUILD 
 
 
 
 BY: _________________________   BY: _________________________ 
  Jeff Plaster, President                    Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
 
        BY: _________________________ 
         Dave Schmidt 
         City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 80



2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council) 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
By and Between 

 
CITY OF BUCKLEY 

 
And 

 
 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2019 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 81



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council) 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JULY 1, 2016 through DECEMBER 31, 2019 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PREAMBLE ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
ARTICLE UNION RECOGNITION .............................................................................................................................. 2 

Union Recognized ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Classification Not Guaranteed ................................................................................................................................. 2 
Negotiations ............................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Shop Steward ............................................................................................................................................................. 2 
Conduct of Union Business ....................................................................................................................................... 2 
Union Access .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 
Shop Stewards ............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE UNION MEMBERSHIP ............................................................................................................................... 4 
ARTICLE ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................. 5 
ARTICLE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Grievance\ ................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Arbitrator .................................................................................................................................................................. 6 
Time Limits ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 
Election of Remedy ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE CIVIL SERVICE LAW ................................................................................................................................. 8 
ARTICLE  DISCRIMINATION ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
ARTICLE DISCIPLINARY ACTION ......................................................................................................................... 10 
ARTICLE BULLETIN BOARDS ................................................................................................................................ 14 
ARTICLE HOLIDAYS ................................................................................................................................................. 16 
ARTICLE WAGES ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE .................................................................................................................. 18 
ARTICLE PROBATIONARY PERIOD ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Probationary Period ............................................................................................................................................... 20 
ARTICLE SMALL ARMS QUALIFICATION ............................................................................................................ 21 

Small Arms Qualification (Duty Weapon) ............................................................................................................ 21 
ARTICLE SICK LEAVE .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
OTHER LEAVES ......................................................................................................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE  FAMILY ILLNESS OR BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ................................................................................. 25 
ARTICLE VACATION ................................................................................................................................................ 26 
ARTICLE UNIFORMS ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

K-9 Officer's Uniform ........................................................................................................................................... 28 
ARTICLE HEALTH AND WELFARE ........................................................................................................................ 30 

Health and Welfare ................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Medical ................................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Dental ................................................................................................................................................................... 30 
Vision .................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

ARTICLE OVERTIME ................................................................................................................................................ 32 
Callback ................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 82



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council) 

Court Time ............................................................................................................................................................... 32 
ARTICLE EMPLOYER RIGHTS ................................................................................................................................ 34 
ARTICLE PERFORMANCE OF WORK .................................................................................................................... 36 

Drug and Alcohol Free Work Place ....................................................................................................................... 36 
ARTICLE SAVINGS CLAUSE ................................................................................................................................... 37 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 83



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 2 
 

AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JULY 1, 2016 through DECEMBER 31, 2019 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
PREAMBLE 
 
These articles constitute an agreement between the CITY OF BUCKLEY, a political subdivision 
of the State of Washington, hereafter referred to as the Employer or City and the BUCKLEY 
POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD, hereafter referred to as the Guild. 
 
ARTICLE 1 – GUILD RECOGNITION 
 
1.1 Guild Recognized  - The City recognizes the Guild as the sole and exclusive bargaining 

agent for the purpose of establishing wages, hours and conditions of employment and the 
resolution of disputes, as authorized by Washington State Law, for all full-time and 
regular part-time employees in the classifications listed herein, but excluding all 
temporary employees (those hired to work for a fixed period of time which is less than 
nine (9) months), casual, irregular part-time (those scheduled to work less than eighty 80 
hours per month), and any employee above the rank of sergeant. 

 
1.2 Classification Not Guaranteed  - The classifications or job titles used in this Agreement 

are for descriptive purposes only.  Their use is neither an indication nor a guarantee that 
these classifications or titles will continue to be utilized by the City. 

 
1.3 Negotiations  - The City, for the life of this Agreement, agrees not to negotiate with any 

other employee organization or its representative on matters pertaining to the wages, hours 
or conditions of employment for the employees represented by the Guild as stated in this 
Article. 

 
1.4 Guild Representatives - The City will recognize two (2) Guild Representatives to 

represent the employees of the bargaining unit.  The Guild agrees to notify the City of the 
duly accredited representative of the Guild immediately upon their election or 
appointment. 

 
1.5 Conduct of Guild Business  - No Guild member shall conduct any Guild business on the 

City's time unless authorized by the City. 
 
1.6 Guild Access  - Authorized agents of the bargaining unit shall have access to the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 84



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 3 
Employer's establishment during working hours for the purpose of adjusting disputes, 
investigating working conditions, and ascertaining that the Agreement is being adhered to; 
provided, however, that there is no interruption of the City's working schedule. 

 
1.7 Guild Representatives - The Guild Representatives shall be granted leave from duty with 

pay for negotiation sessions with management that occur during the representative’s 
regular work shift.  For meetings that take place at a time during which such a member is 
not scheduled to be on duty, the time shall be non-compensatory. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 85



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 4 
ARTICLE 2 - GUILD MEMBERSHIP 
 
2.1 To the extent permissible by law it shall be a condition of employment that all employees 

of the Employer covered by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) who are members of the 
Guild in good standing on the effective date of this Agreement shall remain in good 
standing, and those who are not members in good standing on the effective date of this 
agreement shall become and remain members in good standing in the Guild.  It shall also 
be a condition of employment, to the extent permissible by law that all employees covered 
by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) and hired on or after its effective date shall, on the 
thirtieth (30th) day following the beginning of such employment, become and remain 
members in good standing in the Guild. 

 
2.2 To the extent permissible by law it shall be a condition of employment for all employees 

of the Employer covered by this Agreement (see Article 1.1) to pay to the employees' 
exclusive bargaining representative an amount of money equal to that paid by other 
employees in the bargaining unit who are members of the Guild, which shall be limited to 
an amount of money equal to the Guild’s regular and usual initiation fees and its regular 
and usual dues.  For present employees, such payments shall commence thirty-one (31) 
days following the effective date of this Agreement, and for new employees the payment 
shall start thirty-one (31) days following the date of employment; provided, however, that 
in the event an employee has a bona fide religious objection to the payment of fees and 
dues necessary for Guild membership, he/she may comply with RCW 41.56.122. 
 

2.3 The City agrees that, upon written authorization of any employee covered by this 
Agreement, it shall deduct from the pay of the employee the monthly dues as certified by 
the Secretary of the Guild and transmit such amounts to the Guild. 
 

2.4 The Guild and each employee authorizing the assignment of wages for payment of Guild 
dues hereby undertake to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from all claims, 
demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise against the Employer for or on 
account of any deduction made from the wages of such employee. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 86



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 5 
ARTICLE 3 - ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT 
 
3.1 In the event the City and the Guild mutually agree that, due to unforeseen circumstances, 

an emergency exits as to the administration of any section of this Agreement, then those 
sections affected by such emergency situation may be reopened to further negotiations for 
the purpose of solving such emergency. Any agreements so negotiated shall become part 
of this Agreement. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 87



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 6 
ARTICLE 4 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
4.1 "Grievance", as used herein, shall mean any dispute or controversy that may arise over the 

interpretation or application of an express provision of the Agreement. 
 
4.1.1 Step One - Within fifteen (15) calendar days of knowledge of the occurrence or the 

situation, condition or action giving rise to an alleged employee grievance, the employee 
affected or a Guild representative shall present the grievance, in writing, to the Chief of 
Police.  The written grievance shall contain the specific contract violation, the relevant 
facts and the remedy sought.  The Chief of Police shall provide a written response to the 
employee or Guild representative within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the 
grievance.   

 
4.1.2 Step two - If a satisfactory settlement is not reached, the written grievance shall be 

presented to the Mayor or the Mayor's designated representative within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of receipt of the Chief’s decision.  The Mayor or designee, shall schedule a 
meeting within fifteen (15) calendar days for the purpose of hearing the grievance and 
shall render a written decision within fifteen (15) calendar days after hearing the 
grievance.   

 
4.1.3 Step Three - If a satisfactory settlement is not reached in Step Two; either party may 

submit the matter to arbitration within twenty (20) calendar days following the completion 
of Step Two. 

 
4.2 Arbitrator  - Should the parties be unable to agree upon an arbitrator, they shall request a 

list of seven (7) Arbitrators with offices in Oregon and/or Washington from the Public 
Employment Relations Commission. The parties shall alternatively strike names until one 
(1) name remains on the list.  The remaining person shall be the arbitrator.  The order of 
striking name shall be determined by a coin toss.   

 
4.2.1 The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties; provided, 

however, the arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from or alter, change, or 
modify the terms of this Agreement, and the arbitrator's power shall be limited to 
interpretation or application of the express terms of this Agreement, and all other matters 
shall be excluded from arbitration. 

 
4.2.2 Each party shall bear the cost of its own representation and presentation of their case.  All 

other expenses incident to the arbitration shall be divided equally. 
 
4.3 Time Limits  - At any step of the procedure time limits may be extended by mutual 

written agreement of the parties. 
 
4.4 Election of Remedy  - Should the affected employee wish to appeal disciplinary action, 

the employee may file a petition with the Civil Service Commission in accordance with 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 88



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 7 
the rules of the Commission.  Such petition to the Civil Service Commission waives all 
rights of appeal through the grievance procedure. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 89



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 8 
ARTICLE 5 - CIVIL SERVICE LAW 
 
5.1 Unless the intent is clearly expressed to the contrary, the benefits under this Agreement 

and under the Civil Service Ordinances and regulations adopted by the City or the City 
Civil Service Commission shall be cumulative.  In cases where a provision is not clearly 
specified within this Agreement, the Civil Service Commission Rules shall govern. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 90



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 9 
ARTICLE 6 - DISCRIMINATION 
 
6.1 Any employee member of the Guild acting in any official capacity whatsoever shall not be 

unlawfully discriminated against for his or her acts as such Officer of the Guild, so long as 
such acts do not interfere with the conduct of the City's business; nor shall there be any 
unlawful discrimination against any employee because of Guild membership or activities. 

 
6.2 The Guild recognizes the city as an equal opportunity employer and agrees with the City's 

policy of non-discrimination because of race, age, sexual orientation, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status or mental, physical or sensory disability. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 91



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 10 
ARTICLE 7 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
7.1 The City may discharge or suspend any employee for just cause.  Just cause is defined in 

City Ord. 1055, BUCKLEY Code 2.44.130. 
 

2.44.130 Cause for Disciplinary Action.  Any of the following are declared to be cause for 
disciplinary action against a member of the classified service by the appointing authority 
or his delegate.  This list is not intended to be all-inclusive: 

 
 (1) Incompetency, inefficiency, inattention to, or dereliction of, duty; 
 
 (2) Insubordination; 
 
 (3) Dishonesty, intemperance, immoral conduct, discourteous 

treatment of the public or a fellow employee. 
 
 (4) Mental or physical unfitness for the position which the employee 

holds; 
 
 (5) Commission of a felony or of an offense involving the use of 

intoxicants and/or drugs; provided, however, proof of commission 
of any of these acts shall be by preponderance of the evidence and 
not beyond a reasonable doubt; 

 
 (6) Drunkenness or use of intoxicating liquors, narcotics, or any other 

habit-forming drug, liquid, or preparation, to such an extent that 
the use thereof interferes with the efficiency or mental or physical 
fitness of the employee, or which precludes the employee from 
properly performing the function and duties of any of his position; 

 
 (7) Acceptance for personal use of a fee, gift, or other valuable thing in 

the course of work, when given in the hope or expectation of 
receiving a favor or better treatment than that accorded the public 
generally; 

 
 (8) Such other conduct as would show the alleged offender to be 

unsuitable for the position held.   
 
7.2 Any employee may request an investigation of his discharge or suspension or any warning 

notice.  Any such protest shall be presented to the City Mayor in writing within fifteen 
(15) calendar days after the discharge, suspension or warning notice; if a written protest is 
timely received, then the procedure set forth in Article 4 shall be followed with regard to 
such protest; provided, however, in the case of suspension or discharge there shall be no 
right to continue working during the period of suspension, or after discharge while the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 92



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 11 
protest is being processed.  The employee may choose to appeal a suspension to the Civil 
Service Commission rather than utilize the procedure set forth herein. 

 
7.2.1 Disciplinary Actions - Disciplinary action shall include only the following: 
 

a. Verbal Reprimand 
 b. Written Reprimand 
 c. Suspension without Pay 
 d. Demotion 
 e. Discharge 

 
Disciplinary action will normally be progressive in nature, but the level of discipline 
administered may depend upon the seriousness of the offense. 

 
7.2.2 Guild and Employee Rights - The Guild shall have the right to process any disciplinary 

action as a grievance through the grievance procedure, except for a verbal reprimand or 
written reprimand, and except for employees serving an initial probationary period who 
are discharged. 
 

7.2.3 The suspect employee and the Guild shall be entitled to Guild representation and/or legal 
representation at all meetings attended by the suspect employee where discipline is being 
considered for that suspect employee. 

 
7.3 Notice and Opportunity to Respond - Upon reaching the conclusion that just cause 

exists to discipline an employee with a suspension without pay, or a demotion, or 
discharge, the Chief of Police or his designee shall provide the employee and the Guild 
with the following prior to the administration of discipline: 

 
a. A copy of all materials a part of or related to the investigation upon which the 

allegation(s) or charge(s) are based; 
b. The directives, policies, procedures, work rules, regulations or other order of the 

City that allegedly was violated and how these were violated; 
c. What disciplinary action is being considered. 

 
7.3.1 Employee’s Response - The affected employee and the Guild shall have the opportunity 

to respond to the allegation(s) or charge(s) in writing, normally within forty-eight (48) 
hours of receiving the information and materials provided by the City in Section 7.3 above 
and to do so prior to the Pre-Disciplinary meeting, provided the Guild may request a 
reasonable extension of time to respond, which request will not be unreasonably denied by 
the Chief or his designee. 

 
7.3.2 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting - An opportunity to respond to the allegation(s) or charge(s) 

shall occur at a Pre-Disciplinary meeting conducted and presided over by the Chief of 
Police or his designee, who shall have the authority to impose or to recommend the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 93



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 12 
proposed disciplinary action.  Reasonable advance notice of this meeting, its time and 
place shall be given the employee and the Guild.  This meeting shall be informal.  The 
employee shall be given reasonable opportunity to be heard, to respond to the allegation(s) 
or charge(s), and to have the responses considered prior to the imposition of discipline. 

 
7.3.3 City’s Decision - Within a reasonable time, but not beyond forty-five (45) calendar days 

from the date of the Pre-Disciplinary meeting, the Chief of Police or his designee shall 
issue a written decision imposing discipline, exonerating the employee or taking such 
other action deemed appropriate. 

 
7.4 Investigative Interviews/Internal Affairs Investigations - The interview of a suspect 

employee concerning action(s) or inaction(s) which, if proved, could reasonably lead to a 
suspension without pay, demotion, or discharge for that employee, shall be conducted 
under the following conditions and procedures: 

 
a. If an employee is considered a suspect, at a reasonable time in advance of the 

investigative interview, the suspect employee shall be informed in writing, with a 
copy to the Guild, of the nature of the investigation; the specific allegations related 
thereto; and the policies, procedures and/or laws that form the basis for the 
investigation; and shall be advised that an opportunity to consult with a Guild 
representative and/or legal representative will be afforded prior to the interview. 

 
b. The requirements of Section 7.4.a of this Section 7.4 shall not apply if (1) the 

suspect employee is under investigation for violations that are punishable as 
felonies or misdemeanors under law, or (2) in the discretion of the Chief or his 
designee, notices to the suspect employee would jeopardize the administrative 
investigation. 

 
 c. The suspect employee shall have the right to have a Guild representative present 

during any interview which may reasonably result in a suspension without pay, 
demotion or discharge of the suspect employee.  The opportunity to have a Guild 
representative present at the interview or the opportunity to consult with a Guild 
representative shall not unreasonably delay the interview.  However, if the 
interview begins with the consent of the suspect employee in the absence of a 
Guild representative, but during the interview the suspect employee concludes that 
assistance is required by reason of increasing seriousness of the disciplinary 
problem, the suspect employee shall be allowed a reasonable time in which to 
obtain a Guild representative. 

 
 d. To the extent reasonably possible, all interviews under this Section shall take place 

at Police Department facilities. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 94



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 13 
 e. The City may schedule the interview outside of the employee’s regular working 

hours; however, in that event the appropriate overtime rate and/or irregular hours 
payment shall be made to the employee. 

 
 f. The employee shall be required to answer any question concerning a non-criminal 

matter under investigation and shall be afforded all rights and privileges to which 
the employee is entitled under State or Federal laws. 

 
 g. The employee shall not be subject to coercion, nor shall interrogator(s) make 

promises of rewards or threats of harm as inducements to answer questions. 
 
 h. During an interview, the employee shall be entitled to such reasonable 

intermissions as the employee may request for personal physical necessities. 
 
 i. All interviews shall be limited in scope to activities, circumstances, events and 

conduct that pertain to the action(s) or inaction(s) of the employee that is the 
subject of the investigation.  Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the City from 
questioning the employee about information that is developed during the course of 
the interview. 

 
 j. If the Police Department tape records the interview, a copy of the complete tape 

recorded interview of the suspect employee, noting the length of all recess periods, 
shall be furnished to the employee upon the suspect employee’s written request.  If 
the interviewed suspect employee is subsequently charged with misconduct, upon 
the written request of the suspect employee or the Guild, the City shall provide a 
complimentary copy of any tapes to the Guild on behalf of the employee. 

 
 k. Interviews and Internal Affairs investigations shall be concluded without 

unreasonable delays. 
 

l. The employee and the Guild shall be advised within a reasonable period of time, in 
writing, of the results of the investigation and what future action, if any, will be 
taken regarding the matter investigated. 

 
 m. This Article is not intended to limit the Police Department’s ability to conduct a 

fair and comprehensive investigation nor impose unreasonable time limits upon the 
conduct of such investigation. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 95



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 14 
ARTICLE 8 - BULLETIN BOARDS 
 
8.1 The employer agrees to provide suitable space for the bargaining unit to use as a bulletin 

board.  Postings by the bargaining unit on such boards shall be confined to official 
business of the bargaining unit that is of a non-political, non- inflammatory nature.  The 
Guild shall provide a copy of all postings to the Employer at least two (2) hours prior to 
posting, unless approved for immediate posting by the Chief of Police.  The Guild will 
remove all dated material.  All costs incident to preparing and posting the Guild material 
will be borne by the Guild, and the Guild will be responsible for maintaining its portion of 
the bulletin board in an orderly and neat fashion. 

 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 96



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 15 
ARTICLE 9 - EXTRA AGREEMENTS 
 
9.1 The Employer agrees not to enter into any agreement or contract with the employees, 

individually or collectively, which is inconsistent with the terms of a collective bargaining 
agreement then in effect. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 97



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 16 
ARTICLE 10 - HOLIDAYS 
 
10.1 The Employer shall recognize the following days as holidays; 
 
 New Year's Day   Thanksgiving Day 
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day  Day after Thanksgiving Day 
 Presidents' Day   Christmas Day 
 Federal Memorial Day        Plus two floating days to be 
 Independence Day                                    specifically and mutually agreed 
 Labor Day to between each employee and 
 Federal Veteran's Day the Chief of the Department. 
 
10.1.1  Effective January 1, 2017, all regular status employees are entitled to a ten (10) hour paid 

holiday on the aforementioned days. 
 
10.2 Holidays worked will be compensated for in the year earned by compensatory time off to 

be scheduled by mutual agreement of the employee and the Chief of the Department.  
However, if scheduling does not permit, such compensation may be carried over, but not 
to exceed six (6) such days.  In addition employees will receive 1/2 hour of straight time 
for every hour worked from 0001 to 2400 hours on the day of the Holiday. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 98



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 17 
ARTICLE 11 - WAGES 
 
11.1 Wages shall be as set forth in Appendix A to this Agreement. 
 
11.2 Out-of-Class Pay – Employees required by the Chief or designee to accept the responsi-

bilities and carry out the duties of a position or rank above that which he or she normally 
holds shall be paid at the rate for that position's rank at the minimum step level within that 
rank that results in an increase from their normal salary of at least 2.5% while so acting.  
However, such person shall not be paid in the higher wage classification until the 
employee has worked three (3) consecutive work days at the higher classification.  If any 
such employee works the above amount or more at the higher classification, he/she shall 
be paid the proper pay scale beginning with the first day so assigned. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 99



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 18 
ARTICLE 12 - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE AND PREMIUM PAYS 
 
12.1 Educational Increment - Employees shall receive an educational increment of eighty five 

dollars ($85) per month for an AA degree with a Police Science or Criminology major, an 
educational increment of one hundred forty five dollars ($145) per month for a BA/BS 
degree with Police Science or Criminology major and an educational increment of one 
hundred eighty dollars ($180) per month for an MA/MS degree; provided that the 
employee may receive one educational increment at a time, and also provided that the 
employee submits to the Employer adequate proof of having received such degrees within 
sixty (60) days of degree completion or within sixty (60) days of date of employment. 

  
12.2 Educational Incentive - In order to encourage the covered employees to further their 

education the Employer shall reimburse the employee for certain expenses incurred in so 
doing.  If the Chief of Police determines that a college accredited course an employee 
wishes to take on the employee's off duty time (the employee will not be paid for the time 
spent on educational programs attended pursuant to the terms of this paragraph) related to 
skills needed by the department or to further the employee's advancement within the 
department, then tuition and book expense associated with the class will be paid by the 
City, provided, however, the employee must provide a copy of his/her transcript showing 
that he/she received at least a 2.5 grade point in the course, based upon a 4.0 scale. 
Provided, further if the employee is reimbursed for the books purchased to take the 
authorized class, then the books shall belong to the police department and shall be 
delivered to the Chief at the time reimbursement is made. 

 
12.3 Field Training Officer/Specialty Pay –  

 
Field Training Officer – Any member assigned by the Chief to a 12 week or longer 
period of training shall receive an additional four percent (4%) to his/her base pay for the 
duration of the assignment. An FTO assigned to remedial training of one week or longer 
shall receive the four percent (4%) FTO pay on a weekly basis for the duration of the 
assignment. 
 
Specialty Pay – Any member who is assigned to any of the following specialty 
assignments/teams by the Chief of Police shall be entitled to specialty pay: Meth Lab 
Team, SWAT, K-9, Commercial Vehicle Enforcement, Drug Recognition Expert (DRE), 
Emergency Vehicle Operations Course (EVOC) Instructor, Firearms Instructor, Defensive 
Tactics Instructor, Collision Investigation Officer (Advanced or Reconstructionist), and 
Property Room. 
 
The Chief will assign at least one member annually to each of the following specialty 
assignments as long as there is a qualified candidate: Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 
Officer, Firearms Instructor, and Advanced Collision Investigation Officer (Advanced or 
Reconstructionist). 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 100



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 19 
Additionally, employees may be assigned by the Chief to one or all the above mentioned 
specialty assignments, duties or teams listed above at the same time while employed by 
the City. However, an employee shall only be entitled to collect the “full monthly stipend” 
for one assignment, duty or team according to the schedule in Table 12.3A below. 
Employees involved/assigned to more than one specialty assignment, duty or team will be 
eligible to collect a partial additional stipend per month for the second 
assignment/certification according to the schedule in Table 12.3A below. Employees will 
not be eligible for any additional compensation, according to Table 12.3A below, other 
that the initial “full stipend” and the second “partial” stipend regardless of the number of 
specialty assignments, certifications, duties or teams they are involved with. A detective 
who is currently on a CRU assignment will receive an additional 1.5% in lieu of the 2.5% 
provided for in Table 12.3A, provided that if a detective is assigned to any another 
specialty assignment, the detective would be eligible for specialty pay of 2.5% as though it 
were the first such assignment.   

 
Table 12.3 A. 

 
  

Specialty Team 
Pay/Month 

 
Special Duty 
Pay/Month 

Secondary 
Assignment 
Team/Duty 
Pay/Month 

2014 2.5% of current step of 
patrol base pay 

2.5% of  current step 
of patrol base pay 

1.5% of current step 
of patrol base pay 

 
 

12.4 Longevity – Beginning January 1, 2012 longevity pay shall be added to each 
employee’s base monthly pay according to the following schedule: 

 
Table 12.4 A 

 
Years continued  

employment 
Longevity pay in addition to normal  

monthly base pay  
10 – 14 years $65.00 per month 
15 – 19 years $92.00 per month 
20 – 24 years $120.00 per month 

25 years and above $150.00 per month 
 

Longevity pay for each employment interval shall begin on the anniversary date that the 
employee enters into the specific longevity category. Example: An employee begins to 
receive longevity pay of $65.00 per month in the 10-14 year category on the first day of 
entering their 10th year of service to the City. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 101



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 20 
ARTICLE 13 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

 
13.1 Probationary Period  - The probationary period shall be eighteen (18) months from date 

of hire, during which time there must be successful completion of the Police Academy. A 
probationary employee is terminable-at-will. 

 
In the event that the employee is ill, disabled, on maternity leave or otherwise unable to 
perform his/her duties for a significant period of time during the probation period, the 
probationary period of one year may be extended by the length of time which an employee 
is absent from work.  A significant absence shall be any absence in excess of 20 calendar 
days during the year.   
 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 102



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 21 
ARTICLE 14 - SMALL ARMS QUALIFICATION 
 
14.1 Small Arms Qualification (Duty Weapon)  - In the event that a patrolman fires a score 

of eighty (80) or less on the quarterly firearms qualification course (as prescribed by the 
Chief of Police), he shall be required to take another test within fifteen (15) days.  Should 
he fire a score of eighty (80) or less the second time, the patrolman shall be placed on 
suspension without pay until such time as he/she successfully completes the test. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 103



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 22 
ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE 
 
15.1 Each employee shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours sick leave for each 

calendar month the employee works, not to be taken until after six (6) months, and 
vacation time shall count as time worked.  Those employed prior to the 15th of the month 
will be credited sick leave in the month employed.  The employee may accrue a maximum 
of one thousand seven hundred and sixty (1760) hours total sick leave.  Upon termination 
from City employment for any reason other than for cause, twenty-five percent (25) of 
unused sick leave shall be paid to an employee. Employees shall be eligible for this benefit 
as a result of voluntary separation or involuntary layoff but shall not be eligible if 
terminated for cause. Compensation shall be based upon the employee’s salary at the time 
of separation. 

 
Upon retirement from the City twenty five percent (25%) of the unused sick leave shall be 
paid to the retiring employee as a lump sum payment. The retiring employee may elect to 
have the value of the sick leave compensation remain on account with the City to be used 
towards the payment of monthly medical/dental premiums that result from continued 
enrollment with the City’s insurer through COBRA,  or some other eligible plan. Under 
this option the City shall increase the amount of compensation for sick leave payment 
from twenty-five (25) percent to thirty-five (35) percent. 
 
Upon the non-duty related death or permanent disability of an eligible “covered” employee 
of the City, a sum equal to fifty percent (50%) of the unused sick leave shall be paid to the 
employee in the case of disability or to the legal beneficiaries in the case of non-duty 
related death.   
 
Upon the duty related death of an eligible “covered” employee of the City, a sum equal to 
one-hundred percent (100%) of the unused sick leave shall be paid to the legal 
beneficiaries of the employee.   
 

15.1.1  Effective January 1, 2017 the provision of 15.1 that deals with sick leave compensation at 
retirement shall be modified to read as follows: 

 
Upon retirement from the City unused sick leave shall be paid to the retiring employee as 
a lump sum payment according to the schedule in Table 15A below. 
 

Accrued Sick Leave Payout for Retirement Purposes 
Accrued Hours Lump Sum 

Payment 
COBRA or HRA 

Account 
0 – 750 hours  25% 35% 
751 – 1760 hours 50% 60% 

 
The retiring employee may elect to have the value of the sick leave compensation remain 
on account with the City to be used towards the payment of monthly medical/dental 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 104



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 23 
premiums that result from continued enrollment with the City’s insurer through COBRA,  
or some other eligible plan. Under this option the City shall increase the amount of 
compensation for sick leave payment according to the schedule in Table 15A above. 

 
15.2 The Employer may require a doctor's verification of illness should an employee request 

sick leave for two (2) or more continuous shifts.  
 
15.3 Use of Sick Leave - Sick leave may be used for any of the following reasons and 

purposes: 
 
 (a) Personal illness or incapacity of the employee 
 (b) Forced quarantine of the employee by a public health official 
 (c) As set forth in RCW 49.12.270, family leave 
 (d) Preventative health care of the employee 

(e)    An illness, injury or preventative health care of an immediate member of the 
employee's family which requires the employee's attendance subject to the City's 
Personnel Policy & Procedures Manual 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 105



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 24 
ARTICLE 16 - OTHER LEAVES 
 
16.1 Leave of absence without pay may be granted under the provisions of Rule XIV, Section 1 

of the City of Buckley Civil Service Rules and Regulations for the Police Department. 
 
16.2 The Employer may require that an employee undergo a fit for duty evaluation. The 

employee may be placed on Administrative leave with pay until the fit for duty evaluation 
is complete. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 106



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 25 
ARTICLE 17 - FAMILY ILLNESS OR BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
17.1 Leave shall be granted upon request to an employee up to a maximum of five (5) days per 

calendar year with pay when absence from work is required because of serious illness or 
death of a member of the immediate family. 

 
17.2 Immediate family of the employee shall be defined as his/her spouse, son, daughter, 

parents, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents or any other relative to 
the first degree of relation to the employee.  Family illness and bereavement leave cannot 
be accumulated. 

 
17.3 An employee may request two (2) additional days' leave for extended travel in conjunction 

with family illness and bereavement leave if extended travel is required.  This request 
must be approved by the Chief of Police and will be charged against accrued sick leave, 
vacation leave, holiday leave or compensatory time.  If no time off has been accrued, then 
said leave shall be without pay. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 107



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 26 
ARTICLE 18 - VACATION 
 
18.1 Each employee shall be entitled to vacation upon the anniversary date of their employment 

with the City, and it shall be taken as follows: 
 
  One Year     12 days 
  Two years     13 days 
  Three and four years    14 days 
  Five and six years    15 days 
  Seven and eight years    16 days 
  Nine and ten years    18 days 
  Eleven and twelve years   19 days 
  Thirteen and fourteen years   20 days 
  Fifteen years     22 days 
  Twenty years     25 days 
 
18.1.1 Annual vacation shall accrue at one-twelfth (1/12) the annual accrual for each month of 

service. 
 
18.2 Each employee's vacation shall be taken at a time mutually agreed to between the 

employer and employee. 
 
18.3 Should an employee leave for any reason, he/she shall be paid for all accrued and unused 

vacation days through the month preceding that in which the employee leaves, based on 
the hourly wage at the time of leaving.  A "month" shall be defined as one twelfth (1/12) 
of the anniversary year.  A "day" shall be defined as an eight (8) hour work day within any 
twenty-four (24) hour period. 
 

18.4 Vacations will be used in the year that such days are credited to the employee as mutually 
agreed to.  However, such vacation time may be carried over into the next year, but not to 
exceed a total of two-hundred and sixty (260) hours, unless scheduling of personnel 
doesn't allow full use of vacation time.  Written request and verification of scheduling 
conflicts shall be submitted to the City by the Chief of Police.  

 
18.5 Employees may elect to take a portion of their annual carryover balance of vacation time 

in cash as opposed to taking the time off. The Salary Schedule will be used to determine 
the hourly rate of when the time was earned and the employee will be paid that equivalent 
in cash. The employee may exercise the option to buy back vacation hours up to two times 
in each calendar year. The employee may elect to buy back up to forty (40) hours in June 
and forty (40) hours in December or the full eighty (80) hours in December. The decision 
to exercise the option must be made and submitted to the Finance Director prior to May 30 
for a June buy back or November 30 for a December buy back. The buy/back payment(s), 
if chosen, will occur in June and/or December of the year in which the request is 
submitted. The maximum hours that may be exercised for vacation buy-back is eighty (80) 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 108



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 27 
hours in any calendar year, on an hour for hour basis.  

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 109



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 28 
ARTICLE 19 - UNIFORMS 
 
19.1 The City shall implement a quartermaster system for uniforms.  All new employees to 

which this Agreement applies shall be issued a complete uniform at the time of hire.  The 
employees will turn into the Chief any part of the uniform that is worn out or otherwise 
not fit for duty use.  The Chief shall then provide for the issuance of a replacement.  The 
Chief shall determine what items will be considered as part of the uniform and each 
employee and the Guild shall receive a copy of the uniform list.  The list may be changed 
at the Chief's sole discretion.  However, if new items are added that are not part of the 
department uniform at the time this Agreement is executed, then the Employer will be 
responsible for issuing the new items.  With regards to the items of clothing the Chief, in 
his sole discretion, may change the type and styling of the uniforms but shall not decrease 
the number of pieces of clothing to be made available to the officers under the 
quartermaster system.  All uniforms shall be and remain City properties and shall be 
returned upon employment termination. 

 
19.2 Department patches will be supplied for each uniform shirt, coat, sweater and jumpsuit. 
 
19.2.1 K-9 Officer's Uniform  
  
 Same as Patrol Officers Uniform, EXCEPT: 
 
  Jumpsuits as needed 
  Shirt - 1 summer 1 winter 
  Trousers - 1 
 
19.2.2 Patrol Officer's Uniform 
 
  Hat - 1 
  Neck Tie - 1 
  Neck tie Clasp - 1 
  Collar Brass - 2 
  Shirt - 2 summer 2 winter 
  Trouser - 3; Probationers -2 
  Underbelt - 1 
  Utility Belt - 1 
  Weapon Holster - 1 
  Double Ammunition Pouch -1 
  Handcuff Case - 1* 
  Handcuffs - 1* 
   *Officer's option to have a second case and second handcuff. 
  Knife Case - 1 at officer's option 
  Knife - 1 at officer's option 
  Chemical Agent Holster - 1 as authorized 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 110



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 29 
  Flashlight Ring - 1 
  Key Keeper - 1 
  Belt Keepers - 4 
  Shoes - 1 pr 
  Boots - 1 pr 
  Ballistic Proof Vest - 1 
  Coat - 1 
  Uniform Badge - 2 
  Portable Radio Holder - 1 
  Portable Radio Charger - 1 
  Portable Radio - 1 
  Flashlight - 1 
  Flashlight Charger - 1 
  Duty Weapon - 1 
  Name Tag - 2 
  Gloves - 1 pr 
  Jumpsuit - 1 
  Sweater - 1 
  Chemical Agent - 1 as authorized 
  Duty Ammunition - 50 rounds 
 
19.3 Cleaning Allowance - Employees hired prior to June 1, of any contact year shall receive 

seventy-five dollars ($75.00) each year to defray the expense of cleaning the clothing 
portion of the uniform. 

 
19.3.1 Effective January 1, 2017 the cleaning allowance per employee shall increase from 

seventy-five dollars ($75.00) to one-hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) each year. 
 

19.4 The Employer will issue a service side arm to each employee that is required to carry a 
firearm as a condition of employment.  Employees shall carry an Employer issued duty 
weapon while on duty.  The employee shall maintain the weapon in good working order 
and shall return it to the Employer when requested. 

 
19.5 All departmental uniforms issued to members shall be maintained in proper order.  Should 

it be determined that equipment is damaged, lost, stolen or becomes unusable as a direct 
result of negligence on the part of the employee, that individual may be held financially 
responsible for all, or a portion of, the replacement or repair costs.  Negligence in this 
regard will be any gross or deliberate disregard for the care or custody of the equipment 
involved. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 111



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 30 
ARTICLE 20 - HEALTH AND WELFARE 
 
20.1 Health and Welfare  - The Employer agrees to make contributions, as set forth in 

succeeding sections, for employee healthcare coverage.  These contributions shall be made 
in behalf of every employee covered by this Agreement who was compensated eighty (80) 
or more hours in the preceding month. 

 
20.1.1 Medical - The Employer shall pay 90% of the cost of premiums required to maintain the 

medical and vision benefits under Plan Aactive medical composite rates for the employee, 
spouse and dependents, offered by the LEOFF Trust (""). 

 
20.1.2 Dental  - Effective July 1, 2002, participation in the Washington Dental Service Plan E 

and Orthodontia Rider Plan IV shall commence.  Employer shall pay 90% of the cost of 
premiums to maintain participation in the Washington Dental Plan for the employee, 
spouse and dependents. 

 
20.1.3 Employee Healthcare Contribution - Beginning January 1, 2012 employees shall begin 

contributing 10% of the cost of premiums through payroll withdrawal to maintain current 
levels of healthcare coverage. All insurance premiums will be subject to applicable payroll 
taxes as required by the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
The City will not provide duplication of health care coverage to an employee who is 
married to another employee of the City. One spouse may be named as the policy holder 
and the other as a covered spouse; OR each may be a policy holder, but in that case neither 
may be listed as a covered spouse. 
 

20.1.4 Health Retirement Account (HRA) Contribution – Pursuant to the term of this 
Agreement the Employer will initiate a change in healthcare benefit provider from UBET 
to LEOFF Trust. In conjunction with this the Guild shall work with LEOFF Trust to 
identify and activate a Health Retirement Account (HRA) for the Guild employees.  It is 
anticipated that these changes will occur and become effective July 1, 2016. Within 30 
days of notification and verification of this change the Employer will deposit $1,500 in 
individual HRA accounts established for each Guild employee to assist with additional 
out-of-pocket expenses resulting from this benefit change. 
 
In addition the Employer agrees to make annual contributions to each employee’s HRA 
account according the schedule in the Table below. 
 

HRA Contribution City Contribution 
Amount/Employee 

January, 2017 $1,000 
January, 2018 $1,000 
January, 2019 $1,000 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 112



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 31 
20.2 The Employer shall pay ninety percent (90%) of the premiums set forth above through the 

term of this Agreement. 
 
20.3 Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP). Guild employees shall be eligible for the 

Employer’s ERIP pursuant to Section 6.20 of the Personnel Policies and Procedures 
Manual.  

  
This program is subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget and the City 
retains the right to designate the number of positions to fund annually and the right to deny 
an application or delay its effective date in the best interests of the City. The City may, in 
its sole discretion terminate the program at any time or, suspend it for any fiscal year, if 
insufficient funding is provided in the budget, provided however that such suspension 
shall not impact the rights or benefits of any employee who has retired under the program 
in a prior fiscal year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 113



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 32 
ARTICLE 21 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
 
21.1 Employees defined as "any employee in law enforcement activities" as set forth in 29 

CFR, 553.211 shall receive overtime compensation for all hours worked in excess of one 
hundred sixty hours (160) in any twenty-eight (28) day work period.  Overtime 
opportunities shall be offered on a seniority basis, regardless of leave status, for each 
opportunity unless priority or specialized training is required. Employees shall be offered 
overtime through a reasonable effort to contact and offer the employee the overtime 
opportunity. For purposes of this provision reasonable shall be defined as one attempt to 
contact the employee at the emergency contact number provided the City by the employee. 
Employee’s that are contacted for overtime on a seniority basis, but because of their status 
are unable to report for duty at the given time and place are considered to be ineligible for 
the overtime.   Seniority assignment does not apply to officers held over to finish work 
from their shift.  Employees are eligible for overtime coverage for jail staff shifts on a 
seniority basis per the discretion of the Chief of Police. 

 
21.1 Callback  - Employees called back after the completion of a regular work shift or 

immediately preceding a regular work shift shall be guaranteed three (3) hours at their 
applicable straight time rate of pay.   

 
21.2 Standby practice is not to be used. 
 
21.3 Work Schedule - A tentative work schedule shall be posted five (5) days prior to shift 

change and, when such change is made, the posted schedule shall remain in effect for not 
less than twenty-eight (28) nor more than ninety (90) days.   

 
21.4 Shift Exchanges - Exchanging shifts and voluntary shift changes between employees will 

be allowed, provided such changes are approved in writing prior to the shift by their 
immediate supervisor, Police Chief or his/her designee.  In addition, the Employer shall 
maintain records of all time traded by the employees and the time traded must be paid 
back to the employee taking the shift within sixty (60) days from the date of the traded 
shift.  All Exchanged shifts or voluntary shift changes shall not be considered overtime 
hours worked or be used in overtime computation unless overtime shifts are being 
exchanged. 

 
21.5 Court Time  - Employees shall be paid at the rate of one-and-one-half (1 ½) times their 

applicable hourly wage for any duty-related municipal, district or civil court appearance 
during off-duty time, with a guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours overtime.  Juvenile and 
Superior Court, and Department of Licensing Hearing appearances, when required off 
duty, will be paid at the rate of one-and- one-half (1 1/2) times their applicable hourly rate 
from one (1) hour before subpoena time to time of release each day.  The City will only 
pay overtime to an employee for a civil service hearing if the employee receives a 
subpoena from the City, or if subpoenaed by the individuals for whom the Civil Service 
Hearing is for, if it regards an event or incident that is related to department duties.  In 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 114



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 33 
addition, employees will reimburse the City for all moneys received as compensation for 
subpoenaed appearances and witness fees paid to the employees by the court or any other 
party, when the employees are also paid by the City pursuant to this section. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 115



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 34 
 
ARTICLE 22 - EMPLOYER RIGHTS 
 
22.1 The Guild recognizes that the City possesses the sole right, authority and responsibility 

to operate and direct the bargaining unit employees of the Police Department in all 
aspects, including, but not limited to, all rights and authority exercised by the  City prior 
to the execution of this agreement, or any predecessor agreements,  except as modified 
by this Agreement.  Subject to the City’s obligation to bargain pursuant to RCW 41.56 et 
seq., which rights include, but are not limited to: 

 
22.1.1 The right to determine its mission, policies and all standards of service offered to the 

public; 
 
22.1.2 To plan, direct, schedule, control and determine the operations or services to be 

conducted by the bargaining unit employees of the Police Department; 
 
22.1.3 To determine the methods, means and number of personnel needed to carry out the 

departmental operations and services. It is understood by the parties that every incidental 
duty connected with operations enumerated in job descriptions is not always specifically 
described, but nevertheless, it is intended by both parties that all such duties shall be 
performed by the Employee; 

 
22.1.4 To direct the work force; 
 
22.1.5 To hire and assign or to transfer employees within the Department or police related 

functions; 
 
22.1.6 To promote, demote, suspend, discipline or discharge employees for just cause except 

for probationary employees, who can be terminated without cause; 
 
22.1.7 To lay off or relieve employees of duty for lack of work or funds or because of the 

occurrence of conditions beyond the control of the City, or where continuation of work 
would be wasteful and unproductive in the sole opinion of City officials; 

 
22.1.8 To make, publish, and enforce rules and regulations including reasonable rules 

pertaining to secondary employment; 
 
22.1.9 To introduce and use new or improved methods, equipment or facilities; 
 
22.1.10 To contract for goods; 
 
22.1.11 To take any and all actions that may be necessary to carry out the mission of the City and 

the Police Department in situations of civil emergency or Marshall law. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 116



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 35 
22.2 If, in the sole discretion of the Mayor, or other authorized City representative, it is 

determined that a civil emergency or Marshall law condition exists, including, but not 
limited to, riots, civil disorders, tornado conditions, floods, accidents or other similar 
situations, the provisions of this Agreement may be suspended by  the Mayor or his 
designee.  It is agreed that the processing of any grievance occurring during this activity 
beyond Step A of the grievance procedure shall be delayed until a time when this 
condition or the results of the condition no longer hamper normal business activity. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 117



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 36 
ARTICLE 23 - PERFORMANCE OF WORK 
 
23.1 The Guild and the City agree that the public interest requires the efficient and   

uninterrupted performance of emergency service.  To this end the Guild and the City 
pledge their best efforts to avoid or eliminate any conduct contrary to this objective. 

 
23.2 The Guild and the City agree that during the life of this Agreement the Guild will not 

cause, encourage or participate in any strike (including strike picketing), slow down, walk 
out or work stoppage.  Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit political activity of 
individual members, or the Guild as prescribed in RCW 41.06.250. During the term of this 
Agreement, the City shall not cause, permit, or engage in any lockout of its employees. 
 

23.3 In the event of a strike (including strike picketing), slow down, walk out or work  
stoppage, the Guild shall within twenty four (24) hours, issue a public statement 
disavowing such action and requesting the employees to return to work.  A copy of this 
statement will be simultaneously supplied to the City.  The Guild shall also make every 
effort to bring about the resumption of normal operations.  Within twenty four (24) hours 
after the commencement of a strike (including strike picketing, slow down, walk out or 
work stoppage), the Guild shall advise the City in writing of their effort to resume normal 
operations. 

 
23.4 Failure by the Guild to comply with the provisions of this Article shall be cause for the 

City to terminate this Agreement, in addition to other remedies that may be available; in 
such a case, the City will give written notice to the Guild President.  Failure to respond to 
the Guild’s request to return to work by an individual's work shift shall cause disciplinary 
action to be taken.  This action may include suspension or immediate dismissal.  The sole 
question which may be processed through the grievance and arbitration procedure in the 
event of discipline or discharge for violation of this Article is whether in fact the employee 
did violate this Article.   

 
23.5 No individual shall receive any portion of his/her salary or benefits as provided by the 

Employer and in accordance with the applicable law while engaging in activities in 
violation of this Article. 

 
23.6 Drug and Alcohol Free Work Place  - The parties shall endeavor to maintain a drug free 

work place.  Refer to City Resolution No. 89-6. 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 118



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 37 
ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
24.1 If any article or section of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by 

any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Agreement shall continue in full 
force and effect.  The Article and Section held invalid shall be modified as required by law 
or the tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or shall be renegotiated for the purpose of 
adequate replacement.  If such negotiations shall not result in mutually satisfactory 
agreement, the parties agree to be bound by the position of a tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction or a tribunal agreed to by the parties. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 119



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 38 
ARTICLE 25 - NOTICE TO OTHER PARTY 
 
25.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the period noted in the 

preamble of this Agreement.  Either party may request that negotiations be opened for a 
successor contract and a mutually acceptable meeting date shall be set. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 120



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 39 
ARTICLE 26 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
26.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2016 through December 

31, 2019. 
 
 SIGNED this ________ day of ________________2016. 
 
 
     
 BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’   CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 GUILD 
 
 
 BY: _________________________   BY: _________________________ 
  Jeff Plaster, President                Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
 
        BY: _________________________ 
         Dave Schmidt 
         City Administrator 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 121



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 40 
 

*APPENDIX A* 
to the 

AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
and 

BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’ GUILD 
 

JULY 1, 2016 through DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
A.1 The monthly rates of pay for Employees covered by this Agreement shall be as follows: 
 

Police Department Employee Salaries (4.0%) 
(January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,832  $5,041  $5,303  $5,516  $5,730  $5,882  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,025  $5,243  $5,515  $5,736  $5,959  $6,117  
Sergeant $5,363  $5,596  $5,886  $6,122  $6,360  $6,529  

Police Department Employee Salaries (0.75%-3.3%) 
(January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,868  $5,112  $5,367  $5,636  $5,917  $6,076  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,063  $5,316  $5,582  $5,861  $6,154  $6,319  
Sergeant $5,417  $5,688  $5,973  $6,271  $6,585  $6,761  

Police Department Employee Salaries (2.0%) 
(January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $4,966  $5,214  $5,475  $5,748  $6,036  $6,198  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,164  $5,422  $5,694  $5,978  $6,277  $6,446  
Sergeant $5,526  $5,802  $6,092  $6,397  $6,717  $6,897  

Police Department Employee Salaries (2.0%) 
(January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019) 

Classification  0-6 mos 
   7-12 
mos 

 13-24 
mos 

  25-36 
mos 

   37-48 
mos   49+ mos 

Patrol $5,065  $5,318  $5,584  $5,863  $6,156  $6,322  
Detective Patrol/Officer $5,268  $5,531  $5,807  $6,098  $6,403  $6,574  
Sergeant $5,636  $5,918  $6,214  $6,525  $6,851  $7,035  

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 122



 

2016-2019 POLICE GUILD CONTRACT (draft to Council)  
 

Page 41 
 
Paychecks will be issued on the last business day of the month.  Draw checks shall be issued on 
the fifteenth (15th) of the month.   
 

• Draw day on Saturday or Friday holiday – check issued the preceding City-scheduled 
workday. 

 
• Draw day on Sunday or Monday holiday – check issued the following City-scheduled 

workday. 
 
 
 
 
 
 SIGNED this _______________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 BUCKLEY POLICE OFFICERS’   CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 GUILD 
 
 
 
 BY: _________________________   BY: _________________________ 
  Jeff Plaster, President                    Pat Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
 
        BY: _________________________ 
         Dave Schmidt 
         City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 123



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: May 24, 2016               AB16-077 
 
Agreement - DSHS/Rainier RHC 
Campus Patrol & Security Services 
Contract – Renewal 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline: N/A Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto X X 
  Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Agreement   
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Renewal of the Agreement between the City and DSHS for campus patrol 
and security services under the same terms and conditions of the existing contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Renewal of the Agreement 
between the City and DSHS/Rainier RHC for Campus Patrol & Security 
Services. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

  
  
         
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 124



 
 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 1 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

Campus Patrol & Security Services for 

Rainier RHC 

 
DSHS Agreement Number: 
1664-64956 

 

This Agreement is by and between the State of Washington Department 
of Social and Health Services (DSHS) and the Contractor identified 
below, and is issued pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, chapter 
39.34 RCW.

 

Program Contract Number: 
  
Contractor Contract Number: 
      

CONTRACTOR NAME 
 
The City of Buckley 

CONTRACTOR doing business as (DBA) 
 
  

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS 
 
PO Box 1960 
Buckley, WA  98321-1960 

WASHINGTON UNIFORM 
BUSINESS IDENTIFIER (UBI) 
 
271-100-033 

DSHS INDEX NUMBER  
 
 
1696 

CONTRACTOR CONTACT  
 
James Arsanto 

CONTRACTOR TELEPHONE 
 
(360) 829-3157 

CONTRACTOR FAX 
 
(360) 829-0133 

CONTRACTOR E-MAIL ADDRESS 
 
jarsanto@cityofbuckley.com 

DSHS ADMINISTRATION 
 
Developmental Disabilities 
Admin 

DSHS DIVISION 
 
Division of Developmental Disabilities 

DSHS CONTRACT CODE 
 
1000LC-64 

DSHS CONTACT NAME AND TITLE  
 
Lynn Reedy 
Administrative Assistant 4 

DSHS CONTACT ADDRESS 
 
P O Box 600 
Buckley, WA  98321 

DSHS CONTACT TELEPHONE  
 
(360) 829-3023  

DSHS CONTACT FAX 
 
(360) 829-3081 

DSHS CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS 
 
reedylm@dshs.wa.gov 

IS THE CONTRACTOR A SUBRECIPIENT FOR PURPOSES OF THIS CONTRACT? 
 
No 

CFDA NUMBER(S) 
 
93.778 

AGREEMENT START DATE 
 
07/01/2016 

AGREEMENT END DATE 
 
06/30/2018 

MAXIMUM AGREEMENT AMOUNT 
 
$170,000.00 

EXHIBITS.  The following Exhibits are attached and are incorporated into this Agreement by reference: 
 Exhibits (specify): Exhibit A - Data Security Requirements       
 No Exhibits. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are an integration and representation of the final, entire and exclusive 
understanding between the parties superseding and merging all previous agreements, writings, and communications, oral 
or otherwise regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, between the parties.  The parties signing below represent 
they have read and understand this Agreement, and have the authority to execute this Agreement.  This Agreement shall 
be binding on DSHS only upon signature by DSHS.   
CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 
   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 
 
      

DATE SIGNED 
 

DSHS SIGNATURE 
   

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 
 
      

DATE SIGNED 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 125



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 2 

1. Definitions. The words and phrases listed below, as used in this Contract, shall each have the 
following definitions: 

a. “Central Contract Services” means the DSHS central headquarters contracting office, or successor 
section or office. 

b. “Confidential Information” or “Data” means information that is exempt from disclosure to the public 
or other unauthorized persons under RCW 42.56 or other federal or state laws. Confidential 
Information includes, but is not limited to, Personal Information. 

c. “Contract” or “Agreement” means the entire written agreement between DSHS and the Contractor, 
including any Exhibits, documents, or materials incorporated by reference. The parties may execute 
this contract in multiple counterparts, each of which is deemed an original and all of which 
constitute only one agreement. E-mail or Facsimile transmission of a signed copy of this contract 
shall be the same as delivery of an original. 

d. “Contracts Administrator” means the manager, or successor, of Central Contract Services or 
successor section or office. 

e. “Contractor” means the individual or entity performing services pursuant to this Contract and 
includes the Contractor’s owners, members, officers, directors, partners, employees, and/or agents, 
unless otherwise stated in this Contract. For purposes of any permitted Subcontract, “Contractor” 
includes any Subcontractor and its owners, members, officers, directors, partners, employees, 
and/or agents. 

f. “Debarment” means an action taken by a Federal agency or official to exclude a person or business 
entity from participating in transactions involving certain federal funds. 

g. “DSHS” or the “Department” means the state of Washington Department of Social and Health 
Services and its employees and authorized agents. 

h. “Encrypt” means to encode Confidential Information into a format that can only be read by those 
possessing a “key”; a password, digital certificate or other mechanism available only to authorized 
users.  Encryption must use a key length of at least 128 bits. 

i. “Personal Information” means information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited to, 
information that relates to a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt of 
governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, Social Security Numbers, 
driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

j. “Physically Secure” means that access is restricted through physical means to authorized 
individuals only. 

k. “Program Agreement” means an agreement between the Contractor and DSHS containing special 
terms and conditions, including a statement of work to be performed by the Contractor and payment 
to be made by DSHS. 

l. “RCW” means the Revised Code of Washington. All references in this Contract to RCW chapters or 
sections shall include any successor, amended, or replacement statute. Pertinent RCW chapters 
can be accessed at http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/. 

m. “Regulation” means any federal, state, or local regulation, rule, or ordinance. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 126



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 3 

n. “Secured Area” means an area to which only authorized representatives of the entity possessing 
the Confidential Information have access.  Secured Areas may include buildings, rooms or locked 
storage containers (such as a filing cabinet) within a room, as long as access to the Confidential 
Information is not available to unauthorized personnel. 

o. “Subcontract” means any separate agreement or contract between the Contractor and an individual 
or entity (“Subcontractor”) to perform all or a portion of the duties and obligations that the Contractor 
is obligated to perform pursuant to this Contract.  

p. “Tracking” means a record keeping system that identifies when the sender begins delivery of 
Confidential Information to the authorized and intended recipient, and when the sender receives 
confirmation of delivery from the authorized and intended recipient of Confidential Information.   

q. “Trusted Systems” include only the following methods of physical delivery: (1) hand-delivery by a 
person authorized to have access to the Confidential Information with written acknowledgement of 
receipt; (2) United States Postal Service (“USPS”) first class mail, or USPS delivery services that 
include Tracking, such as Certified Mail, Express Mail or Registered Mail; (3) commercial delivery 
services (e.g. FedEx, UPS, DHL) which offer tracking and receipt confirmation; and (4) the 
Washington State Campus mail system.  For electronic transmission, the Washington State 
Governmental Network (SGN) is a Trusted System for communications within that Network.   

r. “WAC” means the Washington Administrative Code. All references in this Contract to WAC 
chapters or sections shall include any successor, amended, or replacement regulation. Pertinent 
WAC chapters or sections can be accessed at http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/. 

2. Amendment. This Contract may only be modified by a written amendment signed by both parties. Only 
personnel authorized to bind each of the parties may sign an amendment. 

3. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or any Program Agreement to a third party 
without the prior written consent of DSHS. 

4. Billing Limitations. 

a. DSHS shall pay the Contractor only for authorized services provided in accordance with this 
Contract.  

b. DSHS shall not pay any claims for payment for services submitted more than twelve (12) months 
after the calendar month in which the services were performed. 

c. The Contractor shall not bill and DSHS shall not pay for services performed under this Contract, if 
the Contractor has charged or will charge another agency of the state of Washington or any other 
party for the same services. 

5. Compliance with Applicable Law. At all times during the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including but not limited to, 
nondiscrimination laws and regulations. 

6. Confidentiality.  

a. The Contractor shall not use, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise disclose any Confidential 
Information gained by reason of this Contract for any purpose that is not directly connected with 
Contractor’s performance of the services contemplated hereunder, except: 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 127



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 4 

(1) as provided by law; or,  

(2) in the case of Personal Information, with the prior written consent of the person or personal 
representative of the person who is the subject of the Personal Information.  

b. The Contractor shall protect and maintain all Confidential Information gained by reason of this 
Contract against unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification or loss. This duty requires the 
Contractor to employ reasonable security measures, which include restricting access to the 
Confidential Information by: 

(1) Allowing access only to staff that have an authorized business requirement to view the 
Confidential Information. 

(2) Physically Securing any computers, documents, or other media containing the Confidential 
Information. 

(3) Ensure the security of Confidential Information transmitted via fax (facsimile) by: 

(a) Verifying the recipient phone number to prevent accidental transmittal of Confidential 
Information to unauthorized persons. 

(b) Communicating with the intended recipient before transmission to ensure that the fax will be 
received only by an authorized person. 

(c) Verifying after transmittal that the fax was received by the intended recipient. 

(4) When transporting six (6) or more records containing Confidential Information, outside a 
Secured Area, do one or more of the following as appropriate: 

(a) Use a Trusted System. 

(b) Encrypt the Confidential Information, including: 

i. Encrypting email and/or email attachments which contain the Confidential Information. 
ii. Encrypting Confidential Information when it is stored on portable devices or media, 

including but not limited to laptop computers and flash memory devices. 

Note:  If the DSHS Data Security Requirements Exhibit is attached to this contract, this 
item, 6.b.(4), is superseded by the language contained in the Exhibit. 

(5) Send paper documents containing Confidential Information via a Trusted System. 

(6) Following the requirements of the DSHS Data Security Requirements Exhibit, if attached to this 
contract.   

c. Upon request by DSHS, at the end of the Contract term, or when no longer needed, Confidential 
Information shall be returned to DSHS or Contractor shall certify in writing that they employed a 
DSHS approved method to destroy the information.  Contractor may obtain information regarding 
approved destruction methods from the DSHS contact identified on the cover page of this Contract. 

d. Paper documents with Confidential Information may be recycled through a contracted firm, provided 
the contract with the recycler specifies that the confidentiality of information will be protected, and 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 128



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 5 

the information destroyed through the recycling process. Paper documents containing Confidential 
Information requiring special handling (e.g. protected health information) must be destroyed on-site 
through shredding, pulping, or incineration. 

e. Notification of Compromise or Potential Compromise. The compromise or potential compromise of 
Confidential Information must be reported to the DSHS Contact designated on the contract within 
one (1) business day of discovery.  Contractor must also take actions to mitigate the risk of loss and 
comply with any notification or other requirements imposed by law or DSHS. 

7. Debarment Certification. The Contractor, by signature to this Contract, certifies that the Contractor is 
not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
by any Federal department or agency from participating in transactions (Debarred). The Contractor also 
agrees to include the above requirement in any and all Subcontracts into which it enters. The 
Contractor shall immediately notify DSHS if, during the term of this Contract, Contractor becomes 
Debarred.  DSHS may immediately terminate this Contract by providing Contractor written notice if 
Contractor becomes Debarred during the term hereof. 

8. Governing Law and Venue. This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the state of Washington and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in Superior 
Court for Thurston County. 

9. Independent Contractor. The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created 
by this Contract. The Contractor and his or her employees or agents performing under this Contract are 
not employees or agents of the Department. The Contractor, his or her employees, or agents 
performing under this Contract will not hold himself/herself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or 
employee of the Department by reason hereof, nor will the Contractor, his or her employees, or agent 
make any claim of right, privilege or benefit that would accrue to such officer or employee. 

10. Inspection. The Contractor shall, at no cost, provide DSHS and the Office of the State Auditor with 
reasonable access to Contractor’s place of business, Contractor’s records, and DSHS client records, 
wherever located. These inspection rights are intended to allow DSHS and the Office of the State 
Auditor to monitor, audit, and evaluate the Contractor’s performance and compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, and these Contract terms. These inspection rights shall survive for six (6) years 
following this Contract’s termination or expiration. 

11. Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall maintain records relating to this Contract and the 
performance of the services described herein. The records include, but are not limited to, accounting 
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any 
nature expended in the performance of this Contract. All records and other material relevant to this 
Contract shall be retained for six (6) years after expiration or termination of this Contract. 

Without agreeing that litigation or claims are legally authorized, if any litigation, claim, or audit is started 
before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or 
audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

12. Order of Precedence. In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the General Terms and 
Conditions and the Special Terms and Conditions of this Contract or any Program Agreement, the 
inconsistency or conflict shall be resolved by giving precedence to these General Terms and 
Conditions. Terms or conditions that are more restrictive, specific, or particular than those contained in 
the General Terms and Conditions shall not be construed as being inconsistent or in conflict. 

13. Severability. If any term or condition of this Contract is held invalid by any court, the remainder of the 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 129



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 6 

Contract remains valid and in full force and effect. 

14. Survivability. The terms and conditions contained in this Contract or any Program Agreement which, 
by their sense and context, are intended to survive the expiration or termination of the particular 
agreement shall survive. Surviving terms include, but are not limited to: Billing Limitations; 
Confidentiality, Disputes; Indemnification and Hold Harmless, Inspection, Maintenance of Records, 
Notice of Overpayment, Ownership of Material, Termination for Default, Termination Procedure, and 
Treatment of Property. 

15. Contract Renegotiation, Suspension, or Termination Due to Change in Funding. 

If the funds DSHS relied upon to establish this Contract or Program Agreement are withdrawn, reduced 
or limited, or if additional or modified conditions are placed on such funding, after the effective date of 
this contract but prior to the normal completion of this Contract or Program Agreement: 

a. At DSHS’s discretion, the Contract or Program Agreement may be renegotiated under the revised 
funding conditions. 

b. DSHS’s discretion, DSHS may give notice to Contractor to suspend performance when DSHS 
determines that there is reasonable likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be resolved in a 
timeframe that would allow Contractor’s performance to be resumed prior to the normal completion 
date of this contract. 

(1) During the period of suspension of performance, each party will inform the other of any 
conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for resumption of performance. 

(2) When DSHS determines that the funding insufficiency is resolved, it will give Contractor written 
notice to resume performance.  Upon the receipt of this notice, Contractor will provide written 
notice to DSHS informing DSHS whether it can resume performance and, if so, the date of 
resumption.  For purposes of this subsubsection, “written notice” may include email. 

(3) If the Contractor’s proposed resumption date is not acceptable to DSHS and an acceptable date 
cannot be negotiated, DSHS may terminate the contract by giving written notice to Contractor.  
The parties agree that the Contract will be terminated retroactive to the date of the notice of 
suspension.  DSHS shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of this 
Contract for services rendered prior to the retroactive date of termination. 

c. DSHS may immediately terminate this Contract by providing written notice to the Contractor.  The 
termination shall be effective on the date specified in the termination notice.  DSHS shall be liable 
only for payment in accordance with the terms of this Contract for services rendered prior to the 
effective date of termination.  No penalty shall accrue to DSHS in the event the termination option in 
this section is exercised. 

16. Waiver. Waiver of any breach or default on any occasion shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
subsequent breach or default. Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms and 
conditions of this Contract. Only the DSHS Contracts Administrator or designee has the authority to 
waive any term or condition of this Contract on behalf of DSHS. 

Additional General Terms and Conditions – Interlocal Agreements: 

17. Disputes.  Disputes shall be determined by a Dispute Board.  Each party to this Agreement shall 
appoint one member to the Dispute Board.  The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 130



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 7 

additional member to the Dispute Board.  The Dispute Board shall review the facts, Agreement terms, 
and applicable statutes and rules and make a determination of the dispute.  As an alternative to this 
process, either party may request intervention by the Governor, as provided by RCW 43.17.330, in 
which event the Governor’s process shall control.  Participation in either dispute process shall precede 
any judicial or quasi-judicial action and shall be the final administrative remedy available to the parties. 

18. Hold Harmless. 

a. The Contractor shall be responsible for and shall hold DSHS harmless from all claims, loss, liability, 
damages, or fines arising out of or relating to the Contractor’s, or any Subcontractor’s, performance 
or failure to perform this Agreement, or the acts or omissions of the Contractor or any 
Subcontractor.  DSHS shall be responsible for and shall hold the Contractor harmless from all 
claims, loss, liability, damages, or fines arising out of or relating to DSHS’ performance or failure to 
perform this Agreement. 

b. The Contractor waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the State and its agencies, officials, agents, or employees. 

19. Ownership of Material. Material created by the Contractor and paid for by DSHS as a part of this 
Contract shall be owned by DSHS and shall be “work made for hire” as defined by Title 17 USCA, 
Section 101. This material includes, but is not limited to: books; computer programs; documents; films; 
pamphlets; reports; sound reproductions; studies; surveys; tapes; and/or training materials.  Material 
which the Contractor uses to perform the Contract but is not created for or paid for by DSHS is owned 
by the Contractor and is not “work made for hire”; however, DSHS shall have a perpetual license to use 
this material for DSHS internal purposes at no charge to DSHS, provided that such license shall be 
limited to the extent which the Contractor has a right to grant such a license. 

20. Subrecipients. 

a. General.  If the Contractor is a subrecipient of federal awards as defined by 2 CFR Part 200 and 
this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 

(1) Maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended and the 
federal programs under which they were received, by Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) title and number, award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name of the 
pass-through entity; 

(2) Maintain internal controls that provide reasonable assurance that the Contractor is managing 
federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a material effect on each of its federal programs; 

(3) Prepare appropriate financial statements, including a schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards; 

(4) Incorporate 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all agreements between the 
Contractor and its Subcontractors who are subrecipients; 

(5) Comply with the applicable requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including any future amendments to 
2 CFR Part 200, and any successor or replacement Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular or regulation; and 

(6) Comply with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe streets Act of 1968, Title VI of the Civil Rights 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 131



DSHS General Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 8 

Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, and The Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 C.F.R. Part 42, 
Subparts C.D.E. and G, and 28 C.F.R. Part 35 and 39. (Go to www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr/ for 
additional information and access to the aforementioned Federal laws and regulations.) 

b. Single Audit Act Compliance.  If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in 
federal awards from any and/or all sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall procure and pay 
for a single audit or a program-specific audit for that fiscal year.  Upon completion of each audit, the 
Contractor shall: 

(1) Submit to the DSHS contact person the data collection form and reporting package specified in 
2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, reports required by the program-specific audit guide (if applicable), 
and a copy of any management letters issued by the auditor; 

(2) Follow-up and develop corrective action for all audit findings; in accordance with 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F; prepare a “Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings” reporting the status of all 
audit findings included in the prior audit's schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

c. Overpayments.  If it is determined by DSHS, or during the course of a required audit, that the 
Contractor has been paid unallowable costs under this or any Program Agreement, DSHS may 
require the Contractor to reimburse DSHS in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

21. Termination.  

a. Default.  If for any cause, either party fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement in a timely 
and proper manner, or if either party violates any of the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement, then the aggrieved party will give the other party written notice of such failure or 
violation.  The responsible party will be given 15 working days to correct the violation or failure.  If 
the failure or violation is not corrected, this Agreement may be terminated immediately by written 
notice from the aggrieved party to the other party. 

b. Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Interlocal Agreement for any other reason by 
providing 30 calendar days’ written notice to the other party. 

c. Payment for Performance.  If this Interlocal Agreement is terminated for any reason, DSHS shall 
only pay for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
and prior to the effective date of termination.  

22. Treatment of Client Property.  Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall ensure that any adult 
client receiving services from the Contractor has unrestricted access to the client’s personal property.  
The Contractor shall not interfere with any adult client’s ownership, possession, or use of the client’s 
property.  The Contractor shall provide clients under age eighteen (18) with reasonable access to their 
personal property that is appropriate to the client’s age, development, and needs.  Upon termination of 
the Contract, the Contractor shall immediately release to the client and/or the client’s guardian or 
custodian all of the client’s personal property. 

 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 132

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr


Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 9 

1. Definitions Specific to Special Terms.  The words and phrases listed below, as used in this Contract, 
shall each have the following definitions: 

a. “Client” means any or all of the clients, residents or individuals living at Rainier RHC. 

b. “Contractor” means law enforcement officers commissioned by the City of Buckley Police 
Department and/or the City of Buckley. 

c. “Rainier RHC” means a Department of Social and Health Services Residential Habilitation Center 
located at 2120 Ryan Road, Buckley, WA 98231. 

2. Purpose.  The purpose of this Contract is to provide campus patrol and security services to Rainier 
RHC.  This Contract. shall not be interpreted to create a separate legal entity. 

3. Qualifications:  All services provided by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be performed by 
law enforcement officers commissioned by the City of Buckley Police Department. 

4. Statement of Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and staff, and otherwise do all things 
necessary for or incidental to the performance of work, as set forth below: 

a. The City of Buckley Police Department shall dedicate the equivalent of one commissioned officer to 
provide incident investigation services at Rainier RHC; 

b. At the request of the Rainier RHC Superintendent or other authorized designee, the Contractor 
shall investigate all incidents occurring on the grounds of Rainier RHC and adjacent areas that 
require determination of criminal law violations; 

c. The Contractor shall provide the Rainier RHC Superintendent or other authorized designee with 
written investigative reports and supporting documents for each and every investigation conducted 
on the grounds of Rainier RHC; 

d. The Contractor shall pursue prosecution with all violations determined to be criminal law violations 
unless otherwise agreed upon between Rainier RHC, Buckley Police Department and Washington 
State Patrol; 

e. The Contractor shall patrol Rainier RHC grounds in marked City of Buckley police vehicles on both 
a regular and a random basis or as specifically required by the Rainier Superintendent or 
authorized designee of Rainier RHC seven (7) days a week, 365 days a year; 

f. The City of Buckley Police Department shall continue to provide emergency police protection (9-1-
1) service; 

g. The Contractor shall provide quarterly performance reports that identify the number of 9-1-1 calls 
responded to, the type of incidents investigated and other services provided by the Contractor; 

h. The Contractor shall advise the Rainier RHC Superintendent and/or authorized designee as soon 
as practical, when the patrolling officers have specific knowledge of situations that could affect the 
health, safety and public welfare of residents and staff at Rainier RHC; 

i. The Contractor shall advise the Rainier RHC Superintendent and/or authorized designee of new 
ordinances or changes in existing ordinances that may impact the practices, procedures and/or 
physical configuration of the Rainier RHC grounds as well as impacting investigation and/or 
enforcement practices/procedures; 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 133



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 10 

j. The Contractor shall maintain close liaison with the Rainier RHC Superintendent or authorize 
designee and when requested, attend special meetings and/or participate in conference calls 
concerning crimes, incidents or investigation, as appropriate and necessary. 

5. Consideration.  Total consideration payable to Contractor for satisfactory performance of the work 
under this Contract is up to a maximum of $170,000.00, including any and all expenses, and shall be 
based on a monthly rate of $7,084.00. 

6. Billing and Payment. 

a. Invoice System. The Contractor shall submit invoices using State Form A-19 Invoice Voucher, or 
such other form as designated by DSHS within fifteen (15) days following the end of a month in 
which services were provided to Rainier RHC. Consideration for services rendered shall be payable 
upon receipt and acceptance by Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent or authorized designee 
of properly completed invoices, which must describe and document to DSHS’ satisfaction an 
itemized description of the work performed and fees not more often than once a month to the 
following address: 

Department of Social and Health Services 
Consolidated Institutional Business Services (CIBS) 
Attention:  Accounting 
9601 Steilacoom Blvd. SW 
Lakewood, WA 98498-7213 
 

The rates shall be in accordance with those set forth in Section 5, Consideration, of this Contract.  

b. Payment.  Payment shall be considered timely if made by DSHS within thirty (30) days after receipt 
and acceptance by the Rainier RHC of the properly completed invoices.  Payment shall be sent to 
the address designated by the Contractor on page one (1) of this Contract.  DSHS may, at its sole 
discretion, withhold payment claimed by the Contractor for services rendered if Contractor fails to 
satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Contract. 

7. Disputes. The Contractor may request resolution of a dispute in accordance with the following dispute 
resolution process: 

a. Contract disputes shall be resolved at the lowest organizational level possible in which the 
Contractor shall submit a written request for resolution directly to the Rainier RHC Superintendent 
or authorized designee. The request must include the following information: 

(1)  The Contractor’s name, address, phone number. 

(2) The Contract number. 

(3) Identification and description of the issue(s) in dispute. 

(4) A statement describing the Contractor’s position on the issue in dispute, including any 
documentation that supports this position.  

b. The Contractor’s request for dispute resolution must be mailed to the address listed on the front of 
this contract within 10 days after the Contractor could reasonably be expected to have knowledge 
of the issue in dispute.   

c. The Rainier RHC Superintendent shall review the dispute resolution request and issue a written 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 134



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 11 

response to the Contractor within 30 days of receiving the written request.  

d. Items not eligible for dispute include the amount of any rates set by law, regulation, or DSHS policy.  

e. Except for those items of dispute that fall under RCW 43.20.B.675, Revenue recovery for the 
Department of Health and Social Services, the dispute resolution process described above in 
subsections 7.a - c is the sole administrative remedy available under this Contract. 

8. Insurance. 

1. DSHS certifies that it is self-insured under the State’s self-insurance liability program, as 
provided by RCW 4.92.130, and shall pay for losses for which it is found liable.   

2. The Contractor certifies, by checking the appropriate box below, initialing to the left of the box 
selected, and signing this Agreement, that: 

 The Contractor is self-insured or insured through a risk pool and shall pay for losses 
for which it is found liable; or 

 The Contractor maintains the types and amounts of insurance identified below and 
shall, prior to the execution of this Agreement by DSHS, provide certificates of insurance 
to that effect to the DSHS contact on page one of this Agreement. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance (CGL) – to include coverage for bodily injury, property 
damage, and contractual liability, with the following minimum limits: Each Occurrence - $1,000,000; 
General Aggregate - $2,000,000.  The policy shall include liability arising out of premises, 
operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury, advertising 
injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract.  The State of Washington, DSHS, its elected 
and appointed officials, agents, and employees shall be named as additional insureds.  

9. Duration.  This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2016 and terminate on June 30, 2018 with the 
option to renew for two-year terms thereafter. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 135



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 12 

Exhibit A – Data Security Requirements 
 
1. Definitions.  The words and phrases listed below, as used in this Exhibit, shall each have the following 

definitions: 

a. “Authorized User(s)” means an individual or individuals with an authorized business requirement to 
access DSHS Confidential Information. 

b. “Hardened Password” means a string of at least eight characters containing at least one alphabetic 
character, at least one number and at least one special character such as an asterisk, ampersand 
or exclamation point. 

c. “Unique User ID” means a string of characters that identifies a specific user and which, in 
conjunction with a password, passphrase or other mechanism, authenticates a user to an 
information system. 

2. Data Transport.  When transporting DSHS Confidential Information electronically, including via email, 
the Data will be protected by: 

a. Transporting the Data within the (State Governmental Network) SGN or Contractor’s internal 
network, or; 

b. Encrypting any Data that will be in transit outside the SGN or Contractor’s internal network.  This 
includes transit over the public Internet. 

3. Protection of Data.  The Contractor agrees to store Data on one or more of the following media and 
protect the Data as described: 

a. Hard disk drives.  Data stored on local workstation hard disks.  Access to the Data will be 
restricted to Authorized User(s) by requiring logon to the local workstation using a Unique User ID 
and Hardened Password or other authentication mechanisms which provide equal or greater 
security, such as biometrics or smart cards. 

b. Network server disks.  Data stored on hard disks mounted on network servers and made available 
through shared folders.  Access to the Data will be restricted to Authorized Users through the use of 
access control lists which will grant access only after the Authorized User has authenticated to the 
network using a Unique User ID and Hardened Password or other authentication mechanisms 
which provide equal or greater security, such as biometrics or smart cards.  Data on disks mounted 
to such servers must be located in an area which is accessible only to authorized personnel, with 
access controlled through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or comparable mechanism. 

For DSHS Confidential Information stored on these disks, deleting unneeded Data is sufficient as 
long as the disks remain in a Secured Area and otherwise meet the requirements listed in the 
above paragraph.  Destruction of the Data as outlined in Section 5. Data Disposition may be 
deferred until the disks are retired, replaced, or otherwise taken out of the Secured Area. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 136



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 13 

c. Optical discs (CDs or DVDs) in local workstation optical disc drives.  Data provided by DSHS 
on optical discs which will be used in local workstation optical disc drives and which will not be 
transported out of a Secured Area.  When not in use for the contracted purpose, such discs must be 
locked in a drawer, cabinet or other container to which only Authorized Users have the key, 
combination or mechanism required to access the contents of the container.  Workstations which 
access DSHS Data on optical discs must be located in an area which is accessible only to 
authorized personnel, with access controlled through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or 
comparable mechanism. 

d. Optical discs (CDs or DVDs) in drives or jukeboxes attached to servers.  Data provided by 
DSHS on optical discs which will be attached to network servers and which will not be transported 
out of a Secured Area.  Access to Data on these discs will be restricted to Authorized Users through 
the use of access control lists which will grant access only after the Authorized User has 
authenticated to the network using a Unique User ID and Hardened Password or other 
authentication mechanisms which provide equal or greater security, such as biometrics or smart 
cards.  Data on discs attached to such servers must be located in an area which is accessible only 
to authorized personnel, with access controlled through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or 
comparable mechanism. 

e. Paper documents.  Any paper records must be protected by storing the records in a Secured Area 
which is only accessible to authorized personnel.  When not in use, such records must be stored in 
a locked container, such as a file cabinet, locking drawer, or safe, to which only authorized persons 
have access. 

f. Remote Access.  Access to and use of the Data over the State Governmental Network (SGN) or 
Secure Access Washington (SAW) will be controlled by DSHS staff who will issue authentication 
credentials (e.g. a Unique User ID and Hardened Password) to Authorized Users on Contractor 
staff.  Contractor will notify DSHS staff immediately whenever an Authorized User in possession of 
such credentials is terminated or otherwise leaves the employ of the Contractor, and whenever an 
Authorized User’s duties change such that the Authorized User no longer requires access to 
perform work for this Contract. 

g. Data storage on portable devices or media. 

(1) Except where otherwise specified herein, DSHS Data shall not be stored by the Contractor on 
portable devices or media unless specifically authorized within the terms and conditions of the 
Contract.  If so authorized, the Data shall be given the following protections: 

(a) Encrypt the Data with a key length of at least 128 bits 

(b) Control access to devices with a Unique User ID and Hardened Password or stronger 
authentication method such as a physical token or biometrics. 

(c) Manually lock devices whenever they are left unattended and set devices to lock 
automatically after a period of inactivity, if this feature is available.  Maximum period of 
inactivity is 20 minutes. 

Physically Secure the portable device(s) and/or media by 

(d) Keeping them in locked storage when not in use 

(e) Using check-in/check-out procedures when they are shared, and  

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 137



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 14 

(f) Taking frequent inventories 

(2) When being transported outside of a Secured Area, portable devices and media with DSHS 
Confidential Information must be under the physical control of Contractor staff with authorization 
to access the Data. 

(3) Portable devices include, but are not limited to; smart phones, tablets, flash memory devices 
(e.g. USB flash drives, personal media players), portable hard disks, and 
laptop/notebook/netbook computers if those computers may be transported outside of a 
Secured Area. 

(4) Portable media includes, but is not limited to; optical media (e.g. CDs, DVDs), magnetic media 
(e.g. floppy disks, tape), or flash media (e.g. CompactFlash, SD, MMC). 

h. Data stored for backup purposes. 

(1) DSHS data may be stored on portable media as part of a Contractor’s existing, documented 
backup process for business continuity or disaster recovery purposes.  Such storage is 
authorized until such time as that media would be reused during the course of normal backup 
operations.  If backup media is retired while DSHS Confidential Information still exists upon it, 
such media will be destroyed at that time in accordance with the disposition requirements in 
Section 5. Data Disposition 

(2) DSHS Data may be stored on non-portable media (e.g. Storage Area Network drives, virtual 
media, etc.) as part of a Contractor’s existing, documented backup process for business 
continuity or disaster recovery purposes.  If so, such media will be protected as otherwise 
described in this exhibit.  If this media is retired while DSHS Confidential Information still exists 
upon it, the data will be destroyed at that time in accordance with the disposition requirements in 
Section 5. Data Disposition. 

4. Data Segregation. 

a. DSHS Data must be segregated or otherwise distinguishable from non-DSHS data.  This is to 
ensure that when no longer needed by the Contractor, all DSHS Data can be identified for return or 
destruction.  It also aids in determining whether DSHS Data has or may have been compromised in 
the event of a security breach.  As such, one or more of the following methods will be used for data 
segregation. 

b. DSHS Data will be kept on media (e.g. hard disk, optical disc, tape, etc.) which will contain no 
non-DSHS data.  And/or, 

c. DSHS Data will be stored in a logical container on electronic media, such as a partition or folder 
dedicated to DSHS Data.  And/or, 

d. DSHS Data will be stored in a database which will contain no non-DSHS data. And/or, 

e. DSHS Data will be stored within a database and will be distinguishable from non-DSHS data by the 
value of a specific field or fields within database records. 

f. When stored as physical paper documents, DSHS Data will be physically segregated from non-
DSHS data in a drawer, folder, or other container. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 138



Special Terms and Conditions 

 
DSHS Central Contract Services 
6015LF Custom Interlocal Agreement (6-30-09)  Page 15 

g. When it is not feasible or practical to segregate DSHS Data from non-DSHS data, then both the 
DSHS Data and the non-DSHS data with which it is commingled must be protected as described in 
this exhibit. 

5. Data Disposition.  When the contracted work has been completed or when no longer needed, except 
as noted in Section 3. Protection of Data b. Network Server Disks above, Data shall be returned to 
DSHS or destroyed.  Media on which Data may be stored and associated acceptable methods of 
destruction are as follows: 

 
 Data stored on: Will be destroyed by: 
Server or workstation hard disks, or 
 
Removable media (e.g. floppies, USB flash drives, 
portable hard disks) excluding optical discs 
 

Using a “wipe” utility which will overwrite the Data at 
least three (3) times using either random or single 
character data, or 
 
Degaussing sufficiently to ensure that the Data cannot 
be reconstructed, or 
 
Physically destroying the disk 

  
Paper documents with sensitive or Confidential 
Information  

Recycling through a contracted firm provided the 
contract with the recycler assures that the 
confidentiality of Data will be protected. 

  
Paper documents containing Confidential Information 
requiring special handling (e.g. protected health 
information) 

On-site shredding, pulping, or incineration 

  
Optical discs (e.g. CDs or DVDs) Incineration, shredding, or completely defacing the 

readable surface with a coarse abrasive 
  
Magnetic tape Degaussing, incinerating or crosscut shredding 
 
6. Notification of Compromise or Potential Compromise.  The compromise or potential compromise of 

DSHS shared Data must be reported to the DSHS Contact designated in the Contract within one (1) 
business day of discovery.  If no DSHS Contact is designated in the Contract, then the notification must 
be reported to the DSHS Privacy Officer at dshsprivacyofficer@dshs.wa.gov.  Contractor must also 
take actions to mitigate the risk of loss and comply with any notification or other requirements imposed 
by law or DSHS. 

7. Data shared with Subcontractors.  If DSHS Data provided under this Contract is to be shared with a 
subcontractor, the Contract with the subcontractor must include all of the data security provisions within 
this Contract and within any amendments, attachments, or exhibits within this Contract.  If the 
Contractor cannot protect the Data as articulated within this Contract, then the contract with the sub-
Contractor must be submitted to the DSHS Contact specified for this contract for review and approval. 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 139



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: May 24, 2016               AB16-078 
 
Final Acceptance: Developer 
Constructed - Elk Heights STEP Sewer 
System Project 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X X 
City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline: N/A Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
  Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Engineer’s letter   
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Staff is requesting and recommending that the City Council grant final 
“conditional” acceptance to the Developer constructed - Elk Heights STEP Sewer System Project. 
Pursuant to the engineer’s certification and recommendation the project has been constructed in 
conformity to the approved plans and specifications; however the engineer recommends that and 
approval should be conditioned on the applicant providing the City with a signed/notarized bill of sale 
for the system and the payment of all fees associated with the City’s costs associated with the project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Final Acceptance of Developer 
Constructed - Elk Heights STEP Sewer System Project Subject to 
Recommended Conditions of Approval. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

  
  
         
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 140



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 141



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 142



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 143



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 144



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 145



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 146



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 147



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: May 24, 2016               AB16-079 
 
North Parking Lot Reconstruction 
Project – Change Order #1 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X X 
City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
Finance Dept  – Sheila Bazzar   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

Cost Impact:  $62,478 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  Fund 307 & 405 Parks & Rec Dept – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline: N/A Planning Dept – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
  Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Memo & Change Order 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached Change Order No. 1 for the Parking Lot.  The change order 
amount breakdown by schedule is as follows: 
 

• Schedule A (Storm and Parking Lot): $26,475.00 
• Schedule B (Sanitary Sewer): $36,003.00 
• Total: $62,478.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: T&U 5/17/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the North Parking Lot 
Reconstruction Project – Change Order #1. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

  
  
         
  
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 148



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 

To:        Mayor & City Council 
 
From:   City Administrator 
 
Date:    May 19, 2016 

RE:       North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project – CO #1 

 
The City Council awarded bid of the North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project to Puget 
Paving & Consulting, Inc. on February 23, 2016. The project consisted of Schedules A 
(parking lot reconstruction) and B (sewer line replacement) and was estimated by the City 
Engineer to cost $344,621.81. 
 
The bid price for the project was submitted at $299,872.98, which was $44,748.83 or 13.0% 
under the engineer’s estimate. Construction of the project began April 8, 2016 with 
replacement of the sewer main that bisects the parking lot and serves the downtown 
businesses. Existing City utility records identified six (6) side sewers for the project that 
needed to be replaced; however, during construction the contractor located fourteen (14) that 
needed to be replaced. The additional side sewer installations resulted in additional per unit 
cost for each side sewer plus demolition and replacement of concrete curb, gutter and 
sidewalk that was not originally planned. The combination of the additional work for these 
items resulted in an increased cost of $34,550. 
 
The original project was designed to grind and complete patching in select areas of the 
parking lot and then place a 2” overlay over the entire parking lot area; however, after 
demolition and excavation the existing pavement was deteriorated enough that the engineer 
recommends that the entire parking lot be planed and overlayed with asphalt. In estimating 
the cost for this additional work the contractor reduced his unit cost for asphalt by $4/SY but 
the additional work still results in an overall project increase of $10,813, which is to be split on 
a proportionate share between Schedules A & B.   
 
The project was also designed to replace most of the older concrete curb, gutter and sidewalk 
and maintain what was believed to be some of that in better condition. Two areas that were 
to remain were the sidewalk section on River Ave between the parking and the street and the 
sidewalk section on Cottage Street that was between the parking lot and the street. Both of 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 149



   

  Page 2 

these sections have an exposed aggregate finish similar to what had been removed from 
older sections throughout the parking lot. Now that the contractor has completed 
replacement of concrete sections at either end of these areas, the difference in the two finishes 
is significant and does not give the parking lot the finished look that we believe that the City 
Council had intended. Staff’s recommendation is that the City replace these sections as well 
to achieve the overall design and aesthetics that the reconstruction was supposed to achieve. 
The estimated cost to replace these two sections of sidewalk including curb and gutter is 
$17,115. 
 
Total cost of these recommended change orders, to include both Schedules A and B, is 
$62,478. 
 
The current contract has amounts for minor changes built into the contract specifications of 
$10,000 for Schedule A and $5,000 for Schedule B.  Neither of these line items has been used. 
So, it is possible that this $15,000 would be deducted upon completion reducing the overall 
increased cost from $62,478 to $47,478, which is in line with the original engineering estimate. 
 
Staff is requesting and recommending that the City Council approve this change order for the 
additional work and cost. 

 
If you have any questions, please let me know. Thank you. 

 
Dave 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 150



 Page 1 of 4 
 

CHANGE ORDER 
 

 
Project Title Downtown Parking Lot Stormwater Retrofit and Overlay Project 
    
Owner City of Buckley  Contractor Name Puget Paving & 

Construction, Inc.  
    
Change Order No. 1 Contractor Address 10817 26th Ave S  
   Lakewood, WA 

98499 
Change Order Date May 19, 2016   
    
G&O No. 14215.00   

 
 

 
The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents: 
 
SCHEDULE A:    
 
ITEM NO. 1:  Remove and Replace Additional Curb (COP No. 4) 
 
Remove existing curb on the north side of the parking lot, adjacent to the exposed aggregate 
sidewalk being removed and replaced.  Curb length is approximately 144 lineal feet. 
 
The lump sum cost for removal of curb is: ..............................................................................$2,160.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb is: ...........................................................$2,880.00 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  ...................................................................................$5,040.00 
 
Justification:  The additional work is at the request of the Owner to provide a better finished look to 
the project.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work provides added value to the Owner. 
 
ITEM NO. 2:  Planing and Overlay Entire Parking Lot, 2.25” of HMA (COP No. 5)  
 
Plane and overlay the entire parking lot with commercial HMA to a depth of 2.25”.  This item 
includes the portion associated with Schedule A. 
 
The lump sum cost for the planing of the parking lot is: .......................................................$22,100.00 
The lump sum cost for the commercial HMA is: ..................................................................$24,385.00 
 
Delete the planing areas shown on sheet G-3R.  Delete the HMA overlay area shown on sheet G9-R.  
The following bid items are deleted from the Contract: 
 

No. Description Quantity Unit Price Total 
A-11 Commercial HMA  450 TN $76.50 ($34,425.00) 
A-12 Planing Bituminous Pavement 90 SY $30.00  ($2,700.00) 

 
The cost of the deleted work is: .......................................................................................... ($37,125.00) 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  ...................................................................................$9,360.00 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 151



 Page 2 of 4 
 

Justification:  The planing and overlay of the parking lot is a change from the bid documents, which 
identified spot patching and overlay.  The revision is anticipated to prevent the existing cracks from 
reflection through the new Commercial HMA.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work 
provides added value to the Owner. 
 
ITEM NO. 3:  Remove and Replace Sidewalk along Cottage Street (COP No. 8) 
 
Remove existing exposed aggregate sidewalk along Cottage Street North and replace with cement 
concrete sidewalk with a broom finish.  Sidewalk area is approximately 85 square yards. 
 
The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: .......................................................................$2,550.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: ..............................................................$2,550.00 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  ...................................................................................$5,100.00 
 
Justification:  The additional work is at the request of the Owner to provide a better finished look to 
the project.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work provides added value to the Owner. 
 
ITEM NO. 4:  Remove and Replace Sidewalk and Curb along River Road (COP No. 9) 
 
Remove existing exposed aggregate sidewalk and traffic curb along River Road and replace with 
cement concrete sidewalk with a broom finish and traffic curb.  Sidewalk area is approximately 60 
square yards and curb length is approximately 105 lineal feet.   
 
The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: .......................................................................$1,500.00 
The lump sum cost for removal of curb is: ..............................................................................$1,575.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: ..............................................................$1,800.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb is: ...........................................................$2,100.00 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  ...................................................................................$6,975.00 
 
Justification:  The additional work is at the request of the Owner to provide a better finished look to 
the project.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work provides added value to the Owner. 
 
SCHEDULE B:   
 
ITEM NO. 1:  Additional Side Sewer Installation (COP No.1) 
 
Install an additional eight (8) live side sewers connections and connect to new sewer main. 
 
The lump sum cost for the work is: .......................................................................................$12,000.00 
 
Justification:  The additional work is the result of changed site conditions, as the additional side 
sewers were found during construction.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work 
provides added value to the Owner. 
 
ITEM NO. 2:  Remove and Replace Sidewalk and Curb on South End (COP’s No.2 and No. 4) 
 
Remove existing sidewalk at the south end of the parking lot adjacent to the businesses.  Sidewalk 
area is approximately 400 square yards.  Curb length is approximately 130 lineal feet.  Additional 
work is associated with location and replacement of additional side sewers.   

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 152



 Page 3 of 4 
 

 
The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: .......................................................................$6,000.00 
The lump sum cost for removal of curb and gutter is: .............................................................$1,950.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: ............................................................$12,000.00 
The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb and gutter is: ..........................................$2,600.00 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  .................................................................................$22,550.00 
 
Justification:  The additional work is the result of changed site conditions, as the additional side 
sewers were found during construction.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work 
provides added value to the Owner. 
 
ITEM NO. 3:  Planing and Overlay Entire Parking Lot, 2.25” of HMA (COP No. 5)  
 
Plane and overlay the entire parking lot with commercial HMA to a depth of 2.25”.  This item 
includes the portion associated with Schedule B. 
 
The lump sum cost for the planing of the parking lot is: .........................................................$3,900.00 
The lump sum cost for the commercial HMA is: ....................................................................$4,303.00 
 
Delete the planing areas shown on sheet G-3R.  Delete the HMA overlay area shown on sheet G9-R.  
The following bid items are deleted from the Contract: 
 

No. Description Quantity Unit Price Total 
B-6 Unsuitable Foundation Ex, Incl. Haul  50 CY $35.00 ($1,750.00) 
B-9 Commercial HMA 50 TN $100.00 ($5,000.00) 

 
The cost of the deleted work is: ............................................................................................ ($6,750.00) 
 
The net additional cost for this item is:  ...................................................................................$1,453.00 
 
Justification:  The planing and overlay of the parking lot is a change from the bid documents, which 
identified spot patching and overlay.  The revision is anticipated to prevent the existing cracks from 
reflection through the new Commercial HMA.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work 
provides added value to the Owner. 
 
CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE 
 
Original Contract Amount (without tax): ............................................................................$277,553.50 
Current Contract Amount, as adjusted by previous change orders: .....................................$277,553.50 
The Contract Amount due to this Change Order will be increased by: .................................$62,478.00 
The new Contract Amount (without tax) due to this Change Order will be: .......................$340,031.50 
 
 
CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME 
 
The Substantial Completion Contract Time will be increased by 10 working days, for a total of 
60 working days. 
 
The Physical Completion Contract Time will be increased by 10 working days, for a total of 
65 working days. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 153



 Page 4 of 4 
 

This document will become a supplement to the Contract and all provisions in the Contract will 
apply hereto.  The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that by executing this change order he 
foregoes all rights and privileges of acquiring any additional compensation for any known or 
unknown claims of any type or nature, to include but not be limited to, any additional work, delays, 
extended office overhead, design omissions, changed site conditions, or any oral directions as of the 
date of the execution of this change order.   

 
GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. 
(RECOMMENDED) __________________________ Date _____________________ 
    
PUGET PAVING & 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
(ACCEPTED) __________________________ Date _____________________ 
    
CITY OF BUCKLEY 
(ACCEPTED) __________________________ Date _____________________ 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 154



BIDDER
BIDDER ADDRESS

WASHINGTON STATE WORKMAN'S COMP. ACCT. NO.
WASHINGTON STATE CONTRACTOR'S REG. NUMBER
BID BOND OR OTHER GOOD FAITH TOKEN 5% BID BOND 5% BID BOND 5% BID BOND 5% BID BOND 5% BID BOND

NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
SCHEDULE A
1 Minor Changes 1 CALC $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
2 SPCC Plan 1 LS $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $100.00 $100.00 $500.00 $500.00
3 Mobilization, Cleanup and Demobilization 1 LS $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $16,600.00 $16,600.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
4 Project Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
5 Removal of Structure and Obstruction 1 LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $50,700.00 $50,700.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
6 Unsuitable Foundation Excavation, Incl. Haul 70 CY $25.00 $1,750.00 $24.00 $1,680.00 $10.00 $700.00 $36.00 $2,520.00 $35.00 $2,450.00 $30.00 $2,100.00
7 Common Borrow 20 CY $25.00 $500.00 $35.00 $700.00 $44.00 $880.00 $40.00 $800.00 $46.00 $920.00 $40.00 $800.00
8 Ditch Excavation, Incl. Haul 170 CY $22.00 $3,740.00 $24.00 $4,080.00 $5.00 $850.00 $36.00 $6,120.00 $36.00 $6,120.00 $30.00 $5,100.00
9 Locate Existing Utilities 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
10 Crushed Surfacing Base Course 185 TN $25.00 $4,625.00 $35.00 $6,475.00 $32.00 $5,920.00 $40.00 $7,400.00 $66.00 $12,210.00 $30.00 $5,550.00
11 Commercial HMA 450 TN $110.00 $49,500.00 $76.50 $34,425.00 $96.00 $43,200.00 $90.00 $40,500.00 $95.00 $42,750.00 $100.00 $45,000.00
12 Planing Bituminous Pavement 90 SY $27.00 $2,430.00 $30.00 $2,700.00 $1.00 $90.00 $33.50 $3,015.00 $50.00 $4,500.00 $40.00 $3,600.00
13 Solid Wall PVC Storm Sewer Pipe, 8 In. Diam. 85 LF $40.00 $3,400.00 $40.00 $3,400.00 $40.00 $3,400.00 $45.00 $3,825.00 $28.00 $2,380.00 $50.00 $4,250.00
14 Concrete Inlet 1 EA $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,050.00 $1,050.00 $800.00 $800.00
15 Adjust Catch Basin 3 EA $400.00 $1,200.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $650.00 $1,950.00 $400.00 $1,200.00 $525.00 $1,575.00 $400.00 $1,200.00
16 Perforated PVC Underdrain Pipe, 4 In. 55 LF $20.00 $1,100.00 $35.00 $1,925.00 $20.00 $1,100.00 $20.00 $1,100.00 $23.00 $1,265.00 $25.00 $1,375.00
17 Connection to Drainage Structure 2 EA $200.00 $400.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $447.00 $894.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $450.00 $900.00 $300.00 $600.00
18 Pea Gravel for Underdrain 50 TN $30.00 $1,500.00 $63.00 $3,150.00 $36.00 $1,800.00 $40.00 $2,000.00 $49.00 $2,450.00 $30.00 $1,500.00
19 Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill 35 TN $25.00 $875.00 $35.00 $1,225.00 $15.00 $525.00 $36.00 $1,260.00 $45.00 $1,575.00 $20.00 $700.00
20 Trench Excavation Safety Systems 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $100.00 $100.00 $500.00 $500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $1.00 $1.00
21 Erosion and Water Pollution Control 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
22 Bioretention Facility Soil 95 CY $40.00 $3,800.00 $80.00 $7,600.00 $85.00 $8,075.00 $60.00 $5,700.00 $66.00 $6,270.00 $70.00 $6,650.00
23 Bioretention Facility Plants 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $8,475.00 $8,475.00 $2,300.00 $2,300.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
24 Bark Mulch 20 CY $35.00 $700.00 $80.00 $1,600.00 $68.00 $1,360.00 $50.00 $1,000.00 $50.00 $1,000.00 $60.00 $1,200.00
25 Installation of Contract Agency Purchased

Landscaping 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,955.00 $3,955.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
26 Topsoil, Type A 20 CY $40.00 $800.00 $80.00 $1,600.00 $45.00 $900.00 $46.00 $920.00 $46.00 $920.00 $40.00 $800.00
27 Cement Concrete Traffic Curb and Gutter 55 LF $30.00 $1,650.00 $20.00 $1,100.00 $61.00 $3,355.00 $25.00 $1,375.00 $28.00 $1,540.00 $55.00 $3,025.00
28 Cement Concrete Traffic Curb 390 LF $30.00 $11,700.00 $20.00 $7,800.00 $36.00 $14,040.00 $20.00 $7,800.00 $27.50 $10,725.00 $40.00 $15,600.00
29 Extruded Curb 310 LF $20.00 $6,200.00 $8.00 $2,480.00 $9.00 $2,790.00 $6.25 $1,937.50 $7.00 $2,170.00 $9.00 $2,790.00
30 Cement Concrete Sidewalk 570 SY $40.00 $22,800.00 $30.00 $17,100.00 $52.00 $29,640.00 $45.00 $25,650.00 $52.00 $29,640.00 $100.00 $57,000.00
31 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type

Perpendicular 5 EA $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,508.00 $7,540.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 $1,625.00 $8,125.00 $1,700.00 $8,500.00
32 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type Parallel 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,435.00 $1,435.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
33 Permanent Signing 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00 $2,600.00 $2,600.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

OCEANSIDE
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

R.W. SCOTT
CONSTRUCTION CO.

NORTHWEST
CASCADE, INC.

REED TRUCKING &
EXCAVATING, INC.

2207 Inter Avenue, Suite A1225 E. Sunset Drive, Ste. 145 4005 West Valley Hwy. West
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

PUGET PAVING &
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Puyallup, WA 98372
983, 104-00

PUGETPC191LS
850, 638-02

OCEANCI955JB RWSCOC*229MU
325, 526-00

Bellingham, WA 98226 Auburn, WA 98001

NORTHCI148BG REEDTEI016JW

P.O. Box 73399
Puyallup, WA 98373

265, 081-00

10817 26th Avenue South
Lakewood, WA 98499

390, 225-00

CITY OF BUCKLEY,  WA.
DOWNTOWN PARKING LOT STORMWATER RETROFIT AND OVERLAY PROJ. - REBID
G&O #14215

DATE:  2/2016
DRAWN:  SC

CHECKED:  DJM
APPROVED:  DJM

Page 1 of 3

GRAY & OSBORNE, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 155



BIDDER
34 Paint Line 1,400 LF $0.50 $700.00 $0.40 $560.00 $1.00 $1,400.00 $0.50 $700.00 $1.75 $2,450.00 $1.00 $1,400.00
35 Painted Stop Line 35 LF $10.00 $350.00 $3.50 $122.50 $10.00 $350.00 $4.00 $140.00 $6.50 $227.50 $10.00 $350.00
36 Painted Traffic Arrow 3 EA $100.00 $300.00 $75.00 $225.00 $102.00 $306.00 $55.00 $165.00 $6.50 $19.50 $100.00 $300.00
37 Painted Access Parking Space Symbol 3 EA $100.00 $300.00 $100.00 $300.00 $102.00 $306.00 $65.00 $195.00 $110.00 $330.00 $100.00 $300.00
38 Painted Crosswalk Line 64 SF $5.00 $320.00 $5.00 $320.00 $11.00 $704.00 $4.00 $256.00 $11.00 $704.00 $12.00 $768.00
39 Project Documentation 1 LS $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $700.00 $700.00 $500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Subtotal, Schedule A: $219,840.00 $171,567.50 $220,440.00 $189,128.50 $227,616.00 $229,259.00
Sales Tax @ 7.9% $17,367.36 $13,553.83 $17,414.76 $14,941.15 $17,981.66 $18,111.46

$237,207.36 $185,121.33 $237,854.76 $204,069.65 $245,597.66 $247,370.46

OCEANSIDE
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

R.W. SCOTT
CONSTRUCTION CO.

NORTHWEST
CASCADE, INC.

REED TRUCKING &
EXCAVATING, INC.

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST, SCHEDULE A

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
PUGET PAVING &

CONSTRUCTION, INC.

CITY OF BUCKLEY,  WA.
DOWNTOWN PARKING LOT STORMWATER RETROFIT AND OVERLAY PROJ. - REBID
G&O #14215

DATE:  2/2016
DRAWN:  SC

CHECKED:  DJM
APPROVED:  DJM

Page 2 of 3

GRAY & OSBORNE, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 156



BIDDER
SCHEDULE B
1 Minor Changes 1 CALC $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2 SPCC Plan 1 LS $500.00 $500.00 $100.00 $100.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $100.00 $100.00 $500.00 $500.00
3 Mobilization, Cleanup and Demobilization 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $9,250.00 $9,250.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00
4 Project Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,350.00 $4,350.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
5 Removal of Structure and Obstruction 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $5,400.00 $5,400.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
6 Unsuitable Foundation Excavation, Incl. Haul 50 CY $30.00 $1,500.00 $35.00 $1,750.00 $10.00 $500.00 $36.00 $1,800.00 $35.00 $1,750.00 $30.00 $1,500.00
7 Locate Existing Utilities 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 $750.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
8 Crushed Surfacing Base Course 60 TN $25.00 $1,500.00 $35.00 $2,100.00 $32.00 $1,920.00 $40.00 $2,400.00 $66.00 $3,960.00 $30.00 $1,800.00
9 Commercial HMA 50 TN $115.00 $5,750.00 $100.00 $5,000.00 $96.00 $4,800.00 $90.00 $4,500.00 $175.00 $8,750.00 $100.00 $5,000.00
10 48-Inch Sanitary Sewer Manhole 2 EA $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,600.00 $7,200.00 $2,300.00 $4,600.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
11 48-Inch Sanitary Sewer Saddle Manhole 1 EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $3,100.00 $3,100.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
12 Abandon Existing Manhole 2 EA $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $331.00 $662.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $950.00 $1,900.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
13 Plugging Existing Pipe 3 EA $300.00 $900.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $68.00 $204.00 $250.00 $750.00 $160.00 $480.00 $250.00 $750.00
14 Solid Wall PVC Sewer Pipe, 8 In. Diam. 270 LF $50.00 $13,500.00 $65.00 $17,550.00 $21.00 $5,670.00 $61.00 $16,470.00 $32.50 $8,775.00 $80.00 $21,600.00
15 Side Sewer, Cleanout and Connection 6 EA $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,500.00 $9,000.00 $1,100.00 $6,600.00 $2,800.00 $16,800.00 $1,350.00 $8,100.00 $1,700.00 $10,200.00
16 Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill 550 TN $25.00 $13,750.00 $20.00 $11,000.00 $15.00 $8,250.00 $28.00 $15,400.00 $16.25 $8,937.50 $20.00 $11,000.00
17 Trench Excavation Safety Systems 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
18 Erosion and Water Pollution Control 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $100.00 $100.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
19 Cement Concrete Traffic Curb and Gutter 45 LF $30.00 $1,350.00 $20.00 $900.00 $61.00 $2,745.00 $25.00 $1,125.00 $27.00 $1,215.00 $55.00 $2,475.00
20 Cement Concrete Sidewalk 145 SY $40.00 $5,800.00 $30.00 $4,350.00 $57.00 $8,265.00 $38.00 $5,510.00 $46.00 $6,670.00 $75.00 $10,875.00
21 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type

Perpendicular 2 EA $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,320.00 $2,640.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00
22 Project Documentation 1 LS $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $340.00 $340.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,350.00 $1,350.00 $500.00 $500.00

Subtotal, Schedule B: $99,550.00 $106,350.00 $72,596.00 $106,305.00 $98,587.50 $110,200.00
Sales Tax @ 7.9% $7,864.45 $8,401.65 $5,735.08 $8,398.10 $7,788.41 $8,705.80

$107,414.45 $114,751.65 $78,331.08 $114,703.10 $106,375.91 $118,905.80

$237,207.36 $185,121.33 $237,854.76 $204,069.65 $245,597.66 $247,370.46
$107,414.45 $114,751.65 $78,331.08 $114,703.10 $106,375.91 $118,905.80

$344,621.81 $299,872.98 $316,185.84 $318,772.75 $351,973.58 $366,276.26

DOMINIC J. MILLER, P.E.

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
PUGET PAVING &

CONSTRUCTION, INC.
OCEANSIDE

CONSTRUCTION, INC.
R.W. SCOTT

CONSTRUCTION CO.
NORTHWEST

CASCADE, INC.
REED TRUCKING &
EXCAVATING, INC.

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the above tabulations are true and correct
transcriptions of the unit prices and total amounts bid.

Sealed bids were opened at the City of Buckley, 933 Main Street, Buckley, Washington 98321
on Wednesday, February 17, 2016, at 10:00 a.m. (local time).

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST, SCHEDULE B

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST, SCHEDULE A
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST, SCHEDULE B

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST, SCHEDULES A AND B

DENOTES
MATHEMATICAL OR
ROUNDING ERROR

CITY OF BUCKLEY,  WA.
DOWNTOWN PARKING LOT STORMWATER RETROFIT AND OVERLAY PROJ. - REBID
G&O #14215

DATE:  2/2016
DRAWN:  SC

CHECKED:  DJM
APPROVED:  DJM

Page 3 of 3

GRAY & OSBORNE, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 157



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 158



City Council Minutes – May 10, 2016 Page 1 of 4 
 

 City Council Minutes 
May 10, 2016 

 
 
 
Mayor Johnson called the regular scheduled meeting to order at 7:02 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following Council members were present: Sundstrom, Rose, Tremblay, 
Leggett and Burkett.  Council member Boyle Barrett arrived at 7:04 PM.  Also in attendance 
were Fire Chief Predmore, Assistant Fire Chief Skogen, Police Chief Arsanto, City Planner 
Thompson, and City Administrator Schmidt. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPARTION:  
 
Meagan Rhodes – 27606 153rd St. Buckley, WA 98321 – 
Meagan Rhodes, a member of the White River School District, wanted to inform the Council on 
updates pertaining to the Levy that was recently passed, and upcoming events and changes that 
are going to be taking place within the White River School District.  Also, Meagan stated that 
she would like to come and speak to the Council every couple months to keep the Council and 
citizens informed on all changes and upcoming events that take place within the District. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
City Planner Thompson stated that the Sub Division and Site Plans are progressing and she 
plans to have a Staff Report out on these at the end of the month.  
 
Fire Chief Predmore advised the Council of the upcoming Recruit Academy Graduation that 
will be taking place June 9th at 7 PM; invitations will be going out within the next week or so. 

 
City Administrator Schmidt announced that there are still four Council members who need to 
file the Public Disclosure on their financials.  City Clerk Starr recently received an email that 
they were due on Aril 15th.  If you need any assistance you can see City Clerk Starr at City Hall 
and she will help you.  The City just submitted a Pedestrian Safety Grant to the State for 
improvement to the Park and SR410.   The Public Works Department has concluded rounds of 
interviews for the full time Maintenance position and Mayor Johnson appointed Jesse 
Michaelson to the position.  Maintenance Assistant Blakely will be retiring on May 31st and they 
have interviews scheduled for her position next week.  Also, the surface water has been turned 
on, we have had the reservoir cleaned and we should be getting tests back sometime tomorrow.  
City Administrator Schmidt stated that he and Mayor Johnson will be negotiating the Police 
Guild contract starting Thursday and will keep the Council informed. Also, this morning he 
attended a meeting at the old Dell’s location with a Tractor Supply representative and their 
attorney, and he has been working on the draft of the addendum for early termination which 
will be coming to the Council at the next meeting.  In order to not let the building sit vacant for 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 159



City Council Minutes – May 10, 2016 Page 2 of 4 
 

very long, the City Administrator wanted the Council to advise him and the Mayor how they 
would like them to handle the process for the applications that the City has already received.  
Following a lengthy discussion the Council decided to allow the City Administrator and the 
Mayor to handle this administratively, and upon a hand vote the Council agreed that they 
would like the new tenant to keep it as a feed store. 
 
MAIN AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 13-16: Amending Inattention: 
Council member Rose moved to Approve Ordinance No.13-16 Amending BMC 11.30 Entitled 
“Inattention”.  Council member Boyle Barrett seconded the motion.  Upon roll call motion 
carried 6/0. 
 
ORD No. 14-16: Proposing a Permanent EMS Levy: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Ordinance No. 14-16.  Council member  
Leggett seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion carried 6/0. 
 
ORD No. 15-16: Proposing a 6 – Year EMS Levy: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Ordinance No. 15-16.  Council member 
Burkett seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion carried 6/0. 
 
ORD No. 16-16: Amending Title 4 – “Cemetery”: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Ordinance No. 16-16 Amending BMC Title 
4 “Cemetery”.  Council member Leggett seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion 
carried 5/1. 
 
RES No. 16-07: Amending Personnel Policy & Procedures – Revision #16: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Resolution No. 16-07 Amending Personnel 
Policy 4.01 Related to Personal Appearance, Conduct & Attitude.  Council member Leggett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
RES No. 16-08: Amending Taxes, Rates & Fees Schedule – Revision #22: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Resolution No. 16-08, Amending the City’s 
Taxes, Rates & Fees Schedule Revision #22.  Council member Tremblay seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 
Bid Award – Wally’s Playground Replacement Project: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Bid Award of the Wally’s Playground 
Replacement Project for $44,983.52.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 160



City Council Minutes – May 10, 2016 Page 3 of 4 
 

Agreement – Purchase & Sale Between the City and Dantzler 410 LLC – Addendum #1: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Addendum #1 to the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement between the City and Dantzler 410 LLC.  Council member Leggett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Seasonal Staffing Request – Planning Department: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the Planning Dept. Request for a PT 
Interim Summer Intern as Outlined in the Memorandum.  Council member Tremblay 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approve Minutes of April 26, 2016 City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of May 3, 2016 City Council Study Session 
 
Claim check numbers 54435 through 54462, in the amount of $194,038.17, for the 
period of April 13, 2016 through April 26, 2016 are hereby ratified; Claim check 
numbers 55258 through 55349, in the amount of $1,090,805.09, for the period of 
April 27, 2016 through May 10, 2016; Payroll check numbers 35491 through 35538 
in the amount of $159,761.07 and Payroll ACHs in the amount of $178,204.37 for 
a total payroll of $337,965.44; Treasurer check numbers 11868 through 11872 in 
the amount of $2,317.96 and Treasurer ACHs in the amount of $11,092.10 for a 
total of $13,410.06 are hereby approved and ordered paid this 10th day of May, 
2016. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayors Report: 
Mayor Johnson stated she had a meeting with the Superintendent of the School District and a 
lot of what was discussed was shared by Meagan this evening.  Another topic of discussion was 
related to Mundy Loss Road and the students who are unsafe without sidewalks.  Also, Mayor 
Johnson stated she has been to many conferences the last week and they covered many topics 
including health care.   
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety: 
Council member Boyle Barrett stated that they discussed most items that were on the Agenda 
this evening and they will be meeting again on May 3rd. 
 
Transportation & Utilities: 
Council member Tremblay stated that they will be meeting on May 17th.  
 
Community Services: 
Council member Rose stated they will be meeting on May 19th. 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 161



City Council Minutes – May 10, 2016 Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order: 
Council member Sundstrom stated that he would like to subscribe to the Water Report 
Magazine, and the Council needs to authorize.  Council decided they would like to do a little 
research on the magazine and bring this back at the next meeting. 
 
Council member Tremblay moved to adjourn.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further the meeting was adjourned at 8:16 PM. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
City Administrator, Dave Schmidt   Mayor, Patricia Johnson 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 162



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 163



City Council Agenda Packet 05-24-2016 Page 164


	AG Packet - 5-24-16 (A)
	CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST May-June 2016
	Calendar - May 2016
	May 2016

	Calendar - June 2016
	June 2016

	A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	B. STAFF REPORTS
	C. MAIN AGENDA
	Agenda Bill 16-073 (Agreement – Renewal of Contract with Pierce County for Access to CountyView GIS SVCS)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	AI #1 - Agreement - Pierce County GIS Access Contract (2016)
	PIERCE COUNTY
	COMMUNITY INFORMATION/NETWORK SERVICES AGREEMENT # _________
	FOR ACCESS TO COUNTY SYSTEMS
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this   day of April, 2016.
	REQUESTOR:
	Name
	Signature
	Title of Signatory Authorized by Firm Bylaws
	AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS TO COUNTY SYSTEMS
	The parties, in consideration of the terms and conditions described below, agree as follows:
	SCOPE OF SERVICE
	FEE FOR SERVICE
	CONDITIONS OF USE
	LIABILITY
	SYSTEM OPERATIONS
	CONTACTS
	SPECIAL PROVISIONS
	ATTACHMENT 1
	Definitions
	SPECIAL PROVISIONS

	Agenda Bill 16-074 (Lease Addendum #1 - Del’s Farm Supply – Early Termination)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #2(a) - LEASE AGREEMENT (Del's Farm Supply) - Addendum #1 - Early Termination
	AI #2(b) - Tractor Supply Letter of Closure - Linda Hamilton

	AG Packet - 5-24-16 (B)
	Agenda Bill 16-075 (Lease Agreement - Mt. Rainier Futbol Club - Renewal)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #3 - Lease Agreement - Mt. Rainier Futbol Club Use of City Field (2016) Renewal
	Agenda Bill 16-076 (Agreement- 2016-2019 Police Guild Bargaining Unit Contract)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #4(a) - Memo Mayor & Council (2016 - 2019 Local Police Guild Contract)
	AI #4(b) - Buckley Police Guild Contract 2017-2019 (final draft to Council)
	AI #4(c) - Buckley Police Guild Contract 2017-2019 (final draft to Council) Clean
	Agenda Bill 16-077 (Agreement - DSHSRainier RHC Campus Patrol & Security Services Contract – Renewal )
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #5 - Agreement - DSHS-Rainier RHC Campus Patrol & Security Services Contract – Renewal
	Agenda Bill 16-078 (Final Acceptance - Developer Constructed - Elk Heights STEP Sewer System Project)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #6(a) - Elk Hts Step System - Final Acceptance - G&O - 2016
	AI #6(b) - Ghag Sewer Bill of Sale 5-18-16 (Executed)
	Agenda Bill 16-079 (North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project – Change Order #1)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	AI #7(a) - Memo (Mayor & Council) North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project – CO #1` (16)
	AI #7(b) - North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project – Change Order #1
	CHANGE ORDER
	ITEM NO. 1:  Remove and Replace Additional Curb (COP No. 4)
	The lump sum cost for removal of curb is: $2,160.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb is: $2,880.00
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $5,040.00
	The lump sum cost for the planing of the parking lot is: $22,100.00
	The lump sum cost for the commercial HMA is: $24,385.00
	The cost of the deleted work is: ($37,125.00)
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $9,360.00
	The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: $2,550.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: $2,550.00
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $5,100.00
	The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: $1,500.00
	The lump sum cost for removal of curb is: $1,575.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: $1,800.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb is: $2,100.00
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $6,975.00
	ITEM NO. 1:  Additional Side Sewer Installation (COP No.1)
	The lump sum cost for the work is: $12,000.00
	Justification:  The additional work is the result of changed site conditions, as the additional side sewers were found during construction.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work provides added value to the Owner.
	ITEM NO. 2:  Remove and Replace Sidewalk and Curb on South End (COP’s No.2 and No. 4)
	The lump sum cost for removal of sidewalk is: $6,000.00
	The lump sum cost for removal of curb and gutter is: $1,950.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete sidewalk is: $12,000.00
	The lump sum cost for cement concrete traffic curb and gutter is: $2,600.00
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $22,550.00
	Justification:  The additional work is the result of changed site conditions, as the additional side sewers were found during construction.  This cost was not included in the bids and this work provides added value to the Owner.
	The lump sum cost for the planing of the parking lot is: $3,900.00
	The lump sum cost for the commercial HMA is: $4,303.00
	The cost of the deleted work is: ($6,750.00)
	The net additional cost for this item is:  $1,453.00
	CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE
	CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME

	AI #7(c) - Downtown Parking Lot Project - Bid Tabulations
	D. CONSENT AGENDA

	AG Packet - 5-24-16 (C)
	City Council Minutes 5-10-2016
	E. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Trans & Utilities Meeting Minutes 5-17-16



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Button1: 


